




CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report contain words or phrases such as “will”, “aim”, 

“believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “plan”, “project”, “goal” 

and similar meaning expressions and variations that may 

be interpreted as “forward looking statements”. Actual 

results could differ from those expressed or implied. 

Important factors that could affect the Company’s 

operations include economic conditions affecting 

demand and supply, changes in Government regulations 

and changes in political conditions and other statutes.
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VISSIoN 

to emerge as one of the India’s leading agro-
processing companies with a special focus on the 
basic foods segment (Rice, Pulses and Wheat). 
We envision a refreshing green, the personality 
of USHeR, to be the symbol of nation’s booming 
economy	and	the	indication	of	the	affluence	of	
world agriculture.

MISSIoN

Maximize	creation	
of wealth, value and 
satisfaction for the 
stakeholders

We intend to emerge 
as the one stop source 

for all the basic 
food products in 

India
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MANAGING DIReCtoR’S 
MeSSAGe TO	THE	SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to welcome you to the 20th Annual General Meeting of your Company and 

present before you the Annual Report with audited accounts.

the year 2015-16 was one of the most challenging that the industry has seen in years. A number 

of countries experienced erratic weather that impacted farm output, commodity realisations 

declined, farmers held back sowing in regions following enhanced water-stress, geopolitical 

challenges affected sales and currency devaluation dented earnings

Road Ahead

the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the Moody’s Investors Service have forecasted that 

India will witness a GDP growth rate of 7.5 per cent in 2016, due to improved investor confidence, 

lower food prices and better policy reforms. Besides, according to the World Bank, the Indian 

economy will likely to grow at 7.6 per cent in 2016-17, followed by further acceleration to 7.7 

per cent in 2017-18 and 7.8 per cent in 2018-19.
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According to Mr Jayant Sinha, Minister of State for Finance, Indian economy would continue to 

grow	at	7	to	9	per	cent	and	would	double	in	size	to	US$	4–5	trillion	in	a	decade,	becoming	the	

third largest economy in absolute terms.

Furthermore, initiatives like Make in India and Digital India will play a vital role in the driving the 

Indian economy.

According to IMF World economic outlook Update (January 2016), Indian economy is expected 

to grow at 7-7.75 per cent during FY 2016-17, despite the uncertainties in the global market. 

the economic Survey 2015-16 had forecasted that the Indian economy will growing by more 

than seven per cent for the third successive year 2016-17 and can start growing at eight per 

cent or more in next two years.

According to Fitch Ratings Agency, India’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) will likely grow by 7.7 

per cent in FY 2016-17 and slowly accelerate to 8 per cent by FY 2018-19, driven by the gradual 

implementation of structural reforms, higher disposable income and improvement in economic 

activity.

Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various 

government initiatives like Make in India and Digital India. Mr. Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of 

India, has launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to boost the manufacturing sector 

of Indian economy. this initiative is expected to increase the purchasing power of an average 

Indian consumer, which would further boost demand, and hence spur development, in addition 

to benefiting investors. Besides, the Government has also come up with Digital India initiative, 

which focuses on three core components: creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services 

digitally and to increase the digital literacy. Finance Minister Mr Arun Jaitley stated that the 

government is looking at a number of reforms and resolution of pending tax disputes to attract 

investments.

Currently, the manufacturing sector in India contributes over 15 per cent of the GDP. the 

Government of India, under the Make in India initiative, is trying to give boost to the contribution 

made by the manufacturing sector and aims to take it up to 25 per cent of the GDP.

the Indian economy is back on the high growth track. Both the World Bank as well as the 

International Monetary Fund have forecast the country to grow at a minimum 7.5 per cent for 

the next few years. Investment sentiment has revived strongly and consumption is on the rise. I 

firmly believe that we are on track for a sustained growth in the years to come. 

I would like to express my gratitude to all our stakeholders: our customers, partners, vendors, 

bankers, investors and our employees for their continued faith and support. thank you.

Yours faithfully,

Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi
Managing Director & CFo
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CoRPoRAte 
SNAPSHot
Usher	Agro	Limited	was	founded	by	Dr.	Vinod	Kumar	Chaturvedi	and	

Mr. Manoj Pathak on June 20, 1996.

the company’s name was inspired by its meaning. “Usher” (verb) 

means: “cause or mark the start of something new”.

It	 entered	 the	 Food	 Processing	 Sector	 by	 setting	 up	 its	 first	 Rice	

Milling Plant at Mathura, Uttar Pradesh in 1996 of 10,800 MtPA and 

today has grown to become one of the largest agro-food processing 

companies in India with integrated milling capacities of Rice, Wheat 

and Pulses. With this the company also manufactures other value 

added product like Silica.

THE COMPANY ALSO PRIDES ITSELF 
TO HAVE THE LARGEST SINGLE 
LOCATION RICE MILLING CAPACITY 
IN INDIA. USHER SELLS ITS PRODUCTS 
UNDER THE wIDELY ACCEPTED 
BRAND NAME “RASOI RAAjA”.

KEY 
STRENGTHS

LARGE SCALE 
SINGLE 

LOCATION 
CAPACITY

UNIqUE 
INDUSTRY 

POSITIONING
STRATEGIC 

LOCATION OF 
MILLING UNITS

HIGH AND 
CONSISTENT 

MARGINS

STRONG 
PROCUREMENT 

NETwORK

MODERN AND 
AUTOMATED 

SETUP
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1996

2003

2006

2006

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2014

2014

2014

Completion of 
modernisation and 
expansion of Buxar 

milling facilities

for 46,800 MTPA in 
2014 (Expansion)

Completed the 
construction activity 

of silica

plant at Chhata (U.P.)

Completed capacity expansion 

at Chhata (U.P.); Rice milling 

total capacity: 9,72,000 MTPA 

Pulses Milling capacity: 1,05,600 

MTPA and Multigrain & pulses 

flour capacity: 23,100 MTPA

First project of Rice 
Milling was set

up at Mathura (U.P.).

Implemented second 
unit with automated 

modernized rice mill at 
Buxar (Bihar)

Successfully completed 
IPO with listing at BSE 
and setup Wheat flour 

Mill at Mathura (U.P.)

Commenced 
Cogeneration captive 

power plant at Mathura 
(U.P.) for 1 Mw

Successfully added 
another 2,91,600 MTPA 
Capacity Plant at Chhata 

(U.P.)

Successful commissioned 
Fortified Rice Processing 

Plant in Chhata (U.P.)

Set up 16 Mw Biomass 
Eco Power Plant at 

Chhata (U.P.) This is a 
Subsidiary Co.

Third unit of Rice Milling 
commissioned at Chhata, 

Mathura (U.P.)

Listed on NSE

7
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BUSINeSS 
ReVIeW

wHEAT:

Usher	 Agro	 is	 into	 producing	 fine	 &	 superfine	Wheat	 flour	

(Maida), Samolina premium (Rawa/Suji), R-Aata, Whole meal 

Aata (ChakkiAata), Daliya and Wheat Bran (Choker). our Wheat 

products are also sold under the well-known brand ‘Rasoi 

Raaja’. It has 125,400 MtPA milling capacity for Wheat.

RICE:

Usher Agro is amongst the largest producer and processor 

of non-basmati rice in India. the company has one of the 

largest single location Rice milling company in India for rice 

processing. the company does processing of paddy in its 

four high-capacity plants at Mathura, Buxar and Chhata. the 

company has a total Rice Milling Capacity of 1,081,440 MtPA

Usher	Agro	 is	also	 into	rice	fortification,	which	 is	a	practical	

and	 cost-effective	 way	 to	 ensure	 a	 sufficient	 supply	 of	

essential vitamins and minerals in rice, to improve the health 

and	 to	 eradicate	 the	 deficiency	 of	 micro-nutrients	 through	

highly consumed staple food.

8
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PULSES:

With an overall vision to emerge as one stop solution to all basic 

food, the company has set up a plant for Pulses and Pulse Flour milling 

capacity at Chhata, U.P. the company has set up pulses processing 

mill	with	a	capacity	of	105,600	MT	PA	and	a	multi	grain	flour	mill	with	

a capacity of 23,100 MtPA After the said expansion the company has 

moved one step further in its vision to become a complete basic food 

processor. 

POwER:

Usher	 Eco	 Power	 Limited	 is	 into	 Power	 Generation	 Activity.	

the Company has commissioned the 16MW Rice husk based 

Cogeneration. eco friendly power plant at Chhata Dist- Mathura, U.P. 

which is using Bio Mass i.e. Rice husk as a fuel. this Power plant is 

eligible	 for	CDM	&	REC	benefits.	The	project	 is	 recently	 registered	

in	 the	 UNFCCC	 and	 will	 start	 getting	 CDM	 benefits	 from	 the	 next	

year. the Company has commenced power generation from 

24th April, 2012 and commercial operations from 7th November 2012. 

The	 subsidiary	 Company’s	 financial	 statement	 is	 attached	 to	 this	

annual	 financial	 report.	 This	 plant	will	 further	 enhance	 its	 operational	

efficiency	 in	 next	 year	 and	 will	 ensure	 uninterrupted	 availability	 of	

power at good rates.

SILICA:

Silica will be extracted by chemical process from Rice husk ash and 

can	be	called	as	GREEN	SILICA	since	 it	 is	the	only	 renewable	source	

of	Silica.	Usher	Eco	Power	Ltd	is	the	exclusive	licensee	for	the	Silica	

precipitation	 technology	 developed	 at	 CGPL,	 Indian	 Institute	 of	

Science (IISc). Currently, Usher has a plant capacity of 2000 MtPA 

of Silica production at Chhata and is in process of installing new plant 

with higher capacity of 20000 MtPA

the by-product of silica extraction, precipitated calcium carbonate is 

a	marketable	commodity	used	in	fertilizers	and	paints.	Residue	slurry	

after	extracting	silica	can	also	be	used	as	fertilizer	 (Bio–Char).	Usher	

Eco	Power	Ltd	will	be	having	the	advantage	to	do	this	novel	project	

first	time	in	World.	The	process	requires	temperatures	less	than	150°C,	

as	 against	 1500°C	 in	 the	 conventional	 method	 of	 silica	 extraction,	

reducing overall power consumption.

9
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USHER HAS ONE OF THE LARGEST 
SINGLE LOCATION RICE MILLING 
PLANT IN INDIA  

9,72,000 MTPA

TOTAL RICE MILLING CAPACITY OF 

10,81,440 MTPA

wHEAT MILLING CAPACITY OF 

1,25,400 MTPA

MANUFACtURING 
FACILITIES

PULSES AND MULTI GRAIN FLOUR OF 

1,28,700 MTPA

12 MODERNIzED SILOS AT CHHATA 
PLANT 

36,000 MT  
TO STORE RAw MATERIAL.

10
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STATE OF THE ART MILLING INFRASTRUCTURE

All	plants	are	completely	modernized	and	have	a	 fully	automated	

system,	 resulting	 in	 optimum	 utilization	 and	 better	 cost	

effectiveness.

the machinery for the Rice Mill has been sourced from reputed 

global manufacturers like:

 Satake Corporation, Japan, leading rice milling unit supplier with 

a global market share of ~70%.

	Industrias	 Machinery	 Zaccaria,	 Brazil,	 a	 leading	 rice	 milling	

machinery	manufacturer	 in	 Latin	America	 accounting	 for	 and	

nearly	50%	paddy	machinery	installed	in	Latin	America

the Company has also set up a Pulses Milling and Pulse Flour Mill at 

Chhata with a processing capacity of 105,600 MtPA and 23,100 

MTPA	which	became	operationalized	in	March	2014

the Machinery for the pulses milling has been purchased from 

Buhler,	 a	global	 equipment	 supplier	with	over	 70%	market	 share	

in Pulses market

CHHATA (U.P.)

RICE MILLING CAPACITY 9,72,000 MTPA

PULSE MILL & MULTI GRAIN FLOUR MILL 1,28,700 MTPA

wHEAT ROLLER FLOUR MILL – 50,400 MTPA. 

ECO-FRIENDLY RICE HUSK FIRED 16 Mw BIOMASS 
BASED CO-GENERATION POwER PROjECT 
UNDER THE SUBSIDIARY USHER ECO POwER LTD.

MATHURA (U.P.)

RICE MILLING CAPACITY - 10,800 MTPA

wHEAT ROLLER FLOUR MILL - 75,000 MTPA

1 Mw OF CAPTIVE BIOMASS POwER PLANT.

BUXAR (BIHAR)

RICE MILLING CAPACITY 98,640 MTPA

11
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PACK SIzE RAw RICE VARIETIES PACK SIzE PARBOILED/STEAMED RICE VARIETIES PACK SIzE BROwN RICE VARIETIES 

1kg 1121 1kg 1121 1kg 1121

10kg DB 10kg DB 10kg Parmal PR - 106

15kg Sugandha 15kg Sugandha 15kg Basmati

25kg Masauri/Sonam 25kg Masauri/Sonam PusaBasmati

25kg Parmal/PR-11/CommonIR-8 25kg Parmal/PR-11/CommonIR-8

10kg/25kg Sharbati 10kg/25kg Sharbati

1kg/10kg/25kg Basmati 1kg/10kg/25kg Basmati

10kg/25kg PusaBasmati 10kg/25kg PusaBasmati

PRoDUCtS 
PORTFOLIO

RICE PRODUCTS

12
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TYPE PACK SIzE TYPE PACK SIzE

Whole Wheat Floor 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg Pigeon Peas (tuwar Daal) 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

Fine Wheat Floor (Maida) 500g, 1kg, 20kg, 45kg, 50kg Chick Peas (Chana Daal) 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

Semolina (Sooji) 500gm, 1kg, 20kg, 50kg Red	Lentils	(Masoor	Daal) 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

Dalia 400g Yellow Peas (Watana Daal) 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

Bran 35kg, 40kg, 50kg Moong peas and Urad 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

Pluse Flour (Chana) 5 kg, 10kg, 20kg, 50kg

wHEAT PRODUCTS PULSE PRODUCT

13



14

BoARD oF 
DIReCtoRS

DR. VINOD KUMAR CHATURVEDI 
Managing Director & CFo

Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi, aged 51 years, is the 

Managing Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelors 

Degree in Commerce (B. Com) from Agra University and a 

fellow member of ‘the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India’. Going further he has also done Doctor of 

Philosophy in applied business economics (commerce) 

on the topic “Prospects and Rationale for Second Green 

Revolution”. Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi has over 28 years 

of	 experience	 in	 finance,	 project	 and	 food	 processing	

industry.	He	promoted	Usher	Agro	Limited	in	1996.	After	

incorporation	of	Usher	Agro	Limited	he	promoted	Usher	

Eco	 Power	 Limited,	 Usher	 Capitals	 Limited,	 Usher	 infra	

Logic	 Limited	 and	Usher	Oils	 and	 Foods	 Limited	 under	

the USHeR umbrella. 

Dr Chaturvedi is also governing Board Member of Co-gen 

India;	“an	organization,	established	under	the	stewardship	

of the trade Union cabinet minister of Agriculture and 

foods Hon. Sharad Pawar as founder chairman”. this 

organization	is	engaged	in	development	and	propagation	

alternate energy mainly from biomass.
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MR. MANOj PATHAK 

Whole time Director 

Mr. Manoj Pathak, aged 43 years, is the Whole time Director of your 

Company. He holds a Bachelors degree in Commerce (B. Com) from 

Agra	University	and	a	Bachelors	of	Law.	He	is	one	of	our	promoters	

and is the brother of Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi. He has over 19 years 

of experience in food processing industry and he has been involved 

with your Company since its inception. He has been actively involved 

in the implementation of all the projects of our Company and has 

played a vital role in the growth of your Company. His responsibilities 

include contributing to the strategic growth and development of a 

strong marketing network for our products. He has also contributed to 

the	Company	through	his	efficient	managerial	capabilities	to	deal	with	

labour, farmers, and operating personnel at the plants. 

MR. VIjAY RANCHAN 

Non-executive and Independent Director

Mr. Vijay Ranchan, aged 73 years is the Non executive, Independent 

Director of your Company and member of Audit committee. He holds 

a	Masters	degree	in	Arts	in	English	Literature	from	Punjab	University.	

He was in Indian Administrative Service (IAS) (1967 batch) and is 

currently retired. He has held senior positions of secretary/principal 

secretary/additional chief secretary in the Department of Revenue, 

Industry,	 Labour	 and	Health	 of	Government	 of	Gujarat.	 He	was	 also	

the Joint Managing Director of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation, 

Joint Managing Director of Gujarat Industrial Investment Corporation, 

Chairman of Gujarat Fisheries Central Co-operation Association. At 

present,	he	is	on	the	Board	of	Directors	of	Usher	Eco	Power	Limited,,	

DHFL	Pramerica	Asset	Managers	Pvt	Ltd.	and	Eywa	Energy	Pvt	Ltd.

MR. AjAY PRAKASH ARORA 

Non-executive and Independent Director

Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora, aged 75 years, is the Non- executive 

Independent Director of your Company. He is chairman of Audit 

Committee. He holds a Masters Degree in Commerce (M.Com) from 

Lucknow	University	and	is	also	qualified	as	Certified	Associate	of	Indian	

Institute of Bankers (CAIIB). He has over 37 years of rich experience 

in	handing	banking	and	finance	functions.	He	joined	the	Central	Bank	

of India in 1963 and continued working there till year 2000. During 

his tenure with the Central Bank of India, Mr. Arora worked in various 

capacities	as	the	Senior	Internal	Auditor,	Investigations/Enquiry	officer,	

Branch	Manager,	Chief	Manager	in	Branches	and	Zonal	office	in	Central	

Bank. 

MR. SHRIPRAKASH ARORA 

Non-executive and Independent Director

Mr. Shriprakash Arora, aged 76 years, is Independent Non-executive 

Director of your Company. He holds a Bachelors degree in Animal 

Science	from	Agra	University.	He	has	previously	worked	with	Pfizer	

Animal Health (Multinational Pharmaceutical Company) for 36 years, 

where he held several key positions overseeing the sales, technical, 

marketing, budgeting, training and business development of the 

Company.	He	was	also	responsible	for	launch	and	subsequent	handling	

of Agro chemical business (bactericides for cotton, chilies and paddy 

crop)	of	Pfizer	in	western	India.	Presently,	he	is	very	proficient	in	areas	

vis. restructuring of sales and marketing group, developing marketing 

strategies, training / mentoring in connection with rural marketing, 

distribution system, recruitment and selection, developing reward and 

appraisal system, and launch of new products. 

MRS. BALjINDER KAUR MANDAL 

Nominee	Director	of	IDBI	Bank	Limited

Mrs. Baljinder Kaur Mandal, aged 50 years is the Nominee Director 

appointed	 by	 IDBI	 Bank	 Limited	 on	 29th June, 2013. She holds Be 

(electrical), PGDM.

MR. PREM CHAND TIwARI 

Non-executive and Independent Director

Mr. Prem Chand tiwari, aged 65 years is the Non executive Independent 

Director of the Company. He holds bachelor’s degree in science (M. Sc 

-Physics) from Agra University. He has experience of 39 years in Banking 

(Administration,	 Business	 growth	 &	 Profitability).	 He	 has	 Retired	 as	

General	Manager	Head	of	the	largest	zone-Mumbai	Metropolitan	Zone	

having	maximum	business	mix	 (Deposits/Advances/profit/recovery)	

for Central Bank of India.

15
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Usher Agro Limited

NOTICE OF 20th  ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting of the members of Usher Agro Limited will be held on Friday,  

30th September, 2016 at 11.30 a.m. at Anmol Banquets Hall, 2nd Floor, Harmony Mall At Carnival Cinemas, Opposite Royal Enfield 

Showroom, Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai - 400104 to transact the following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2016, together with the 

Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 together 

with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint  Statutory Auditor and to fix their remuneration and in this connection, to pass, with or without modification(s),  

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (8) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013  read with Company (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 framed thereunder, as amended from time to time or any other law 

for the time being in force, M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP,  Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No104184W/ 

W100075) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office from the conclusion of this 

Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, and in this regard the Board of 

Directors/Committees of the Board of the Company be and are hereby authorized to decide and finalize the terms and conditions 

of their appointment and to fix their remuneration”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. To create, offer and issue new equity shares on preferential basis to the lenders of the Company pursuant to invocation of SDR 

Scheme

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 62(1)(c) and Section 42  and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (Companies Act), and Rule 14 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, 

Reserve Bank of India‘s (“RBI”) Circular No-RBI/2013-14/503 dated February 26, 2014 for the Framework for Revitalising 

Distressed Assets in the Economy – Guidelines on Joint Lenders’ Forum (JLF) and Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and Circular 

No RBI/2014-15/627 dated June 8, 2015 for  Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (“SDR Scheme”) and  any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, various rules, circulars, press notes, clarifications issued by 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company 

and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of Government of India (GOI), Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

under Banking Regulation Act, 1949 or any other applicable circular/notification issued from time to time, Foreign Exchange 

Management Act, 1999 (FEMA), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, applicable provisions of Uniform Listing Agreement under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Registrar of Companies (ROC) and all other 

appropriate and/ or concerned authorities, inside or outside India, and subject to such conditions and modifications, as may be 

prescribed by any of them in granting such approvals and  pursuant to the invocation of Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) by 

Joint Lenders Forum with reference date 13th May, 2016(JLF) in terms of RBI Circulars, the consent of the members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (which expression shall be deemed to include 
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any committee(s) thereof constituted or to be constituted by the Board of Directors to exercise its powers, including the powers 

conferred by this resolution and hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), to issue and allot in one or more tranches such number 

of Equity Shares of face value of ` 10 each fully paid up as determined in accordance with RBI Circulars to its Lenders on 

preferential basis in such manner and on such other terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Board and the 

JLF up to Authorized share capital of the Company, pursuant to conversion of the relevant portion of the outstanding debt 

(including accrued interest) (“Converted Debt”) owed to the lenders as set out in Explanatory statement  enabling Lenders 

collectively to hold minimum 51% or more of the total Equity share capital of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf 

of the Company to take all actions and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem 

necessary, desirable, incidental or expedient to valuation, issuance  or allotment and dematerialization of the aforesaid equity 

shares to be allotted on a private placement basis to the Conversion Lenders and to resolve and settle all questions and difficulties 

that may arise in relation to the proposed issue, offer and allotment of equity shares, the utilization of the issue proceeds and 

to do all acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem 

fit including  approval and filing of such forms as may be required under existing law including the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the rules there under, as amended from time to time and the Depositories Act, 1996, without being required to seek any further 

consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval 

thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

''RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be issued and allotted shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares 

of the Company in all respects.''

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept any modification to the terms of issuance  as  

may be required by the Conversions Lenders involved in such issuances and, to execute all such deeds, documents, undertakings 

and indemnities, to provide such confirmations and certification, and to do or abstain from doing all acts and things  as may be 

required for the offer,  issuance or allotment  of the Equity Shares to the Conversion Lenders and/ or in relation to the package 

of the SDR Scheme approved by the relevant JLF

4. Increase in authorised capital of the company and alteration of capital clause in the Memorandum of Association of the company:-

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13,  61 and 64 and other applicable provisions, if any, the Companies 

Act, 2013 as amended (the “Companies Act”) and the Rules made there under (including any statutory modification thereto 

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 

increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from existing the ` 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty  Crores Only) divided 

into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each to ` 80,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Crores Only) divided into 

8,00,00,000 (Eight  Crores Only) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each, by way of creation of additional 3,00,00,000 (Three Crores 

Only) Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each aggregating to ̀   30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Only)ranking pari passu in all respect 

with the existing Equity shares of the Company.”and the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company 

be and is hereby substituted and replaced with the following clause:-

“V “The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ` 80,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Crores Only) divided into 8,00,00,000 

(Eight  Crores Only) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company and to divide or 

subdivide the shares in capital for time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively such preferential qualified or 

special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of the Company for the time 

being and to modify or abrogate of any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Act, or 

provided by the Articles of the Company for the time being in force.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters, 

deeds and things and to take all steps as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to this resolution.” 
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5.    Alteration in Capital Clause of Articles of Association of the Company:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, the existing Clause 3 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby substituted and 

replaced with the following clause: -

“3. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ` 80,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Crores Only) divided into 8,00,00,000 

(Eight Crores Only) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company and to divide or 

subdivide the shares in capital for time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively such preferential qualified or 

special rights, privileges or conditions as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of the Company for the time 

being and to modify or abrogate of any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Act, or 

provided by the Articles of the Company for the time being in force.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, matters, 

deeds and things and to take all steps as may be required, necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Usher Agro Limited

Sarika S Singh
Place : Mumbai                    Company Secretary
Date : 13th August 2016

NOTES:

1. An Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 is annexed thereto and form part of the 

notice. 

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, INSTEAD 

OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF 

MEMBERS UPTO AND NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 

OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. FURTHER, A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF 

THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS 

PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. THE INSTRUMENT 

APPOINTING PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 

HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF HOLDING THE MEETING.

3. To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, including annual reports and notices, members are requested 

to kindly register/update their email address with their respective depository participant, where shares are held in electronic 

form. If, however, shares are held in physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail address with Bigshares Servies 

Pvt. Ltd. on shubhangi@bigshareonline.com

4. Any person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. Also, any person 

who acquires shares and becomes the Member of the Company after the dispatch of Annual Report and Notice of the Meeting 

and holding shares on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2016, may obtain login ID and password by sending a request 

at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 

every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN 

to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form 

can submit their PAN details to the Company or Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd. 

6. In terms of section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made there under, the listed companies 

may send the notice of annual general meeting and the annual report, including Financial statements, Board Report, etc. by 

electronic mode. The Company is accordingly forwarding soft copies of the above referred documents to all those members who 

have registered their email ids with their respective depository participants or with the share transfer agent of the Company.
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7. Corporate members are requested to send in advance, duly certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney authorising 

their representative to attend the annual general meeting.

8. The members are requested to send queries if any on accounts which should reach the Registered office of the Company 

at least seven days before the meeting.

9. Members/Proxies are requested to bring the copies of annual reports to the meeting

10. A route map giving directions to reach the venue of the 20th Annual General Meeting is given at the end of the Notice.

11. Voting through electronic means

 In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for the purpose of this section of the Notice) and 

Regulation 44(1) of SEBI(LODR)Regulation 2015, the Company is providing facility to exercise votes on the items of business 

given in the Notice through electronic voting system, to members holding shares as on  23rd September, 2016 (End of Day) 

being the Cut-off date for determining voting rights of members, entitled to participate in  the remote e-voting process, through 

the e-voting platform provided by the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

The instructions for remote E-Voting are as under:

1. The Company  has provided ‘e-voting’ facility through Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an alternative, 

for all members of Company  to enable them to cast their votes electronically, on the resolutions mentioned in the notice of 

Annual General Meeting of the Company, dated 30th September, 2016 (the AGM Notice). The facility for voting, either through 

electronic voting system or through ballot / polling paper shall also be made available at the venue of the AGM. The members 

attending the meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights 

at the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be 

entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM. 

2. The Company has appointed CS Manish Baldeva (FCS 6180), Proprietor M/s. M BaldevaAssociates, Company secretaries, 

Thane, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent 

manner. E-voting is optional. In terms of requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules, the Company has 

fixed 23rd  September, 2016 as the ‘Cut-off Date’. The remote e-voting /voting rights of the shareholders/ beneficial owners shall 

be reckoned on the equity shares held by them as on the Cut-off date i.e. 23rd  September, 2016 only.

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

1. The voting period begins on Tuesday  27th September, 2016 (09.00 a.m to 5 p.m) and ends on Thursday 29th September, 2016 

(09.00 a.m to 5 p.m). During this period, the  shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd  September, 2016 may cast their vote electronically. The 

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

2. Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

3. Click on Shareholders

4. Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

5. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

6. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 

company, then your existing password is to be used. 



20

Usher Agro Limited

7. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Members	who	have	not	updated	their	PAN	with	the	Company/Depository	Participant	are	requested	to	use	

the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number (refer serial no. printed on the 
name and address sticker/Postal Ballot Form/mail) in the PAN field.

•	 In	case	the	sequence	number	is	less	than	8	digits	enter	the	applicable	number	of	0’s	before	the	number	
after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
serial number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank 
Details OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account 
or in the company records in order to login.
•	 If	both	the	details	are	not	recorded	with	the	depository	or	company	please	enter	the	member	id	/	folio	

number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

8. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

9. Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection screen. However, members holding shares 
in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any 
other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

10. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

11. Click on the EVSN: for the relevant Usher Agro Limited on which you choose to vote.

12. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 
the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 
to the Resolution.

13. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

14. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

15. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

16. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

17. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

18. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting 

app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App 

Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 30th June 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted 

by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

19. Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

•	 Non-Individual	shareholders	(i.e.	other	than	Individuals,	HUF,	NRI	etc.)	and	Custodian	are	required	to	log	on	to	www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

•	 A	scanned	copy	of	the	Registration	Form	bearing	the	stamp	and	sign	of	the	entity	should	be	emailed	to	helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

•	 After	receiving	the	login	details	a	Compliance	User	should	be	created	using	the	admin	login	and	password.	The	Compliance	
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The	list	of	accounts	linked	in	the	login	should	be	mailed	to	helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com	and	on	approval	of	the	accounts	
they would be able to cast their vote. 

•	 A	scanned	copy	of	the	Board	Resolution	and	Power	of	Attorney	(POA)	which	they	have	issued	in	favour	of	the	Custodian,	 
if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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20. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 
manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

(A) Please follow all steps from Sr. no. (1) to Sr. .No. (20) above to cast vote.

(B) The voting period begins on  Tuesday 27th  September, 2016 (09.00 a. m to 5 p.m) and ends on Thursday 29th September, 
2016 (09.00 a. m to 5 p.m). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd  September, 2016, may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com  under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com.

21. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity shares capital of the Company as on 
the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd  September, 2016.

22. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories 
as on the cut-off date, i.e. 23rd September, 2016 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting/ ballot paper voting.

23. A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the website of CDSL.

24. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of Meeting i.e.  
30th September, 2016

25. The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report will be available on the Company’s website www.usheragro.com and on 
the website of CDSL and communicated to the Exchange.

13. General instructions/ information for Members for voting on the Resolutions:

1. Facility of voting through Poll paper shall be made available at the AGM. Members attending the AGM, who have not already 
cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM

1. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM, but shall not be entitled to 
vote again at the AGM.

2. The voting rights of the shareholders (for voting through remote e-voting or by Poll paper at the AGM) shall be in proportion 
to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 23rd September, 2016 (‘Cut-Off Date’). A person whose 
name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the 
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or of voting at the AGM.

3. Any person who acquires Shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the dispatch of the AGM Notice 
and holds shares as on the cut-off date, i.e. 23rd September,  2016, may obtain the login ID and password by sending request at 
the helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

4. The Book Closure: The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Friday  
23rd September, 2016 to Friday, 30th September, 2016 (both days inclusive).  

5. The Board of Directors has appointed CS Manish Baldeva (FCS 6180), Proprietor M/s. M Baldeva Associates, Company 
secretaries, Thane, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting in a fair and transparent manner in its Meeting held on 
August 13th, 2016. He has communicated his willingness to be so appointed and will be available for the purpose of ascertaining 
the requisite majority. 

6. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting, first count the votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes 
cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company or any person authorized by him in writing, 
who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the voting forthwith.

7. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company i.e. www.usheragro.
com and on the website of the CDSL immediately after the declaration of the results by the Chairman & Managing Director of 
the Company or a person authorized by him in writing and also be displayed at the website of the Company. The results shall also 

be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchange(s) i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No 3.

The Company had availed financial assistance from various banks/ financial institutions (the “Lenders”) for the purposes set forth 

in the respective financing documents entered into between the Company and the Lenders. Owing to scarcity of working capital and 

consequent impact on operations, the Company had not been able to perform operations at optimal levels, leading to decline in the 

operating profits and liquidity in the Company and consequently, the Company’s account had slipped into the SMA2 category with 

most banks.

Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) issued Circular No-RBI/2013-14/503 dated February 26, 2014 and Circular No RBI/2014-15/627 

dated June 8, 2015 for the Framework for Revitalizing Distressed Assets in the Economy – Guidelines on Joint Lenders’ Forum 

(JLF) and Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (“SDR Scheme”).  The said Circulars contain the 

guidelines for the formation of JLF and adoption of CAP. 

The said Circulars state that both under JLF and CDR mechanism, the restructuring package should also stipulate the timeline during 

which certain viability milestones be achieved. The JLF must periodically review the account for achievement/non-achievement of 

milestones and should consider initiating suitable measures including recovery measures as deemed appropriate. With a view to 

ensuring more stake of promoters in reviving stressed accounts and provide banks with enhanced capabilities to initiate change of 

ownership in accounts which fail to achieve the projected viability milestones, banks may, at their discretion, undertake a ‘Strategic 

Debt Restructuring (SDR)’ by converting loan dues to equity shares, which will have the following features :

a. At the time of initial restructuring, the JLF must incorporate, in the terms and conditions attached to the restructured loan/s 

agreed with the borrower, an option to convert the entire loan (entire loan/ debt/ loan shall mean all facilities provided to 

UAL including unpaid interest and optionally convertible debentures), or part thereof, into shares in the company in the 

event the borrower is not able to achieve the viability milestones and/or adhere to ‘critical conditions’ as stipulated in the 

restructuring package. This should be supported by necessary approvals/authorisations (including special resolution by the 

shareholders) from the borrower company, as required under extant laws/regulations, to enable the lenders to exercise the 

said option effectively. Restructuring of loans without the said approvals/authorisations for SDR is not permitted. If the 

borrower is not able to achieve the viability milestones and/or adhere to the ‘critical conditions’ referred to above, the JLF 

must immediately review the account and examine whether the account will be viable by effecting a change in ownership. 

If found viable under such examination, the JLF may decide on whether to invoke the SDR, i.e. convert the whole or part 

of the loan and interest outstanding into equity shares in the borrower company, so as to acquire majority shareholding in 

the company; 

b. The decision on invoking the SDR by converting the whole or part of the loan into equity shares should be taken by the JLF 

as early as possible but within 30 days from the above review of the account. Such decision should be well documented and 

approved by the majority of the JLF members (minimum of 75% of creditors by value and 60% of creditors by number); 

c. In order to achieve the change in ownership, the lenders under the JLF should collectively become the majority shareholder 

by conversion of their dues from the borrower into equity. However the conversion by JLF lenders of their outstanding debt 

(principal as well as unpaid interest) into equity instruments shall be subject to the member banks’ respective total holdings 

in shares of the company conforming to the statutory limit in terms of Section 19(2) of Banking Regulation Act, 1949; 

d. Post the conversion, all lenders under the JLF must collectively hold 51% or more of the equity shares issued by the 

company; 

e. The conversion price of the equity shall be determined as per the guidelines given below: 

(i)  Conversion of outstanding debt (principal as well as unpaid interest) into equity instruments should be at a ‘Fair Value’ 

which will not exceed the lowest of the following, subject to the floor of ‘Face Value’ (restriction under section 53 of 

the Companies Act, 2013): 

a)  Market value (for listed companies): Average of the closing prices of the instrument on a recognized stock exchange 

during the ten trading days preceding the ‘reference date’ indicated at (ii) below; 
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(b) Break-up value: Book value per share to be calculated from the company's latest audited balance sheet (without 

considering 'revaluation reserves', if any) adjusted for cash flows and financials post the earlier restructuring; the 

balance sheet should not be more than a year old. In case the latest balance sheet is not available this break-up value 

shall be Re.1. 

(ii)  The above Fair Value will be decided at a ‘reference date’ which is the date of JLF’s decision to undertake SDR. 

f. The JLF must approve the SDR conversion package and convert of debt into equity as approved under the SDR within a 

period of 210 days from the date of invocation of SDR. 

g. The invocation of SDR will not be treated as restructuring for the purpose of asset classification and provisioning norms; 

h. On completion of conversion of debt to equity as approved under SDR, the existing asset classification of the account, as on 

the reference date indicated above, will continue for a period of 18 months from the reference date. Thereafter, the asset 

classification will be as per the extant IRAC norms, assuming the aforesaid ‘stand-still’ in asset classification had not been 

given. However, when banks’ holding are divested to a new promoter, the asset classification will be as per the para 3(xiii) 

of the said circular; 

i. JLF and lenders should divest their holdings in the equity of the company as soon as possible. On divestment of banks’ 

holding in favour of a ‘new promoter’, the asset classification of the account may be upgraded to ‘Standard’. However, 

the quantum of provision held by the bank against the said account as on the date of divestment, which shall not be less 

than what was held as at the ‘reference date’, shall not be reversed. At the time of divestment of their holdings to a ‘new 

promoter’, banks may refinance the existing debt of the company considering the changed risk profile of the company 

without treating the exercise as ‘restructuring’ subject to banks making provision for any diminution in fair value of the 

existing debt on account of the refinance. Banks may reverse the provision held against the said account only when all 

the outstanding loan/facilities in the account perform satisfactorily during the ‘specified period’ (as defined in the extant 

norms on restructuring of advances), i.e. principal and interest on all facilities in the account are serviced as per terms of 

payment during that period. In case, however, satisfactory performance during the specified period is not evidenced, the 

asset classification of the restructured account would be governed by the extant IRAC norms as per the repayment schedule 

that existed as on the reference date indicated above, assuming that ‘stand-still’ / above upgrade in asset classification 

had not been given. However, in cases where the bank exits the account completely, i.e. no longer has any exposure to the 

borrower, the provision may be reversed/absorbed as on the date of exit; 

j. The asset classification benefit provided at the above paragraph is subject to the following conditions: 

(i) The ‘new promoter’ should not be a person/entity/subsidiary/associate etc. (domestic as well as overseas), from the 

existing promoter/promoter group. Banks should clearly establish that the acquirer does not belong to the existing 

promoter group; and 

(ii) The new promoters should have acquired at least 51 per cent of the paid up equity capital of the borrower company. If 

the new promoter is a non-resident, and in sectors where the ceiling on foreign investment is less than 51 per cent, the 

new promoter should own at least 26 per cent of the paid up equity capital or up to applicable foreign investment limit, 

whichever is higher, provided banks are satisfied that with this equity stake the new non-resident promoter controls 

the management of the company. 

As the Company is in default in payment of its interest/ principal to the Banks, the Banks at their joint Lender meeting held on 

13th May, 2016 has decided to undertake SDR Scheme, hence it is necessary to pass the above mentioned resolution for complete 

implementation of the SDR Scheme on  the conditions that total amount of the Debt shall be converted in to Equity Capital  in such 

a manner the total consolidated  holding of the Banks post conversion  shall not be less than 51% and such conversion shall be made 

at the price as determined in terms with SDR Scheme. The current Conversion Price will be determined under the SDR Scheme. 

Accordingly, in order to enable the Company to issue and allot equity shares to the CDR Lenders pursuant to the invocation of SDR 

Scheme by the CDR Lenders and for conversion of their outstanding due amounts (or part thereof) into equity share capital of the 

Company, as per the SDR scheme, it is necessary to pass the above mentioned resolution under section 62(1) (c ) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 for complete implementation of the SDR Scheme as may be undertaken by the Banks pursuant to the Said Circulars.
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Hence total 3,96,12,500 Equity shares has to be issued to the Lenders as per the table given below.

Disclosures to be made as per section 62 Rule 13 (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 for the purpose of issue of shares on 
preferential basis are as under:

I. The objects of the issue : For conversion of Debt into Equity for the purpose of the  implementation of the SDR Scheme

II. The total no of shares or other securities to be issued;: 39612500

III. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made; Secured Lenders

IV. Intention of promoters, directors or key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer; Promoters / Directors / Key 

Management Personnel of the company are not intending to participate/ subscribe to the present offer

V. The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the company are given below: as on 30.06.2016

S. 

No.
Category

Pre issue Post issue

no. of shares held % no. of shares held %

a Promoters Holding:

Individual 7883630 20.71 7883630 10.15

Group companies 3753740 9.86 3753740 4.83

Sub total 11637370 30.58 11637370 14.98

Total Shareholding of Promoter &
Promoter Group (A)

11637370 30.58 11637370 14.98

b Non-promoters Shareholding:

Mutual funds/ uti

Financial Institutional Investor/Banks 1076733 2.83 40689233 52.39

Foreign Institutional Investors 2844767 7.47 2844767 3.66

Non Institutional Investors:

Bodies Corporate 6505289 17.09 6505289 8.38

Individual Holding Nominal Share Capital Up To ` 2 
Lakhs

9315186 24.48 9315186 11.99

Individual Holding Nominal Share Capital In Excess Of 
` 2 Lakhs

5507985 14.47 5507985 7.09

Any Other-

Clearing Member 743703 1.95 743703 0.96

Non Resident Indians 425817 1.12 425817 0.55

Unclaimed Suspense Account 2189 0.0 2189 0.00

Total Public Shareholding (B) 26421669 69.42 26421669 34.01

Total (A + B) 38059039 100 77671539 100

Grand Total

 VI. The names of the proposed allottees of 39612500 equity shares  are as below t the allotment will be as per the terms of 

JLF & SDR Scheme.

SL. NO. NAME OF PROPOSED ALLOTTEES SL. NO. NAME OF PROPOSED ALLOTTEES

1 IDBI Bank 12 Karur  Vysya Bank

2 ICICI Bank Limited 13 Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited

3 Axis Bank 14 Maybank

4 Bank of Maharashtra 15 Kotak Mahindra Bank 

5 State Bank of India 16 RBL Bank

6 United Bank of India 17 L&T Finance Limited

7 Dena Bank 18 Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Ltd

8 Exim Bank Limited 19 SIDBI Bank

9 Bank of Baroda 20 Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company

10 Rabo Bank International 21 India Factoring and Finance Solutions Pvt Ltd 

11 Allahabad Bank
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VII. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with valuation report of the 

registered valuer : The Price has been determined in accordance with the SDR Scheme.

Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides inter alia, that when it is proposed to increase the issued capital of a Company 

by allotment of further shares, etc., such further shares shall be offered to the existing shareholders of the Company in the 

manner laid down in the Section unless the shareholders in general meeting decide otherwise by passing a special resolution. 

Therefore, consent of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution is being sought pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42 & 

62 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the provisions of the RBI Circular.

The members are, therefore, requested to accord their approval authorizing the Board to go for the proposed private placement 

and / or preferential issue as set out in the resolution.

None of the Directors, any other Key Managerial Person(s) of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 

interested in the said resolution.

Item  Number 4 and 5.

The Lenders at their Joint Lender Meeting held on 13th May, 2016 have decided to undertake SDR Scheme. Accordingly, the 

Company is required to issue and allot further equity shares of the Company to the CDR Lenders as per the SDR Scheme for 

which for which the Authorised Capital is required to be increased. 

Hence  the authorized share capital is proposed to be increased from existing ` 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) 

divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each to Rs.80,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty  Crores Only) divided 

into 8,00,00,000 (Eight Crore) Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each by creation of additional 3,00,00,000 ( Three Crore  Equity Shares 

of ` 10/- each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity shares of the Company.”

The alteration of the capital clause of the Memorandum of Association is in accordance with section 13 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

The clause 3 of Articles of Association will change due to increase in Authorised Share Capital. 

Your approval is required for the aforesaid proposed increase and alteration of Memorandum of the Association of the Company.

None of the Directors of the company are in any way concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
To The Members of 

Usher Agro Ltd.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 20th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the financial 

accounts for the Year  ended 31st March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial performance of the Company, for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2016 is summarised below:

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Figures as at the end 
of current  

reporting period

Sales & Other Income 158097.02

Profit before Financial Charges & Depreciation (13962.86)

Less : Financial Charges 12009.32

Cash Profit for the year (25972.18)

Less : Depreciation 3877.38

Profit before Tax (29849.56)

Less : Provision for Tax including Fringe Benefit Tax -

Less : Provision for Deferred tax (73.41)

Less: Short Provision for tax of earlier years. 137.59

Profit after Tax (29913.76)

Balance brought forward from Previous Year 15632.70

Balance available for Appropriation (14284.06)

Appropriations : 

Proposed Dividend -

Corporate Dividend Tax -

Transferred to General Reserve -

Debt Redemption Reserve -

Debenture Redemption Reserve -

Earning per Share (EPS) -

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (14279.81)

Business operations & Results. 
During the year under review, the sales and other income of your Company have increased to ` 158097.02 lakhs within the period 
of as compare to  ` 127766.12 Lakhs in the previous financial year (9 months). There is the loss in the financial year 2015-16. The 
Profit/Loss is ` (29913.76) Lakhs against profit of ` 4184.98 lakhs in previous year (9 months).  

Dividend 

In view of the loss incurred by the Company during the year, the Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2016. In the previous year the dividend was declared @Re. 0.5 per shares. 

Transfer to Reserves 

The Company has transferred nil amounts in the General Reserves during the financial year under review in pursuance to the 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
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Share Capital

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2016 was ` 3805.90 Lakhs. During the year under review, the Company has 

not issued any shares. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue or preferential issue etc. during the year. The Company 

has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it granted any stock options.

Issue of Debentures

The Usher Agro Limited has Issued 50,325 Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Subordinated Non-Convertible Debentures (“Debentures” 

Or “NCDs”) of a Face Value of INR 10,000 each for Cash Aggregating to INR 503,250,000 (The Rupee Equivalent Of  

USD 7,500,000) on 23rd December, 2015 to Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V (FMO),  

Annavan Saksenlaan 71, 2593 HW The Hague, The Netherlands. the Denture trustee is IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited,  Asian 

Building, Ground Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001. Tel: +91 22 4080 7000  Fax: +91 22 6631 1776  

Dir: +91 22 4080  7038 E-mail: jatin.bhat@idbitrustee.com. India Rating & Research Pvt. Ltd. has assigned "IND D" for Non 

convertible debentures.

The proceeds from issue of debentures was fully utilised for the Issue of 503250- 12% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares  of ` 1000 each to Usher Agro Limited  by Usher Eco Power Ltd. The financing was utilised for the Expansion 

of Usher Eco Power’s rice husk based waste to energy facility (form 16 MW to 34 MW) and for setting up silica extraction facility  

to generate Silica(50TPD) from ensuing rice husk ash. 

Debenture redemption Reserve

The Debenture redemption Reserve created for the FY 2015-16 is nil. 

Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has prepares the Consolidated Financial statement of the 

Company   and also of its subsidiary Usher Eco Power Limited & Usher Worldwide FZE. 

Subsidiary Companies and Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (`the Act’) 

read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, form part of the Annual Report and are reflected in the Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the Company..

 The Company has adopted a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16 (c) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 of the Listing Agreement. The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s website at www.usheragro.

com. The Company has two subsidiary i.e. Usher Eco Power Limited and one wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Usher Worldwide FZE.

Performance of the Subsidiaries  

a) USHER ECO POWER LIMITED

Usher Eco Power Limited is into a Biomass based Power Generation Activity. The Company has commissioned the 16MW 

Rice husk based Co- generation Eco friendly power plant at Chhata Dist- Mathura, U.P. which is using Rice husk as a fuel. This 

Power Plant is eligible for CDM & REC benefits. The project is already registered in the UNFCCC and availed CDM benefits 

from this year.  The subsidiary Company’s financial statement is attached to this annual financial report. This plant will further 

enhance its operational efficiency and will ensure uninterrupted availability of power at competitive prices. UEPL planned 

and started to setting up a new rice husk/multi fuel  based biomass power plant which capacity would be 18 MW and company 

is in the process of setting up a 50TPD Silica extraction facility to generate silica from the ensuing rice husk ash. For setting 

up both the project UEPL closed the financial deal with FMO-DEG. UEPL also signed a agreement with Goodyear Tyre & 

Rubber Company, USA for supply of RH-Silica. 

b) USHER WORLDWIDE FZE

Usher Worldwide FZE which is registered in a Free Zone Establishment (FZE) in the Sharjah Airport International Free 

Zone (SAIF Zone), United Arab Emirates have commenced commercial operations from FY 2014-15. This company has been 

incorporated in UAE for the purpose of general trading in rice and other commodities. This Company will provide strong foot 
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hold to your Company in Middle East Asia and African market, which is the largest export market for rice as well as enable 

us to procure pulses from global market in most efficient and competitive terms, which is also a basic raw materials for us 

post expansion of pulses milling project.

During the year under review, no Company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. A statement containing 

the salient features of the financial position of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC.1 is annexed as Annexure 2.

BUSINESS EXPANSION, DEVELOPMENTS & FUTURE OUTLOOK

A) Silica 50TPD Plant

In the long run the Company envisions setting up a 50TPD Silica Plant in its Subsidiary Company i.e. Usher Eco Power 

Limited. This plant will produce silica from Rice Husk Ash through the said patented technology. This will further 

improve operational efficiency of the Company by value added use of waste i.e. Rice Husk Ash.

B) Tie up with Large Institutional Buyers

As overall vision of Usher Agro Ltd. to emerge as one stop solution for all basic foods over a period of time, the company has 

installed capacity for Rice, Wheat and Pulses Milling. The capacities in all above three segments have already commenced 

commercial production. As a business strategy Usher is focusing on whole sale market and bulk customers with committed off 

take for its large milling capacities. The company is making all of its best possible efforts to develop long term relationship 

with such large customers in each product segment.

 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

Your Company has entered in to export market in January 2010. Since inception your Company has been focused on the 

domestic market and in future too our focus shall remain in that way. However with the installation of one of the most modern 

plant at Chhata and also to achieve progress in all markets, for the first time your Company has entered the export market 

in January 2010 and in very short period has been able to successfully tap the overseas market. Your directors are pleased 

to report that our products are well accepted in the export market and we are confident that in the coming years the export 

earnings will see quantum jump thereby earning precious foreign exchange for the country.  Your Company is targeting mainly 

Middle East and Gulf countries for the export of rice and wheat based products. Further to focus on the said market and 

increase business operations the Company has already incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in UAE i.e Usher Worldwide 

FZE. The Company follows a prudent hedging policy to manage significant foreign currency exposures. 

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public under section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has Seven (7) Directors consisting of Four (4) Independent Directors one woman nominee director and one 

Managing Director and one whole time Director as on 31st March, 2016. 

Independent and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors

In terms of the definition of the Independent director as prescribed under Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations And 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on confirmation/

disclosures received from the Directors, the following Non-Executive Directors are Independent Directors:-

Mr. Vijay Ranchan

Mr. Ajayprakash Arora 

Mr. Shriprakash Arora

Mr. Prem Chand Tiwari

Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reg.17 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a company shall have at least one Woman Director on the Board of the company. 

Your Company has Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal as Nominee Director IDBI Bank on the Board of the Company since 29th June, 

2013. 
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Declaration by Independent Director under sub-section (6) of section 149

The Company has received Declaration that the Independent Director meets the criteria of Independence laid down in sub-

section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. The declaration in respect of the same is received at the first Board 

meeting of the Financial Year. 

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi has been serving as the Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 

Whole Time Director 

Mr. Manoj Pathak has been serving as whole Time director of the Company since 1st December, 2014. 

Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing competency requirements for the Board based 

on the industry and strategy of the Company. Board composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company, 

including its strategies, environment, operations, and financial condition and compliance requirements. The Committee is 

also responsible for reviewing and vetting the CVs of potential candidate’s vis-à-vis the required competencies and meeting 

potential candidates, prior to making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the time of appointment, specific 

requirements for the position, including expert knowledge expected, is communicated to the appointee.

Appointments/Resignations from the Board of Directors

No appointment or resignation of director has taken place in the FY2015-16

Appointments/Resignations of the Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi Managing Director has been re-designated as Chief Financial Officer of the Company in the 

Board Meeting held on 14th February, 2015. Mr. Manoj Pathak – Whole Time Director of the Company and Ms. Sarika Singh 

– Company Secretary of the Company are the Key Managerial personnel as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors Retiring by Rotation

None of the Directors are retiring by rotation. 

Number of Meetings of the Board

 During the Financial Year 2015-16 four meeting of the Board of Director were held viz. 30th May 2015, 12th August, 2015, 

7th November, 2015 and 13th February, 2016. Detailed information on the meetings of the Board are included in the report on 

Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Committees of the Board 

The Company has various committees which have been established as a part of the good corporate governance practices and 

are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws. 

The Company has following committee of the Board 

•	 Audit	Committee

•	 Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee

•	 Stakeholder’s	Relationship	Committee

•	 Corporate	Social	Responsibility	Committee

•	 Finance	Committee

The details with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant committees are given in details 

in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ of the Company which forms part of this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules 2014, the company has established Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and statutory disclosures 

with respect to the CSR Committee and an Annual Report on CSR Activities forms part of this Report. The Company has not 

made any provisions for the CSR in the FY 2015-16. 
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However the CSR provisions made in the financial year 2014-15 has not been fully utilised. T he details of the CSR expenditure 

for the FY 2014-15 is given in ANNEXURE – 3

Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education & Protection Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 205A(5) and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, an amount of ` 32,217 and  

` 161098 being final & Interim Dividend  dividend for the financial year 2007-08 lying unclaimed for a period of 7 years 

was transferred by the Company on 1st January 2016 and 29th January, 2016 to the Investor Education & Protection Fund.

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. The Policy aims to provide 

protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected 

or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. The Company 

has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee, known as the Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH) Committee, 

to inquire into complaints of sexual harassment and recommend appropriate action.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2015-16.

Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and Performance of its Committees and of Directors:

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation 

of its own performance, performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the 

Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors.

Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/ Committee Meetings and guidance/ 

support to the management outside Board/ Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects 

of his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board members and 

motivating and providing guidance to the Managing Director & CFO.

Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, adequacy of 

Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being 

evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent 

Directors, who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also 

reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and of the Directors. The Chairman of the Board provided feedback 

to the Directors on an individual basis, as appropriate. Significant highlights, learning and action points with respect to the 

evaluation were presented to the Board.

Corporate Governance

Your Company is committed to achieve the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adheres to the Corporate Governance 

requirements set by the Regulators/applicable laws. Accordingly, your Board functions as trustees of the shareholders and 

seeks to ensure that the long term economic value for its shareholders is achieved while balancing the interest of all the 

stakeholders. A separate section on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges this report. 

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.
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Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has implemented a Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to which Whistle Blowers can raise concerns such as 
breach of Code of Conduct, fraud, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct, etc. Further, the mechanism adopted by the 
Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provides for adequate safeguards 
against victimization of Whistle Blower who avail of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The functioning of the Vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from 
time to time. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the Report on Corporate Governance and also available 
on the website of the Company (www.usheragro.com).

Risk Management Policy

Your Company has Board approved Risk Management Policy wherein all material risks faced by the Company are indentified 
and accessed and policy and procedures has been put in place for monitoring and mitigating. The policy is also uploaded on 
the website of the Company www.usheragro.com. Since the Risk Management Policy has been adopted, the Company has 
dissolved the Risk Management Committee constituted. 

Board diversity

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. The Board has adopted the Board 
Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to diversity of the Board of Directors. The Board Diversity Policy is available on 
our website, www.usheragro.com.

Loans, Guarantees or Investments in Securities

The company is holding 69.48% share capital of Usher Eco Power Ltd and given a loan of Rs. 13 Crore also the company 
has given corporate guarantee for foreign currency loan of USD 13.25 Million to Usher Eco power Limited subsidiary of 
Usher Agro Limited.  The Company has also given Corporate Guarantee for foreign currency loan of USD 28.00 million 

taken by Usher Eco Power Limited from Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V (“FMO”) 

and DEG – Deutsche Investitions- und Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH  (“DEG”). The company is holding 100% share capital 
of Usher Worldwide FZE, UAE and given Corporate Guarantee of USD 6.00 Million in favour of ResponsAbility Fair Trade 
Fund a contractual investment fund organized and existing under the laws of Switzerland for the credit facility sanctioned 
to Usher Worldwide FZE UAE. The Company has also invested in the preference shares of the Usher Eco power limited on 
28.01.2016. As per the terms of Issue of Debentures, the proceeds from the issue of debentures were invested in Usher Eco 
Power Limited through 503250-12% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ` 1000 each. The Company has 
also made additional Investment of 134200- 0% Compulsory Convertible Non Cumulative Preference Shares of ` 1000 each  

Significant and Material Orders Passed By the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

The Company has paid penalty under Reg. 33 (3) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for Non submission of the Financial 
Results for the Quarter & year ended 31.03.2016 the Company has paid `  86250 to BSE limited and ` 4, 60,590 for 
National stock Exchange of India Limited.  CFSIT Inc. has filed winding up petition for recovery of their outstanding dues of 
` 6548.14 lakhs with the interest @12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. PT Bank May bank Indonesia 
Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding dues of  ` 1778.18 lakh with 
the interest @16.40% p.a. However, Members attention is drawn to the matter of emphasis and Statement on Contingent 
Liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial Statement.

Material Changes & Commitment Affecting the Financial Position of the Company

Invocation of Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) by lenders: As per the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Lenders Forum 
(JLF) held on May 13, 2016, the lenders have decided in favour of invocation of Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) in the 
Company to preserve the value of the Company and adopted the "Reference Date" for the purpose as May 13, 2016.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place a Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 same is uploaded on the 
website of the Company www.usheragro.com
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Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary 
course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the 
year that would have required Shareholder approval. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee 
for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in nature.  
A statement of all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit Committee for its review on a quarterly basis, specifying 
the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions. The Company has adopted a Related Party Transactions Policy. 
The Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company’s website: www.usheragro.com.

Details of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has laid down set of standard, process structures which enables to implement internal financial control across 

the organisation and ensure that the same are adequate and operating effectively. 

AUDITORS

M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No 104184W/W100075) appointed as 

the Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 20th July, 2016 to fill the 

casual vacancy caused by resignation of M/S. V.S Kankariya & Co. Chartered Accountants, Mumbai. The Auditor of the Company 

has resigned on 28th May, 2016,  hence casual vacancy is caused in the office of the Statutory Auditor of the Company.

M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No 104184W/W100075) will retire at 

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and are eligible for the re-appointment subject to the approval of 

Shareholder in the Annual general Meeting. Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and 141 of the Act a written consent towards 

such appointment has been obtained from M/s. Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration 

No 104184W/W100075) along with a written certificate to the effect that their appointment if made will be within the limits 

prescribed under Section 139 of the Companies Act. 2013. As required under the Listing Regulations, they have also confirmed that 

they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

With reference to the Auditors’ qualified opinion, matter of emphasis and observations in the Auditors’ Report, the explanation/

comments of the Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 are set  

out in Annexure 1.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to section 204 of the companies act, 2013 Company has appointed Ms. Palak Desai practising Company secretary 

Mumbai as its secretarial Auditor to conduct the secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2015-16.the Company provided all the 

assistance and facilities to the secretarial Auditor for conducting their Audit. The report of the Secretarial Auditor for the FY 

2015-16 in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed to this report as Annexure 4.

Cost audit/auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the 

products manufactured by the Company were not covered for maintenance of cost records and therefore, the Company discontinued 

the cost audit and consequently, the Company has not appointed cost auditor for the financial year 2015-16.

Employee Remuneration

This is to confirm that none of the employee of the Company were in receipt of remuneration of not less than ` 60 lakhs during the 

year or ` 5 lakhs per month during any part of the said year as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 

of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, are forming part of this report as Annexure 5.
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Statutory Disclosures

•	 The	disclosures	to	be	made	under	sub-section	(3)	(m)	of	Section	134	of	the	Companies	Act	2013	read	with	Rule	(8)(3)	

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014  by your Company  are explained as under:

 (A) Conservation of Energy

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

The Company is aware about energy consumption and environmental issues related with it and continuously making 

sincere efforts towards conservation of energy. The maintenance of the Boiler and Electrical Equipment is carried out 

regularly with optimum care with the help of the technical professionals and modern equipment. The Company is in 

fact engaged in the continuous process of further energy conservation through improved operational and maintenance 

practices. Your Company is having a rice husk fired 1 MW co-generation captive power plant at Mathura, which helped 

to save the cost of power consumption and also generating power in eco friendly manner by supporting environment. 

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

The company has already commissioned 1MW co-generation captive power plant at Mathura to use its rice husk which is 

waste product during the production of rice, the company has also installed 16MW biomass power plant in its subsidiary 

company M/s Usher Eco Power Ltd to generate the energy through renewal sources of energy. 

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments 

During the year, the Company has made substantial progress in installing state of the art equipment. These equipment are 

highly efficient and consume less energy with the increased productivity. With the present resources, the Company had 

taken overall measures to reduce the consumption of energy. This was rendered possible through proper maintenance 

on regular intervals of Plant & Machinery and other electrical installed in the manufacturing/processing unit of the 

Company. The Company has also implemented ‘CONTINUOUS PAR BOILING PROCESS PLANT’ which is imported 

technology from Thailand and implemented first time in India. With the implementation of the said modern technology, 

the process time to produce Par Boiled rice will reduce significantly from 10-12 hours in case of conventional process 

to 5-6 hours which will provide better operational efficiency and substantial saving in energy consumption. We have 

also installed water treatment plant along with the said continuous Par Boiling Plant to recycle and reuse the water 

consumed in Par Boiling process. This will save water and also reduce the discharge of processed water. At our Chhata 

plant we have installed Husk fired furnaceto generate hot Air for drying the paddy. This furnace are patented and 

imported from Thailand. With the help of this furnace drying process will have less energy consumption as compared to 

traditional drying process which uses steam as medium of heat for drying.

(B) Technology Absorption

  i. The Company is using latest technology in rice and wheat milling which is well established the world over. The 

Company has installed new equipment with latest technology for the purpose of rice processing. The Company has 

carried out R&D in house so as to improve the quality of the Rice Bran, one of the bye-products of rice milling 

process (8% of the total output). The Company has evolved the process to reduce the content of Nakku (Broken 

Rice) in the Rice Bran.

i. The Benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution.

  ii. In case of imported technology (The Company has not imported any technology during the last three financial  

 years.)

  iii. Expenditure on research & development – the company has actively participated in research & development of new 

technology of Silica extraction with IISc Bangalore and has incurred around ` 36 Crore till now in establishing & 

commissioning its small plant at Chhata, Mathura

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

  During the year under review, the foreign exchange outgo was ` 928.90 Lakhs (Prev. Yr. ` 657.22 Lakhs) and the foreign 

exchange earnings on exports on FOB Basis were ` 500.35 Lakhs (Prev. Yr. ` 3755.14 Lakhs).
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  Extracts of Annual Return 

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013, read 

with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the extracts of the Annual Return as at 

March 31, 2016 forms part of this report as Annexure 6.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

In accordance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors confirms that:

  a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and that there 

is no material departure;

  b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements  and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company  

at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company  for the year; 

  c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting  records as provided in the 

Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company  and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other  irregularities;

  d) The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a “going concern” basis;

  e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company  and that  such controls are 

adequate and were operating effectively; and 

  f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively

Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all of the Company’s employees for their enormous personal efforts as well as 

their collective contribution to the Company’s performance. The Directors would also like to thank the shareholders, customers, 

dealers, suppliers, bankers, Government and all the other business associates for the continuous support given by them to the 

Company and their confi dence in its management.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

     Manoj Pathak Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi 
     Whole Time Director Managing Director  & CFO
               Din No.00606160 Din No. 00325197
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13th August, 2016
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ANNEXURE 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSES TO THE OBSERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSE REMARKS IN AUDITORS’ 

REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013]

With reference to the Statutory Auditors’ Observations, Qualifications and Adverse Remarks in their Audit Reports on the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2016, the Board of Directors’ provides its explanations/
comments as under:

1. Auditors’ observations under Point no. 1 ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ of the Auditors’ Report to the standalone financial 

statements:

 CFSIT Inc, USA has filed Winding-up Petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding Dues of ` 6,548.15 Lakhs 
($10 Million) with the interest @12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. An interest amount comes to  
` 336.08 Lakhs ($0.507 Million) approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements

 Board’s response: The company has taken the advance from customer i.e CFSIT, Inc USA for supply of materials under 
the supply contract entered with them. The said supply is yet to take place due to various business issues. Further the final 
confirmation and amount of overdue interest with the said customer is under discussion and yet to finalise, hence we have not 
made any provision of interest on said outstanding overdue in the books of accounts. 

2.  Auditors’ observations under point no 2 ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ of the Auditors’ Report to the standalone financial 

statements:

 PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding 
Dues of ` 1778.18 Lakhs with the interest @16.4% p.a. The proceeding is pending before Hon'ble Bombay High Court. An 
interest amount comes to ` 6.28 Lakhs approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements.

 Board’s response: In this case the bank has charged penal interest at the higher rates, due to delay in repayments, which the 
company is contesting and not admitting. Further the matter is under litigation also, hence based on opinion of legal expert/
solicitors of the Company, the said additional liability has not been recorded in the books.

3. Auditors’ observations under point no 2 ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ of the Auditors’ Report to the standalone financial 

statements:

 Axis bank has imposed Penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 Lakhs. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in the 
statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank. 

 Board’s response The Axis bank has charged penal charges and debited the same in the account of the company, without 
confirmation and proper details. We are in discussion with the bank to remove the said charges, on which the bank has also 
in-principally agreed and approval for the respective authorities is yet to receive. Since this is not a liability which company is 
supposed to pay, hence we have not recorded the same as expense in the books, else recovering this amount as liability will be 
more difficult to receive from bank.

 Note: Matters reported in matter of emphasis by Auditors are self explanatory and do not require any additonal comments from 
Board.
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ANNEXURE 2 

Form AOC-I

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES

Sl. No. Particulars Name of the Subsidiary

Usher Eco Power Limited
` in Lakhs

Usher Worldwide FZE

1 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting period

1 April 2015 to

31 March 2016

1 April 2015 to

31 March 2016

2 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries. 

Indian Rupees AED (United Arab Emirates) 

3 Share capital 8808.55 AED 150000 

4 Reserves & surplus (441.19) 2082000

5 Total assets 26720.15 14192491

6 Total Liabilities 18352.78 11280491

7 Investments - -

8 Turnover 5045.23 14273864

9 Profit before taxation (Loss) (280.91) 2212180

10 Provision for taxation (Deffered Tax) 226.22 Nil

11 Profit after taxation (54.68) 2212180

12 Proposed Dividend Nil Nil

13 % of shareholding 69.49% 100%

Notes 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. N.A

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : NA 

3. Part B of the Annexure is not applicable as there are no associate companies/ joint ventures of the Company as on 31st March,  
 2016.
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ANNEXURE 3 

The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken

Usher has taken its obligation to the society and the people in need especially in under developed areas of the Mathura with special 

emphasis in the surrounding areas of the projects financed by Usher. While state have carrying out a number of development projects, 

Usher on its part likes to participate / contribute and makes its presence in social, economic, infrastructural, educational, cultural 

activities etc.

Your Company’s focus areas under CSR

•	 Promotion	of	Education,	Sports	to	children	

•	 	Ensure	 commitment	 at	 all	 levels	 of	 the	 Organization	 to	 operate	 its	 business	 in	 an	 economically,	 socially	&	 environmentally	

sustainable manner, while recognizing the interest of all the stake holders

•	 	Built	a	community	where	women	and	children,	orphans,	senior	citizen	and	people	with	disabilities	lead	healthy	and	nourished	life,	

adopt measure for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.

•	 Environment	Protection	and	preservation.

Web-Link to the CSR Policy

http://www.usheragro.com/investors-policies.html

Composition of CSR Committee

Your Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee to monitor the CSR activities.

Members of the committee are

 1.  Mr. Manoj Pathak 

 2.  Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi 

 3.  Mr. Shriprakash Arora

Details of expenditure of CSR for FY 2014-15 

The Company has made provision for the CSR of Rs. 128.40 lakhs in the FY 2014-15 in the FY 2015-16 the total expenditure 

incurred for CSR is Rs. 64.16 lakhs the remaining amount will be fully utilized in the FY 2016-17

The Company has not made any provision for the CSR in the Financial Year 2015-16 as the Company has incurred loss. However the 

provisions made in the Financial year 2014-15 has not yet been fully Utilised 

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy 

of the company.

Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi     Shriprakash Arora    Manoj Pathak
Managing Director & CFO    Chairman - CSR Committee   Whole Time Director
Din No: 00325197     Din No: 01872519    Din No: 00616061
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ANNEXURE 4 
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 

Usher Agro Limited 

I have conducted the secretarial audit (Standalone basis) of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the corporate 
practices by Usher Agro Limited (CIN no. L01100MH1996PLC100380) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2016 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder read with my letter of even date which is annexed 
as Appendix A and forms an integral part of this report and also that the Company generally followed proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct  
 Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)  
  Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014  
  notified on 28 October 2014. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

The Usher Agro Limited has Issued 50,325 Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Subordinated Non-Convertible Debentures 
(“Debentures” Or “NCDs”) of a Face Value of INR 10,000 each for Cash Aggregating to INR 503,250,000 (The Rupee 
Equivalent Of $ 7,500,000) on 23rd December, 2015 to Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikkelingslanden 
N.V (FMO), Annavan Saksenlaan 71, 2593 HW The Hague, The Netherlands. the Denture trustee is IDBI Trusteeship 
Services Limited, Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001. Tel: +91 22 4080 
7000 Fax: +91 22 6631 1776 Dir: +91 22 4080 7038 E-mail: jatin.bhat@idbitrustee.com 

The proceeds was fully utilised for the Issue of 503250- 12% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 
of Rs. 1000 to Usher Agro Limited by Usher Eco Power Ltd. The financing was utilised for the Expansion of Usher Eco 
Power’s rice husk based waste to energy facility (form 16 MW to 34 MW) and for setting up silica extraction facility to 
generate Silica(50TPD) from ensuing rice husk ash.
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 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993  
  regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the   

  Company during the Audit period) and 

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Company   

  during the Audit period)

(vi) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representation made by the management:

 a) Anti Money Laundering Regulation issued by RBI and various circulars and guidelines thereunder. 

 b) Tax Laws 

	 	 •	 Value	Added	Tax	(VAT)Act	

	 	 •	 Customs	Act,	1962	

	 	 •	 Service	Tax	Act	

	 	 •	 Income	Tax	Act,	1961	

 c) Employee Laws 

	 	 •	 Payment	of	Gratuity	Act,	1972	and	Payment	of	Gratuity	(Central)	Rules,	1972	

	 	 •	 Payment	of	Bonus	Act,	1965	and	Payment	of	Bonus	Rules,	1975	

	 	 •	 Payment	of	Wages	Act,	1936	•	Minimum	Wages	Act,	1948	

	 	 •	 Employees’	Provident	Fund	and	Miscellaneous	Provisions	Act,	1952	&	the	scheme	provided	thereunder	

	 	 •	 Employees’	State	Insurance	Act,	1948	

	 	 •	 The	Maternity	Benefit	Act,	1961	

	 	 •	 The	Contract	Labour	(R&A)	Act,	1970	&	Rules	

	 	 •	 Child	Labour	(Prohibition	and	Regulation)	Act,	1986	

	 	 •	 The	Apprentices	Act,	1961	and	Apprenticeship	Rules,	1991	under	the	above	Rules	

	 	 •	 Industrial	Disputes	Act,	1947	

	 	 •	 Workmen’s	Compensation	Act,	1923	

	 	 •	 Industrial	Employment	(Standing	Orders)	Act,	1946	

 d) Negotiable Instrument Act 

 e) The States Shops and Establishment Act 

 f) Foreign Trade Policy 

 g) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Secretarial Standards with respect to board and 

general meetings of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are not in force as on the date of this report).

(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock 

Exchange and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above. subject to the following observations:

i) Non-compliance of provision of Section 186 related to Loans and Investment by Company and Section 188 regarding 

Related party transaction.

ii) The company has not made any provisions for expense towards Corporate Social Responsibility during the current 

financial year. In the year 2014-15, the company had made provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility but has not 

fully utilized the amount as per the CSR policy of the company.
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iii) CFSIT Inc, USA has filed winding-up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding dues of ` 6,548.14 

lakh ($10 Million) with the interest @ 12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. An interest amount 

comes to ` 336.08 lakh ($0.507 Million) approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial 

statements.

Had the company made such interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been 

higher by ` 336.08 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

iv) PT Bank maybank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed winding up petition against the company for recovery of their 

outstanding Dues of ` 1778.18 lakh with the interest @ 16.4% p.a. The proceeding is pending before Hon’ble Bombay 

High Court. An interest amount comes to Rs. 6.28 lakh approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the 

financial statements.

 Had the company made such Interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been 

higher by ` 6.28 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

v) Axis bank has imposed penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 lakh. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in 

the statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank.

 Had the company expensed out such penal charges in the statement of profit and loss, the loss for the year would have 

been higher by ` 70.45 lakh and accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount and short term 

borrowing would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

Vi) The Company has paid penalty under Reg. 33 (3) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for Non submission of the Financial 

Results for the Quarter & year ended 31.03.2016 the Company has paid Rs. 86250 to BSE limited and Rs. 4, 60,590 for 

National stock Exchange of India Limited..

Vii) Invocation of Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) by lenders: As per the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Lenders 

Forum (JLF) held on May 13, 2016, the lenders have decided in favour of invocation of Strategic Debt Restructuring 

(SDR) in the Company to preserve the value of the Company and adopted the "Reference Date" for the purpose as May 

13, 2016. 

viii) Disputed liabilities related to Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales tax, Vat and cess, Stamp Duty Act, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, 

Service Tax.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 

Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes 

on Agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the Agenda 

items before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Palak Desai
   Company Secretary

C.P.No.7426

Place: Mumbai  
Date : 13/08/2016 

 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix A and forms an integral part of this report.
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APPENDIX A

To,

The Members

Usher Agro Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 

the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events, etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 

management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

6. I do not assure / confirm by virtue of this report that the company is in 100% compliance with the requirements of various statue/ 

laws since we have carried out this out on test check basis

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Palak Desai
Company Secretary

C.P.No.7426

Place: Mumbai                                                      
Date : 13/08/2016
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ANNEXURE 5 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 

of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the company for the 
financial year 2015-16

(Explanation: (i) the expression “median” means the numerical 
value separating the higher half of a population from the lower half 
and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging 
all the observations from lowest value to highest value and picking 
the middle one; (ii) if there is an even number of observations, the 
median shall be the average of the two middle values)

Name of Director category Ratio

Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi

Manoj Pathak 

Mr. Vijay Ranchan
Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora
Mr. Shriprakash Arora
Mr. Prem Chand Tiwari
Ms. Baljinder Kaur 
Mandal    

Managing Director & CFO

Whole Time Director 

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Nominee Director

51:1

32:1

-
-
-
-
-

(ii)  the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2015-16

NIL

(iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 2015-16

NIL

(iv)   the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company 
is  

482

(v)   average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration;

In view of the losses incurred by the Company during 
the financial year 2015-16, there was no increase in the 
managerial remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013The percentage increase in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year 
is Nil. There is no increment in the FY 2015-16.

(vi)   the key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors;

There are no variable components availed by executive 
directors except commission for Non Executive directors upto 
1% of the net profit as is approved in the AGM dated 21st  
December, 2012.this is supplemented by various component  
in form of sitting fees for attending Board & its Committee 
Meeting.

(vii)  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company.

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the 
Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees, adopted by the Company

Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi
Managing Director& CFO

None of the Employee of the Company was in receipt of salary which, in the aggregate, was not less than sixty lakhs rupees or if 

employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, 

was not less than five lakh rupees per month; or



43

20th Annual Report 2015-2016

ANNEXURE 6 
FORM NO. MGT.9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year nine months ended on 31st March, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I Registration and Other Details

CIN L01100MH1996PLC100380

Registration Date: 20.06.1996

Name of the Company Usher Agro Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Public Company / Limited by shares

Address of the Registered office and Contact 
Details 

422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi Industrial Estate, New Link Road, 
Andheri west, Mumbai- 400053.

Whether listed company Yes 

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any:

Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. E2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road, 
Sakinaka, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 072. 
Tel: +91-22-28470632/53 Fax: +91-22-28475207 
Email: shubhangi@bigshareonline.com

II Principal Business Activities of the Company
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:

Sr. No. Name and Description of 
main products / services

NIC Code of the
 Product/ service

% to total turnover of 
the Company

1. Rice & rice products wheat 10612 85.68%

III Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Sl. No. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section 

1. Usher Eco Power Limited.
422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi 
Industrial Estate, New Link Road, 
Andheri West- 400 053

U40102MH2007PLC172552 Subsidiary 69.48 2(87)(ii)

2. Usher Worldwide FZE

Executive Suite Z3-72
P.O.Box 123002
Sharjah-U.A.E

N.A Wholly Own 
Subsidiary

100 2(87)(ii)

IV  Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i. Statement showing Shareholding Pattern

Sr. no.
(I)

Category of 
shareholder (II)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during 
the yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

(A) Promoter and 
Promoter Group2

(1) Indian
(a) Individuals/Hindu 

Undivided Family
8308630 0 8308630 21.83 7883630 7883630 20.71 1.11

(b) Central Government/
State Government(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -
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(c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(d) Financial Institutions/
Banks

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(e) Any Other (Total) 3953740 0 3953740 10.39 3953740 3953740 10.39 -

(e1) Group Companies 3953740 0 3953740 10.39 3953740 3953740 10.39 -
Sub-Total (A)(1) 12262370 0 12262370 32.22 11837370 11837370 31.1 1.11

(2) Foreign

(a) Individuals (Non-
Resident Individuals/
Foreign Individuals)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

(b) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

(d) Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

(e) Any Other (Total) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 -

Total Shareholding 
of Promoter and 
Promoter Group 
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

12262370 0 12262370 32.22 11837370 11837370 31.1 1.11

(B) Public 
shareholdings3

-

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds/UTI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(b) Financial Institutions/
Banks

1599453 0 1599453 4.20 1400635 0 1400635 3.68 0.52

(c) Central Government/
State Government(s) 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(d) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(e) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(f) Foreign Institutional 
Investors

2844767 0 2844767 7.47 2844767 2844767 7.47 -

(g) Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(h) Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

(i) Any Other (Total) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 -

Sub-Total (B)(1) 4444220 0 4444220 11.68 4245402 4245402 11.15 0.52

(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate 8113963 8113963 21.32 7917980 7317980 19.23

(b) Individuals - i. 
Individual 
Shareholders Holding 
Nominal Share 
Capital Up To >` 2 
Lakhs

5600217 115 5600102 14.71 815107 115 815107 21.42 0.57

Individuals - 
ii. Individual 
Shareholders Holding 
Nominal Share 
Capital In Excess Of  
` 4 Lakhs

6836427 0 6836427 17.96 5563011 5563011 14.62 3.45

(c) Qualified Foreign 
Investor

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -

(d) Any Other (Total) 801842 0 801842 2.11 8262179 8262179 21.70 0.61

(d1) Clearing Member 61621 0 61621 0.16 273675 273675 0.72 0.56

(d2) Non Resident Indians 738032 0 738032 1.94 368335 368335 0.97 0.97
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(d3) Unclaimed Suspense 
Account

2189 0 2189 0.01 2189 0 2189 0.01

Sub-Total (B)(2) 21352334 115 21352449 56.10 21976267 0 21976267 57.75 1.65

Total Public 
Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

25796554 115 25796669 67.78 26221669 115 26221669 68.09 1.12

TOTAL (A)+(B) 38059039 38058924 100.00 38059039 38058924 100.00

(C) Shares held by 
Custodians and 
against which 
Depository Receipts 
have been issued

0 0 0 N.A. 0 0 0

C1 Promoter and 
Promoter Group

0 0 0 N.A. 0 0 0

C2 Public 0 0 0 N.A. 0 0 0

GRAND TOTAL 
(A)+(B)+(C)

38058924 115 38059039 N.A. 38058924 115 38059039 100.00

ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

% change in 
share holding 

during the 
year

1. Vinod Kumar 
Chaturvedi 

4692470 12.33 10,000 4567470 12.00 951476 125000

2. Manoj Pathak 3284060 8.63 NIL 3284060 8.63 951476 NIL
3. Narayani Nivesh 

Nigam Private 
Limited

2008740 5.28 450000 2008740 5.28 300,000 NIL

4. Usher Capitals 
Limited

1500000 3.94 NIL 1500000 3.94 NIL NIL

5. Samata Vinodkumar 
Chaturvedi

332100 0.87 NIL 32100 0.08 NIL 300000

6. Vedika Finance 

Private Limited

445000 1.17 NIL 445000 1.17 NIL NIL

Total 12262370 32.22 460000 11837370 31.10 2202952 425000

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company 

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. At the beginning of the year 12262370 32.22 11837370 31.1

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease 

I. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi 
17.07.2015- Sale

(125000) 0.32 4567470 12.00

II. Samata Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi

17.12.2015 (59663) 0.72 2,72,437 0.0

22.12.2015 (32924) 0.63 2,39,513

29.12.2015 (207413) 0.08 32,100 

3. At the end of the year 12262370 32.22 11837370 31.10
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

01.07.2014

Date Reason Increase / Decrease in 
Shareholding

Cumulative 
shareholding during 

the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

1. Abhi Ambi Financial Services Limited 4951893 13.01 31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 4951893 13.01 4951893 13.01

2. Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited 2590312 6.81 31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 2590312 6.81 2590312 6.81

3. Axis Bank Limited 1461697 3.84 14,61,697 4.93

31-Mar-15 Sale of shares -100 0.0 14,61,697 3.84

3-Apr-15 Sale of shares -6600 0.01 14,61,697 3.84

10-Apr-15 Sale of shares -8000 0.02 14,61,597 3.84

17-Apr-15 Sale of shares -27000 -0.07 14,54,997 3.82

24-Apr-15 Purchase of hares 30000 0.08 14,46,997 3.80

8-May-15 Purchase of shares 7000 0.02 14,19,997 3.73

15-May-15 Sale of shares -5000 -0.01 14,49,997 3.81

22-May-15 Sale of shares -5230 -0.01 14,56,997 3.83

29-May-15 Sale of shares -15000 -0.04 14,51,997 3.82

5-Jun-15 Sale of shares -2408 -0.01 14,46,767 3.80

30-Jun-15 Purchase of shares  4300 0.01 14,31,767 3.76

10-Jul-15 Sale of shares -926 0.00 14,29,359 3.76

31-Jul-15 Sale of shares 7370 0.02 14,33,659 3.77

21-Aug-15 Sale of shares -8572 -0.02 14,32,733 3.76

4-Sep-15 Sale of shares -4300 -0.01 14,40,103 3.78

11-Sep-15 Sale of shares -15000 -0.04 14,31,531 3.76

25-Sep-15 Sale of shares -9330 -0.02 14,27,231 3.75

30-Sep-15 Sale of shares -9901 -0.03 14,12,231 3.71

9-Oct-15 Sale of shares -13295 -0.03 14,02,901 3.69

13-Nov-15 Purchase of shares  10139 0.03 13,93,000 3.66

25-Dec-15 Sale of shares -175100 -0.46 13,79,705 3.63

31-Dec-15 Purchase of shares  65130 0.17 13,89,844 3.65

8-Jan-16 Purchase of shares  3315 0.01 12,14,744 3.19

15-Jan-16 Sale of shares -47440 -0.12 12,79,874 3.36

22-Jan-16 Sale of shares -5000 -0.01 12,83,189 3.37

31-Mar-16 Sale of shares -100 0.00 12,35,749 3.25

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 12,35,749 3.25

4. Hemchand C Gandhi 4,12,336 3.46 4,12,336 3.46

6-Nov-15 Sale of shares -115291 -0.30 2,97,045 0.78

31-Dec-15 Sale of share -297045 -0.78 0 0.00

31.03.2016 At the end of the year - - 0 0.0

5. Nirmal Narendra Kotecha 11,04,048 2.90 31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 11,04,048 2.90 11,04,048 2.90

6. GAURAV B GUPTA 3,89,000 1.35 3,89,000 1.35

26-Jun-15 Purchase of shares 4000 0.01 3,35,915 0.88

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 3,35,915 0.88

7 BALRAJ KRISHAN GUPTA 3,98,994 1.05 3,98,994 1.05

1-May-15 Purchase of shares 3078 0.01 4,02,072 1.06

6-Nov-15 Purchase of shares 16028 0.04 4,18,100 1.10

8-Jan-16 Purchase of shares 6000 0.02 4,24,100 1.11

12-Feb-16 Purchase of shares 7121 0.02 4,31,221 1.13

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 4,31,221 1.13

8 Newway Constructions Limited 3,89,000 1.02 3,89,000 1.02

8-Jan-16 Sale of share -50000 -0.13 3,39,000 0.89

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 3,39,000 0.89

9 Pushpalata Saraogi 3,76,000 0.87 31-Mar-16 3,76,000 0.87

10 Ajaykant Ramprasad Ruia 3,69,000 0.97 3,69,000 0.97

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year - - 3,69,000 0.97

11. GAURAV B GUPTA 3,31,915 0.87 3,31,915 0.87

26-Jun-15 Purchase of shares 4000 0.01 3,35,915 0.88

31-Mar-16 At the end of the year 3,35,915 0.88
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. of shares % of total shares of 

the company
No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company

1 Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi

At the beginning and at the end of the 
year-the sale of 125000 share

4692470 12.33 4567470 12.00

2. Mr. Manoj Pathak

At the beginning and at the end of the 
year-No change for the year ended 31 
March 2016

3284060 8.63 3284060 8.63

3. Mrs. Sarika S Singh NIL NIL NIL NIL

Note: (1) Shareholding of all the other Directors-Nil.

(2) Mrs. Sarika S. Singh (Company Secretary) does not hold any shares in the Company.

V INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (` in Lacs)

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount 82537.21 3852.20 86389.42
ii) Interest due but not paid 308.15 (5.99) 302.16
iii) Interest accrued but not due 82.04 68.05 150.09
Total (i+ii+iii) 82927.40 3914.26 - 86841.66
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 
•	Addition
•	Reduction

6059.11 4721.54 - 10780.65

Net Change         6059.11 4721.54 - 10780.65
Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year
i) Principal Amount 88133.02 8360.38 96493.40
ii) Interest due but not paid 665.39 78.45      743.85
iii) Interest accrued but not due 188.10 196.96 385.06
Total (i+ii+iii) 88986.51 8635.81 - 97622.31

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi

Managing Director & CFO

Mr. Manoj Pathak 

Whole Time Director 

Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

3879498 1213500

1. Stock Option - -

2. Sweat Equity - -

3. Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

- -

4. Others, please specify - -

5. Total (A) 3879498 1213500

6. Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Sr. 
No 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total  
AmountMr. Vijay 

Ranchna
Mr. Ajay 

Prakash Arora
Mr. Shriprakash 

Arora
Mr. Prem 

Chand Tiwari

1 Fee for attending Board/Committee Meetings 255000 255000 135000 120000 765000

2 Commission - - - - -

3 Others, please specify

Total (1) 255000 255000 135000 120000 765000

Note: 1. Commission is for the year 2013-14, paid in year 2014-15.

          2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Sr. 
No

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Baljinder Kaur Mandal (Nominee 
Director appointed by IDBI Bank)

1. Fee for attending Board/Committee Meetings 30000 30000

2. Commission NIL NIL

3. Others, please specify - -

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than Md/Manager/Wtd

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Sarika Singh Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi Total

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

5,75,000 Same as paid in the 
capacity of Managing 
Director 

5,75,000

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify

- - -

5. Others, please specify - - -

6. Total 5,75,000 - 5,75,000

VII PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief Description Details of Penalty /
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT / 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty Regulation 33 
of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015

Non submission of Financial 
Results within 60 days from 

the end of the Quarter

Rs. 86250 BSE Rs. 
460590 NSE

NSE /BSE Paid the 
penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Indian Economic Outlook

India’s economy picked up in Q4 FY 2015-16, driving growth for the full fiscal year to accelerate to a six year high. However, the 
economy remains hampered by falling exports and shrinking fixed investment, and concerns over the methodology of the GDP series 
have led many of our panellists to believe that growth is being overestimated. High-frequency data continue to paint a more subdued 
picture of growth: the manufacturing PMI picked up in June, while the services PMI fell. On a bright note, both rural and urban 
consumption are set to receive a boost after recent developments. A pickup in monsoon rains should support rural households in the 
second half of the year, while the government approved a once-in-a-decade increase to public sector wages and pensions on 29 June. 
Approximately 10 million people will benefit from the raise, which increases wages by 16.0% and pensions by 23.6% following the 
Seventh Pay Commission’s recommendations.

Agriculture sector overview in india

Agriculture plays a vital role in India’s economy. Over 58 per cent of the rural households depend on agriculture as their principal 
means of livelihood. Agriculture, along with fisheries and forestry, is one of the largest contributors to the Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP).

As per estimates by the Central Statistics Office (CSO), the share of agriculture and allied sectors (including agriculture, livestock, 
forestry and fishery) was 15.35 per cent of the Gross Value Added (GVA) during 2015–16 at 2011–12 prices.

India is the largest producer, consumer and exporter of spices and spice products. India's fruit production has grown faster than 
vegetables! making it the second largest fruit producer in the world. India's horticulture output, comprising fruits, vegetables and 
spices,has reached to a record high of 283.5 million tonnes (MT) in 2014-15. It ranks third in farm and agriculture outputs. Agricultural 
export constitutes 10 per cent of the country’s exports and is the fourth-largest exported principal commodity. The agro industry in 
India is divided into several sub segments such as canned, dairy, processed, frozen food to fisheries, meat, poultry, and food grains.

The Department of Agriculture and Cooperation under the Ministry of Agriculture is responsible for the development of the agriculture 
sector in India. It manages several other bodies, such as the National Dairy Development Board (NDDB), to develop other allied 
agricultural sectors.

Over the recent past, multiple factors have worked together to facilitate growth in the agriculture sector in India. These include 
growth in household income and consumption, expansion in the food processing sector and increase in agricultural exports. Rising 
private participation in Indian agriculture, growing organic farming and use of information technology are some of the key trends in 
the agriculture industry.

As per the 3rd Advance Estimates, India's food grain production has increased marginally to 252.23 million tonnes (MT) in the 2015-
16 crop year. Production of pulses isestimated at 17.06 million tonnes.

With an annual output of 146.31 MT, India is the largest producer of milk, accounting for 18.5 per cent of the total world production. 
It also has the largest bovine population. India, the second-largest producer of sugar, accounts for 14 per cent of the global output. It 
is the sixth-largest exporter of sugar, accounting for 2.76 per cent of the global exports.

Spice exports from India are expected to reach US$ 3 billion by 2016–17 due to creative marketing strategies, innovative packaging, 
strength in quality and strong distribution networks. The spices market in India is valued at ̀  40,000 crore (US$ 5.87 billion) annually, 
of which the branded segment accounts for 15 per cent.In fact, the Spices Board of India has decided to set up a spice museum at 
Willingdon Island in Kochi to attract and educate tourists and seafarers about the history and growth of Indian spices industry.

The procurement target for rice during marketing season (MS) 2015–16 has been finalised as 30 MMT.
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The agriculture sector in India is expected to generate better momentum in the next few years due to increased investments in 
agricultural infrastructure such as irrigation facilities, warehousing and cold storage. Factors such as reduced transaction costs and 
time, improved port gate management and better fiscal incentives would contribute to the sector’s growth. Furthermore, the growing 
use of genetically modified crops will likely improve the yield for Indian farmers.

According to the National Institution for Transforming India Aayog (NITI Aayog), India’s agriculture sector is expected to grow 6 per 
cent in FY 2016-17 in case of normal monsoon during the June-September period. The 12th Five-Year Plan estimates the foodgrains 
storage capacity to expand to 35 MT. Also, a 4 per cent growth would help restructure the agriculture sector in India in the next few 
years.

Indian Food Processing Sector: 

Food Processing Industry - India

•	 The	Indian	food	processing	industry	is	highly	fragmented	and	comprises	of	basic	food	and	value	added	food	segments.	

•	 The	following	are	the	sub	segments	of	the	food	processing	industry	–	paddy	processing,	wheat	and	pulses	processing,	fruits	and	
vegetables, milk and milk products, beer and alcoholic beverages, meat and poultry, marine products, packaged or convenience 
food and packaged drinks

•	 Rice	and	wheat	are	essential	commodities,	and	are	included	within	the	purview	of	the	Essential	Commodities	Act,	1955	and	
consequently, their production supply and distribution are regulated by the state and central government.

Paddy Processing 

•	 India	is	currently	the	second	largest	producer	of	rice	contributing	to	about	24%	of	the	global	production.	The	main	growing	areas	
for rice in India include the Northern Grain belt comprising of Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Haryana, Bihar, West Bengal and Andhra 
Pradesh in the South.

•	 Indian	Rice	Industry	constitutes	of	two	forms	of	rice,	basmati	and	non-	basmati	rice.	Any	type	of	rice	which	is	not	basmati	rice	
is grouped under non-basmati rice.

•	 The	basmati	rice	production	of	India	constitutes	less	than	1	per	cent	of	the	total	rice	produced	in	India.	The	non-	basmati	sector	
constitutes more than 99% of the total rice produced in India highlighting the huge demand for the non-basmati sector in India. 
The non basmati rice produced all over India while basmati produced Haryana and Punjab only.

•	 The	Government	of	India	extends	price	support	to	paddy	(Minimum	Support	Price)	from	farmers	through	the	FCI	and	State	
Agencies. 

•	 Post	milling	by	rice	millers,	the	Government	of	India	also	procures	rice	from	the	rice	millers	and	rice	dealers	through	a	statutory	
levy system. 

•	 Under	the	statutory	levy	system,	the	price	and	the	percentage	of	levy	rice	that	the	rice	millers	should	sell	to	the	Government	
is fixed by State Governments with the approval of Central Government taking into account requirements for the Central Pool, 
domestic consumption and marketable surplus. 

•	 The	demand	for	rice	is	estimated	to	reach	about	202	million	tonnes	by	2020	with	a	major	proportion	of	the	demand	coming	from	
the non-basmati segment.

Wheat Processing

•	 India	is	the	second	largest	producer	of	wheat	in	the	world.	Wheat	production	is	about	90	million	tons	per	year	in	India	and	
accounts for approximately 12 per cent of world production.

•	 Wheat	is	mainly	sold	after	crushing	or	rolling	as	wheat	products	which	are	commonly	classified	based	on	the	fineness	of	the	grain	
into – atta, maida, suji, rava and bran.

•	 Similar	to	the	paddy	procurement,	 the	Government	extends	price	support	(Minimum	Support	Price)	to	wheat	from	farmers	
through the FCI and State Agencies. 

•	 In	case	of	wheat	(unlike	rice),	post	milling,	there	is	no	statutory	levy	system	in	place.

•	 The	demand	for	specialty	wheat	flour	has	also	increased	due	to	the	growth	of	fast	foods	such	as	pizzas,	hamburgers	and	cakes	
and increased consumption of pasta products.

•	 Going	forward,	with	the	easy	availability	of	wheat	for	the	next	few	years,	increasing	urbanization,	and	rising	income	levels,	the	
demand for the wheat milling industry is expected to grow rapidly in the future.
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Pulses Processing

•	 India	is	the	largest	producer	of	pulses	in	the	world	with	25	per	cent	share	in	the	global	production.

•	 Chick	Peas	(chana),	Pigeon	Peas	(arhar/toor	dal),	Urad	beans	(urad	dal),	Moong	beans	(moong)	and	red	lentils	(masoor)	are	
the top five pulses grown in India and account for over 80 per cent of the total pulses production in the country.

•	 The	state	of	Madhya	Pradesh	is	the	largest	pulse	producer,	accounting	for	about	26	percent	of	total	production	and	the	other	
states with significant output include Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh, and Bihar.

•	 The	projected	pulse	requirement	by	the	year	2030	is	estimated	at	about	32	million	tonnes.

Indian Rice Industry 

Rice is the staple food of 65% of India’s population and its cultivation is a major source of employment in South Asia. India, Bangladesh 
and Pakistan supply almost 30% of the world’s paddy rice. India is one of the world’s largest producer of white rice and brown rice, 
accounting for 20% of all world rice production. The non- basmati sector constitutes more than 99% of the total rice produced in 
India, where your company is primarily present. Indian states of the south and the east are very strong rice cultivation areas. These 
include the highly populated states of West Bengal and Tamil Nadu and mid-sized states with distinctive cultural traditions such as 
Kerala and Orissa. Rice is also grown to an extent across much of the rest of India. Rice fields can even be found up to moderate 
elevations in India’s Himalayan states. Rice being the key staple for India, the government has covered the crop under National Food 
Security Act as well as Minimum Support Price (MSP) Scheme. There is a cohesive focus on maintaining the demand supply balance 
in the country. Food Corporation of India plays a major role in procuring adequate volumes, which in turn reaches people through the 
Targeted Public Distribution System (TDPS). Favourable policy initiatives towards exports are encouraging the rice industry towards 
higher exports. The packaged rice market in India was valued at INR 122 billion in 2012, and is growing at a CAGR of over 30% for 
the past three years. It is projected to reach ` INR 333 billion by 2016.

Demand Drivers

•	 Increasing	disposable	income	is	leading	to	increased	overall	consumption	and	also	of	branded	high	quality	rice.	Rice,	being	the	
major staple food of Indian population will also see a rise in demand in response to increase in per capita income.

•	 Evolving	lifestyle	in	urban	areas	is	translating	into	increased	demand	for	high-end	variants	such	as	organic,	nutrient-rich	and	
healthier brown rice. 

•	 Increasing	popularity	of	rice-based	snacks	and	other	eatables	in	increasing	institutional	demand.

•	 Growing	popularity	of	 large	 format	 retail	 is	enabling	marketers	 to	 launch	and	display	more	and	more	specialized	varieties,	
leading to higher than usual offtake off the shelves.

•	 Increasing	preference	towards	eating	out	is	leading	to	increasing	demand	from	HORECA	segment.	Rice	marketers’	response	
with niche variants for restaurant is also adding to the growth.

Cultivation of Rice 
There are three seasons of rice growing viz. autumn, winter and summer.

Autumn Rice is Pre-Kharif rice sown during May to August; and harvested in September-October. Autumn rice crop accounts for only 
7-8% of total rice grown. 

Winter Rice is the Kharif rice in India, sown in June-July and harvested in November-December. This accounts for 84% rice cultivation 
in India. 

Summer rice is also called Rabi rice sown from November to February and harvesting time is March to June. This accounts for 8-9% 
of total rice cultivated in India. 

Thus, rice is predominantly a Kharif crop in India, grown in both irrigated areas as well as rain-fed areas with high rainfall. It requires 
hot and humid conditions for growing with 24° C mean temperature and 150-300 cm rainfall. The crop is predominantly labor oriented 
and is not much suitable for heavy farm mechanization. With regard to the soil, rice is grown both in uplands and lowlands. On this 
basis, there are several methods of rice growing such as Dry or Semi-dry upland cultivation; Broadcasting the seed; Sowing the seed 
behind the plough or drilling; Wet or lowland cultivation; Transplanting in puddled fields; Broadcasting sprouted seeds in puddled fields 
etc. http://www.gktoday.in/blog/important-facts-about-rice-production-in-india/
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Minimum Support Prices

In India prices of agriculture commodities is controlled by the Government. Government announces Minimum Support Price(MSP) 
for 24 agriculture commodities including paddy. Government policy aimed at boosting production by way of ensured price realization 
to the farmers. The Minimum Support Price for Paddy (Common) has increased from ` 1250 per quintal in 2012-13 to ` 1470 per 
quintal for the 2016-17 and Paddy (Grade A) has increased from ` 1280 per quintal in 2012-13 to ` 1510 per quintal in 2016-17 
seasons. 

Rice is an essential commodity, and is included within the purview of the Essential Commodities Act, 1955 and consequently, its 
production supply and distribution are regulated by the state and central government. The Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food & Public 
Distribution imposes levy quota on rice, which specifies that producers/owners of rice mills shall sell the specified quantity of rice to 
Government specified agencies under levy Scheme at a predetermined price.

The levy quota varies from state to state viz. at Bihar it is 40% and at Uttar Pradesh it is 75%. Food Corporation of India is 
undertaking assured procurement of food grains on behalf of Government of India throughout the country. About 20 to 25% of the 
total rice production in the country is purchased both under levy from the rice mills and directly in the form of paddy from the farmers.

About Usher Agro Limited

Usher Agro Limited, promoted by Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi was incorporated as a public limited company on June 20, 1996.  
The company was formed with the main objective of manufacturing and processing agro-based products and to deal in, trade, export 
or import such products. Currently, Usher Agro Limited is primarily engaged in processing of non- basmati rice (including raw white 
rice, par-boiled rice and steam rice of different grades), basmati rice and wheat products such as atta, maida, suji, etc. UAL is selling 
its products to wholesalers, big organised retailers etc. under the brand “Rasoi Raja”, which is a registered trademark. UAL operates 
majorly in locations including Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Rajashthan, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh and NCR which are among the main rice 
and wheat growing regions in India and is the largest rice miller in the states of Uttar Pradesh and Bihar.

UAL is operating in food processing industry, considered to be one of the fast growing industrial segments having huge potential for 
growth. The company is mainly into Rice Milling (mainly Non-Basmati rice) and Wheat flour Milling. Additionally, the company has a 
One MW co-generation (Rise Husk Power plant). The following table details the product portfolio of UAL:

Product Mix proportion of UAL

RAW RICE PARBOILED/
STEAMED RICE

BROWN RICE WHEAT PRODUCTS

Pusa 1121 Pusa 1121 Pusa 1121 Whole Meal Atta (Chakki 
Wheat flour)

Duplicate Basmati Duplicate Basmati Parimal PR-106 R-Atta

Parimal/ PR 11/ Common 
IR-8 

Parimal/PR11/Common IR-8 Basmati Samolina Premium (Rawa/
Semolina)

Masourie/ Sonam Masourie/ Sonam Pusa Basmati Fine & Superfine Wheat flour 
(White flour)

Sugandha Sugandha Bran (Choker)

Sharbati Sharbati

Basmati Basmati

Pusa Basmati Pusa Basmati

UAL is selling its products to wholesalers, big purchasers etc. under the brand “Rasoi Raja”, which is a registered trademark. As of 
FY 15, rice constituted nearly 86% of the turnover, while wheat and pulses forms the balance 14%.
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Manufacturing facilities
The company has three factories at Mathura, Chhata and Buxar. With a view to fuel the future growth, the company has recently 
completed setting up a Greenfield paddy processing unit of 4.86 lacs MTPA, pulse processing unit of 1.06 lacs MTPA and pulse floor 
mill of 23100 MTPA at Chhata – opposite to its existing unit.  The production capacities (post expansion) are as summarized as 
follows:

Plant Location Installed Capacity in MTPA

Rice

Rice milling

Mathura, U.P.* 10,800

Buxar, Bihar 96,800

Chhata, U.P 486,000

Chhata, U.P 500,000

Subtotal 1,093,600

Wheat

Wheat roller flour mill
Mathura, U.P.* 75,000

Chhata, U.P 50,000

Subtotal 125,000

Pulse processing unit Chhata, U.P 1,28,700

Subtotal 1,28,700

Total 13,47,300

* UAL also has a 1 MW Co-generation plant in the Mathura Factory

UAL plants are strategically located. In Chhata and Mathura the factories are close to Mathura Delhi Highway and close to Agriculture 
Produce Mandi. Hence, raw material (paddy for rice mill and wheat for flour, white flour and semolina) is very easily available. The 
Buxar factory is also close to railway station. Buxar is a rich paddy cultivating area popularly known as Dhan Katora “Paddy Bowl” 
and enjoys two seasons of paddy cultivation.

The power plant at Mathura is using Husk (a by-product of Rice Mill). The power generated is for captive use and helps in reducing 
power cost.

Apart from this, the company has set up a Silica plant at Chhata which has started commercial operations in July’16. The technology 
for the manufacturing of silica is a patented technology obtained from IISC, Bangalore. The rice husk contains silica which in turn 
is used for power generation. However, the silica does not get burned and it remains with the ash content. The ash constitutes 90% 
of silica. This technology helps in extracting silica from the ash. The company has finalised a contract with Good Year for the entire 
take-off of the silica extracted from the ash.
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Risk Analysis

Risk Factors Risk Mitigants

Availability of Raw Materials: The raw material required for the milling of rice is paddy which is abundantly available in 
Mathura and Koshi. The Company has already established procurement networks and no 
difficulty is envisaged in procuring the raw materials. The Company would be procuring the 
raw materials directly from the farmers, Anaj Mandi and the local suppliers. The following 
table details the major sourcing locations for the raw materials,

Products Major source locations

Domestic Import

Pigeon Peas (Tuvar Dal) M. P. & Maharashtra Burma & Tanzania

Chick Peas (Chana Dal) U. P., Rajasthan & M. P. Australia & Canada

Red Lentils (Masoor Dal) U. P. -

Yellow Peas (Watana Dal) U. P. Canada

Moong Beans & Urad M. P., Rajasthan & Maharashtra Burma & China

Paddy U.P., Haryana, Bihar, Punjab & 
Rajasthan. Already procurement 
is going on from more than 95 
locations across these states

Mathura Agro Product Mandi is one of largest paddy sourcing mandi in U.P. and UAL already 
has an efficient procurement system / infrastructure in place as the 5 Lakhs MTPA rice mill 
plant at Chatta is already operational. Even after expansion of the capacity to 5.43 Lakhs 
TPA, UAL would account for less than 1% of the total rice production of India. Hence it is 
not expected to face shortage of raw materials.

Demand Risk Rice is a staple food for nearly 65% of Indians and hence there is no shortage for demand 
of rice. The demand for wheat flour is increasing due to lifestyle changes. Wheat flour and 
other pulses form 14% of the overall sales during FY 15, an increase from 12% in FY14. 
The company has built an existing brand “Rasoi Raja”, which is a registered trademark. UAL 
has commenced export of long grain rice to Middle East countries.  Hence, demand risk may 
be considered low.

Regulation Risk: Government may 
increase the quota under levy 
impacting the company’s margin, 
the government may increase the 
Minimum support price of paddy 
and wheat

A majority of the company’s rice milling capacity is in U.P which has a levy quota of about 
60%, which is on higher side compared to other states like Bihar etc., The company produces 
three varieties of rice, out of which, two varieties are under the levy system and only 15% of 
the production in volume terms would be sold to the government under levy system and the 
balance is sold in the open market. Sales under levy system also give a diversification in the 
total sales portfolio providing a minimum off-take guarantee to the company.

UAL also has the option to switch to Basmati rice (non-levy category) as it has its factory 
close the Haryana border, where the major basmati production in the country takes place.

The increase in Minimum Support Price has historically been followed by an increase in sale 
price of rice to the Government and an increase in market price of rice. Hence, the margins 
of the company remain unaffected to a large extent. 

In view of the above mentioned factors, the company is well insulated against the regulation 
risk.
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USHER AGRO LTD - Key Strengths:

STRATEGIC LOCATION

Our manufacturing facilities are present in Uttar Pradesh and Bihar and have proximity to Haryana state. Together, the three states 

contribute about 19.41% and 53.2% of total rice and wheat production in India respectively

Our presence in Mathura and Chhata brings us closer to the rice deficit states such as Rajasthan, Gujarat and Maharashtra. This gives 

us a logistic advantage to supply products to the consumers in these states. Plants are located near the Mandis leading to lesser 

transport cost.

LARGE CAPACITIES AND ECONOMIES OF SCALE

USHER is amongst the largest producer and processor of non-basmati rice in India, which helps us to achieve better economies of 

scale in procurement, processing, logistics and other areas:

QUALITY CERTIFICATION

The Company’s processes and setup are accredited with international certifications like ISO 9001:2008 for Quality Management 

System and Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (‘HACCP’) Management System certificate from International Industrial 

Certification Company Limited, South Korea, JAS-ANZ, Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and CDG.

STRONG PROCUREMENT NETWORK

Strong distribution network of distributors / agents / traders in more than 45 cities across India.A strong procurement network with 

presence in over 100 mandis.Exclusive agents (pukka arahtiyas) in each of the mandis who procure the raw materials for our plants 

at competitive rates.

EXPORT DISTRIBUTION (International Network)

•	 	Europe:	Italy,	Reunion	union	(Holland,	Israel,	UK,	and	Canada).

•	 Middle	East:	UAE,	Iran,	Saudi	Arabia.

•	 Africa:	Benin,	Ghana,	Mozambique,	Kenya,	Malavi.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented adequate internal control systems and procedures, commensurate with the nature of its business and 

size of its operations. It has implemented adequate internal control system that facilitates adequate and timely completion of the audit 

and compliance process. Our Internal auditor M/s. Dinesh Bangar& Company Chartered Accountants conducts the audit and submits 

periodical reports which are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets several times during the year and reviews the audit reports, audit plans and recommendations 

of the management and auditors.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The key to the success of the Company lies in its people whose skills, expertise, and talent help the Company to achieve and sustain 

its market position. The Company believes that employees are the key to achieve targeted goals and are the primary source of 

competitive advantage thus we have recruited, nurtured and retained some of the best talents in the industry.

Your Company is giving equal importance to develop the intellectual infrastructure by employing the best HR practices such as 

performance management, succession planning, open work culture and effective employee communication. HR systems were improved, 

refined and upgraded to provide better services to business and functions. The Company has stable and experienced middle and senior 

level management team. The industrial relations with the employees at all levels remained cordial during the period under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company has set itself the objective of expanding its capacities and becoming globally competitive in its business. As a part 
of its growth strategy, the Company believes in adopting ‘best practices’ that are followed in the area of Corporate Governance 
across various geographies. The Company emphasizes the need for full transparency and accountability in all its transactions, in 
order to protect the interest of its stakeholders. The Board considers itself as a trustee of its Shareholders and acknowledges its 
responsibilities towards them for creation and safeguarding their wealth. Usher’s Corporate Governance philosophy is based on ethical 
values including honesty, integrity, justice, transparency and responsiveness to stakeholders. Your Company recognizes that good 
Corporate Governance is a continuing exercise and reiterates its commitment to pursue highest standards of Corporate Governance 
in overall interest of the Company and its stakeholders.  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The business of the Company is managed by the Board of Directors. The Board formulates the strategy, regularly reviews the 
performance of the Company and ensures that the previously agreed objectives are met on a consistent basis.

A) Composition of the Board 

The Company’s policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors 
with their diverse knowledge, experience and expertise bring in their independent judgment in the deliberations and decisions of the 
Board.
The Board of Directors, as on 31.03.2016, comprised 7 Directors, of which 2 executive and 4 Non-Executive Independent Directors 
1 Nominee women Director. All Directors possess relevant qualifications and experience in general corporate management, finance, 
banking and other allied fields which enable them to effectively contribute to the Company in their capacity as Directors.The 
composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI LODR 2015.
 
Mr. Manoj Patha- Whole Time Director of the Company is the Brother of Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi- Managing Director & CFO. No 
other Director are related to each other.

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Governance 
Guidelines for Board Effectiveness adopted by the Company. 

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees (Committees 
being Audit Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, across all the Companies in which he/ she is a Director. The 
necessary disclosures regarding committee positions have been made by all the Directors. None of the Directors holds office in more 
than 20 companies and in more than 10 public companies.

The required information, including information as enumerated in Regulation 17(7) read together with Part A of Schedule II of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations is made available to the Board of Directors, for discussions and consideration at the Board Meetings. 
The Board reviews the declaration made by the Managing Director & CFO  regarding compliance with all applicable laws on a 
quarterly, basis as also steps taken to remediate instances of non-compliance, if any. Pursuant to Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Company also submits a quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance to the Indian Stock Exchanges.

Further, Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoters, its 
management or its associates, which in the judgment of the Board may affect independence of judgment of the Director, apart from 
the sitting fees and commission received by them for attending the meetings of the Board. 
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The names and categories of Directors, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year and at the last Annual General 
Meeting, as also the number of Directorships and Committee positions held by them in public limited Companies are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Directors No. of 
Board 

Meeting 
attended

Whether  
last AGM 
Attended

*No. of Directorship Held 
including this Company

No. of Committee 
Membership

No. of shares 
held in Usher 
Agro LimitedChairman Member Total Chairman Member Total

1. Mr. Vinod Kumar 
Chaturvedi 
Managing Director
Din No: 00325197

4/4 Yes - 5 5 -  1 1 4567470

2. Mr. Manoj Pathak
Whole Time Director
Din No:00616061

2/4 Yes - 5 5 - - - 3284060

3. Mr. Vijay Ranchan
Independent Director
Din No:  01602023

4/4 Yes - 3 3 - 4 4 Nil

4. Mr. Ajay Prakash 
Arora
Independent Director
Din No: 01055020

4/4 Yes - 2 2 - 4 4 Nil

5. Mr. Shriprakash Arora
Independent Director
Din No:01872519

4/4 Yes -  1 1 - Nil Nil

6. Ms. Baljinder Kaur 
Mandal    
IDBI Bank Limited 
Nominee Director
Din No:06652016

1/4 No - - - - 1 1 Nil

7. Mr. Prem Chand 
Tiwari
Independent Director
Din No:05182634

4/4 Yes -  - - - Nil - Nil

**Excludes Directorships in, Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Government Bodies and Companies registered under Section 8 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Indian Public Companies have been considered for 

committee positions. 

Four Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2015-16, and the gap between two meetings did not exceed One Hundred 
and Twenty Days. The Board of Directors met on the following dates:

Date of the Meeting 30th May, 2015 12th   Aug 2015  7th Nov 2015 13th  Feb 2016

No of Directors Present 7 6 5 5

Board Procedure 

The agenda and notes on agenda are circulated to the Directors, in advance. All material information is incorporated in the agenda 

for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not practicable to attach any document to the agenda, 

the same is tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In special and exceptional circumstances, 

additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda are permitted.

Code of Conduct
As per SEBI LODR 2015 requires listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for its directors and senior management, incorporating 

duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013.

All the Board members and Senior management (as per regulation 26(3) of the listing regulations) has affirmed compliance with 

applicable code of conduct.

A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director is given in this Annual Report. 
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members 

of management, was held on 5th March, 2016, as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (Code for Independent 

Directors) and Regulation 25 (4) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 to: 

•	 Reviewed	the	performance	of	Non-Independent	Directors	and	the	Board	as	a	whole;

•	 Reviewed	 the	performance	of	 the	Chairman	of	 the	Company,	 taking	 into	account	 the	views	of	Executive	Director	and	Non-

Executive Directors; and

•	 Assessed	the	quality,	quantity	and	timeliness	of	flow	of	information	between	the	Company	management	and	the	Board	that	is	

necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Mr. Vijay Ranchan, Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora, Mr. Shriprakash Arora and Mr. Premchand Tiwari attended the Meeting of Independent 

Directors. Mr. Shri Prakash Arora was the Lead Independent Director of the Meeting.

Board and Director Evaluation and criteria for evaluation
During the year, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors, as well as 

the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria, 

procedure and time schedule for the Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The criteria for 

Board Evaluation include inter alia, degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and 

delineation of responsibilities to various Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning. Criteria for 

evaluation of individual Directors include aspects such as attendance and contribution at Board/ Committee Meetings and guidance/ 

support to the management outside Board/ Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of 

his role, including setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board members and motivating 

and providing guidance to the Managing Director & CFO. Criteria for evaluation of the Committees of the Board include degree of 

fulfilment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings. The procedure followed for the 

performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and Directors is detailed in the Directors’ Report.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature 

of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through various programmes. These include 

orientation programme upon induction of new Directors, as well as other initiatives to update the Directors on a continuing basis. 

The Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors is disclosed on the Company’s website at the following website: www.

usheragro.com 

Whistle Blower Policy 
Pursuant to section 177 (9) of Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th August,  2014, adopted the  

Whistle Blower Policy. 

The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil mechanism provides a mechanism for the director/employee to report violations without fear of 

victimization of any unethical behavior, suspected or actual fraud, violation of the Code of Conduct etc. which are detrimental to the 

organisation’s interest. The mechanism protects whistle blower from any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other 

unfair employment practice. The directors in all cases and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy is placed on the Company’s website www.usheragro.com. 

Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions
During the financial year, the Company entered into transactions with Related Parties defined under the Companies Act, 2013 were 

done on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business as per the Related Party Transaction Policy (RTP) of the Company, 

which was amended from time to time to align with the applicable laws/ regulations. The policy that is adopted in relation to RPT is 

given below and is available on the Company’s website www.usheragro.com
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Prohibition of Insider Trading Policy 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide notification dated January 15, 2015 notified The Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 which shall be effective from May 15, 2015. The Company has amended 

its Insider Trading Prohibition Policy accordingly. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer. The Company has instituted a 

comprehensive code of conduct for its directors, management and officers and the other connected persons with the Practices and 

Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, guidelines and procedures to be made while dealing 

with shares of the Company including the consequences of violations if any. The code clearly specifies, among other matters, that the 

Directors and specified employees of the Company can trade in the shares of the Company only during ‘Trading Window Open Period’. 

The trading window is closed during the time of declaration of results, dividend and material events, etc. as per the Code. Disclosure 

of shareholding is taken from all the directors and Designated Employees and other connected persons of the Company

BOARD COMMITTEES

Presently the Board has Five Committees, Audit Committee, Stakeholder’s relationship, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Finance Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.  

A. Audit Committee

Terms of reference

The Audit Committee functions according to its Charter that defines its composition, authority, responsibilities and reporting 
functions. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:

 The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as under:

 1. To review the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

 2. To Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

 3. To Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory Auditors;

 4. To Review with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the 
Board for approval, with particular reference to;

  i. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in 
terms of sub-section 2(AA) of Companies Act, 1956 and clause (c) of sub section 3 of section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013

  ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

  iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management

  iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

  v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

  vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions

  vii. Qualifications in the draft audit report

 5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

 6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

 7. Review and monitor the Auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

 8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

 9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
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 11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

 12. Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

 13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit Department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

 14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

 15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there  is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

 16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

 18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

 19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

 20. And, generally, all items listed in Clause 49 III (D) of the Listing Agreement and in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

 21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

 Composition and Attendance during the year

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) 2015 
and the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. All members of the Committee are financially literate, with  
Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora, Chairman of the Committee, having the relevant accounting and financial management expertise.  
The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of Meetings attended by the Directors during the year are given below:

Sr. No. Name of the Members Status at the committee Nature of directorship No. of Meeting attended  

1. Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora Chairman Independent,  
Non-Executive 

4

2. Mr. Vijay Ranchan Member Independent,  
Non-Executive

4

3. Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal Member Independent,  
Non-Executive

-

Meetings of the Audit Committee held during FY 2015-16 

During the financial year, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held: 29th May, 2015, 12th August, 2015, 6th November, 
2015, 13th Feb 2016. Necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The meetings of the Audit Committee are usually attended by the Managing Director & CFO, the Head of Internal Audit, the 
Company Secretary and a representative of the Statutory Auditors. 

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as Secretary of the Committee.  The Chairman of the Committee was 
present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2015.

Subsidiary Companies

Independent Directors viz. Mr. Vijay Ranchan and Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora are the Directors on the boards of the non listed Indian 
Subsidiary Company Usher Eco Power Limited. The financial statements and the minutes of the board meetings of the subsidiary 
companies are considered at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.



61

20th Annual Report 2015-2016

B. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In terms of Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievance Committee was renamed 
as Stakeholders Relationship Committee with effect from 28th August, 2014. Following are the terms of reference of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

	 •	 Investor	relations	and	redressal	of	shareholders	grievances	in	general	and	relating	to	non-receipt	of	dividends,	interest,	
non- receipt of balance sheet etc.

	 •	 Such	other	matters	as	may	from	time	to	time	be	required	by	any	statutory,	contractual	or	other	regulatory	requirements	to	
be attended to by such committee.

	 •	 To	approve	request	received	for	transfer,	transmission,	demat	etc.	of	securities	of	the	Company.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once during the year, on 7th November, 2015.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the details of the Meetings attended by the Directors during 
the year are given below: All the members of the Stakeholder relationship committee is Non executive independent Director.

Sr. No. Name of Members Status Category No. of Meeting attended

1 Mr.  Shri Prakash  Arora Chairman Independent, Non-Executive 1

2 Mr.  Ajay Prakash  Arora Member Independent, Non-Executive 1

3 Mr.  Vijay Ranchan Member Independent, Non-Executive 1

   Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer

   Sarika Singh 
   Company Secretary
   Usher Agro Limited
   422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi Industrial Estate,
   New Link Raod, Andheri (w), 
   Mumbai - 400 053 
   Tel No: +91 22 39381100
   Fax No: +91 2239381123
   usherinvestors@usheragro.com

 The complaints or queries relating to shares and/or debentures can be forwarded to registrar and transfer agent Bigshare  
 Services Pvt. Ltd. 

C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprised of three non-executive directors namely, Mr. Shriprakash Arora as the 
Chairman Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora and Mr. Vijay Ranchan as the members of the Committee. All the members of the Committee 
are independent Directors. 

During the year no meeting of Nomination & Remuneration committee Meeting was held.

Sr. No. Name of the Member Status 
at the 

committee

Nature of directorship

1 Mr. Shriprakash Arora Chairman Independent Director

2 Mr. Vijay Ranchan Member Independent Director

3 Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora Member Independent Director

Remuneration Committee has been renamed as Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its terms of reference were 
modified by the Board to comply with Section 178 of Companies Act 2013.
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Terms of reference:

 (1) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may 
be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

 (2) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees.

 (3) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

 (4) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

 (5) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

 (6) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior Management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

 (7) To recommend / review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s)/Executive Director(s) 
based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

 (8) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification, 
amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

 (9) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure that—

  (a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the 
quality required to run the company successfully;

  (b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

  (c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals:

 Remuneration Policy:

 The Company’s philosophy for remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and all other employees is based on the 
commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The Company has adopted a Nomination Remuneration & Evaluation 
policy for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and also the criteria for determining 
the independence of a Director. The objective of the policy is:

	 •	 To	 formulate	 the	 criteria	 for	 determining	 qualifications,	 positive	 attributes	 required	 for	 appointment	 of	Directors,	Key	
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and also the criteria for determining the independence of a Director.

	 •	 To	provide	the	framework	for	tenure,	removal/retirement	of	Directors,	Key	Managerial	Personnel	and	Senior	Management.

	 •	 To	provide	 the	 framework	 for	determining	remuneration	 (fixed	and	performance	 linked)	payable	 to	 the	Directors,	Key	
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

	 •	 To	provide	the	framework	for	evaluation	of	the	performance	of	the	Board	and	its	constituents.

Non-Executive Directors:

Independent Directors (‘ID’) and non-independent non-executive Directors (‘NED’) may be paid sitting fees for attending 
the Meetings of the Board and of Committees of which they may be members, and commission within regulatory limits, as 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) and approved by the Board. In terms of shareholders' 
approval obtained at the Annual General Meeting held on 21st December, 2012, the commission can be paid at a rate not 
exceeding 1% per annum of net profit of the Company. During the year, the Company paid sitting fees of ̀  30,000 per meeting to 
Independent Directors for attending meetings of the Board and Audit Committee Committees. The sitting fees for the Directors 
have been increase to 30,000 per Board & Audit Committee meeting and ` 15,000 for the committee meeting with effect 
from 14th February, 2015. There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the 
Company.
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The details of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors during the financial year 2015-16 is as Under:

Name of Directors Sitting Fees Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
Committee

Commission Total

Board 
Meeting 

Audit 
Committee

Stake holders 
relationship 
Committee

Mr. Vijay Ranchan 1,20,000 1,20,000 15,000 - - 2,55,000

Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora 1,20,000 1,20,000 15,000 - - 2,55,000

Mr. Shri Prakash Arora 1,20,000 - 15,000 - - 1,35,000

Mrs. Baljinder Kaur Mandal 30000 - - - - 30,000

Mr. Prem Chand Tiwari 1,20,000 - - - - 1,20,000

Remuneration for Managing Director (‘MD’)/ Executive Directors (‘ED’)/ Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’)/ rest of the 

Employees.

The Board of Directors in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee decides on the remuneration payable 
to the Managing Director / Executive Director as approved by the Board of Directors and approved by the members, within the 
ceilings prescribed under the Companies Act. 

Remuneration to Executive Director

The terms of remuneration of executive directors has been fixed by board of directors and approved by shareholders. The 
remuneration of executive directors during the financial year 2015- 2016 are as under:

The details of remuneration paid/ payable to the Directors during the financial year 2015-16 are as under.

Particular Remuneration 
including 
Perquisite

Perquisites 
and 

allowances

Commission Period of 
Agreement

Notice 
Period

Stock 
Options

Commission for 
the financial 

year 2014-15, 
paid during 
2015-16

Severance 
fees

Mr. Vinodkumar Chaturvedi 
(Managing Director)

3879498 NIL NIL 5 Year Ninety 
Days

NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Manoj Pathak
(Executive Director)

1213500 NIL NIL 5 Years Ninety 
Days

NIL NIL NIL

At present the Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS). 

Details of shares held by Managing Director and Whole Time Director of the Company as on 31st March, 2016.

Sr. No. Name No of Shares 

1 Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi 4567470

2 Mr. Manoj Pathak 3284060

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on  
28th August, 2014 constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Composition of the Committee:

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation 

1. Mr. Shriprakash  Arora Chairman 

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi Member

3. Mr. Manoj Pathak member
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The Committee's prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way of formulating 
and monitoring implementation of the framework of “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy”, observe practices of Corporate 
Governance at all levels and to suggest remedial measures wherever  necessary. The Committee's constitution and terms 
of reference meet with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee met one time during the year, on  
7th November, 2015.

Terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

 1. Committee's prime responsibility will be  to assist the Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way of formulating 
and monitoring implementation of the framework of “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy”, observe practices of 
Corporate Governance at all levels and to suggest remedial measures wherever  necessary. The Committee's constitution 
and terms of reference meet with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

 2. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to 
be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under;

 3. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

 4. To monitor the implementation of framework of CSR Policy.

 5. To carry out any other function as mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification,     
amendment or modification as may be applicable or as may be necessary or appropriate for performance of its duties.

E. Finance Committee

The Finance committee of the Company was reconstituted on 7th November, 2015 and comprised of following members. The 
meeting held in the Financial year 2015-16 is on 9th July,  2015, 6th May, 2016, 12th May, 2015, 1st September, 2015,  
29th September, 2015,1st October, 2015,10th December, 2015, 23rd December, 2015.  The finance committee comprising of 
following Directors in order to have convenience in expediting day to day matters relating to finance.

Sr. No. Name of Member Status

1. Mr. Ajay Prakash Arora Chairman

2. Mr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi Member

3. Mr. Manoj Pathak Member

 Following are the terms of reference for the finance committee

 (a) borrow and raise such sums of money from time to time as may be required for the purpose of the company’s business, 
subject to the condition that such borrowing shall not exceed Rs.2000 crores and

 (b) invest the surplus funds of the Company, subject to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the 
purchase of shares, debentures, securities and stock certificates, etc. of any private or public limited company or in any 
securities floated by the Central Government or any State Government, however, to the condition that the funds so invested 
shall not exceed Rs. 250 crores.

 (c) Investment Transaction, allotment of shares and/or debentures, borrowing and other routine matters.

 (d) To open/close bank account and to authorize company’s executives/ officers to operate bank account and to withdraw such 
authority from time to time.

 (e) give authority to any members of the committee to discuss the terms and conditions with the lenders, sign all documents 
including agreements, certificates, statements, undertakings, declarations, receipts, deeds, instruments and to do all such 
acts and things as may be necessary on behalf of the Company to give effect to the above resolution.”

 (f) Give guarantees/issue letters of comfort/providing securities within the limits approved by the Board

 (g) Other transactions or financial issues that the Board may desire to have them reviewed by the Finance Committee.
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1. General Body Meetings

   Details of General Body Meetings held during last three Financial Years:

Year Date Venue Time Summary of Special Business Conducted 

2016 20.07.2016 Anmol Banquets Hall, 2nd Floor, 
Harmony Mall At Carnival 
Cinemas, Opposite Royal Enfield 
Showroom, Link Road, Goregaon 
(West), Mumbai - 400104

11.30 a.m Appointment of Statutory Auditors to fill casual 
vacancy

2015 28.09.2015 Nand kripa Banquet Hall, Four 
Bungalow Road, Main Market, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 058

11.30 a.m. To offer or invite for subscription of Non convertible 
Debentures on private placement basis.

2014 20.12.2014 Nand kripa Banquet Hall, Four 
Bungalow Road, Main Market, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 058

11.30 a.m. •	 Appointment	of	Independent	Director	
1. Mr. Vijay Ranchan
2. Mr. Shriprakash Arora 
3. Mr. Ajay Prakash Aroar
4. Mr. Prem Chand Tiwari
•	 Re-appoint	Mr.	Manoj	Pathak	 (DIN:	00616061)	

as a Whole-time Director
•	 approve	borrowing	limits	of	the	Company	Section	

180 (1) (c)Creation of Charge on the assets of the 
Company 180 (1) (a)

2013 23.12.2013 Nand kripa Banquet Hall, Four 
Bungalow Road, Main Market, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 058

11.30 a.m •	 Re-appointment	 of	 Dr.	Vinod	 Kumar	 Chaturvedi-	
Managing Director

•	 Increase	in	borrowing	limits	from	Rs.	1,000	Crores	
to Rs. 2,000 Crores

•	 Creation	of	Charges	on	the	movable	and	immovable	
properties of the Company

•	 Increase	 in	 Authorized	 Share	 Capital	 of	 the	
Company and consequently alteration in Capital 
Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the 
Company:

•	 Amendment	 in	 Articles	 of	 Association	 of	 the	
Company

Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders was held on 20th July, 2016 to fill the casual vacancy caused by resignation 
of Statutory Auditor. During the year under review, no resolution was put through by Postal Ballot.

2.  Other Disclosure Disclosures

 a) During the year, there were no materially significant related party transactions, i.e. transactions of the Company of material 
nature with its promoters, their subsidiaries, the Directors or the management or relatives, etc. That may have potential 
conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The Company has adopted a Policy on Material Subsidiaries and the 
same is displayed on the Company’s website www.usheragro.com. 

 b) The Company has paid penalty under Reg. 33 (3) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for Non submission of the Financial 
Results for the Quarter & year ended 31.03.2016 the Company has paid ` 86,250 to BSE limited and ` 4, 60,590 to 
National stock Exchange of India Limited.  CFSIT Inc. has filed winding up petition for recovery of their outstanding 
dues of ` 6,548.14 lakhs with the interest @12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. PT Bank May 
bank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding dues of 
` 1,778.18 lakh with the interest @16.40% p.a. However, Members attention is drawn to the matter of emphasis and 
Statement on Contingent Liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial Statement. 

  d) The Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 certification for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2016.

 e) The Company has a well defined risk management policy. The Policy is displayed on the website of the Company www.
usheragro.com. 
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 f) The Company has prepared the Financial Statements in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 
India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 g) The Company has complied with all the mandatory and non mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations relating 
to Corporate Governance and also complied with Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) relating to the dissemination of 
information on the website of the Company. The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements listed in Part 
E of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, is as under:

	 •	 The	Internal	Auditor	reports	to	the	Audit	Committee.

3. Means of Communication

The quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly results are published in Financial Express All edition and Apla Mahanagar, Mumbai Edition. 
The financial results and investor update are displayed on the website of the company www.usheragro.com shortly after its 
submission to the Stock Exchange. Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been included in this Annual Report and 
forms the part of this Annual Report being sent to the shareholders of the Company.

4. General Shareholder Information

 a) Annual General Meeting

Date 30th September, 2016

Time 11.30

Venue Anmol Banquets Hall, 2nd Floor, Harmony Mall At Carnival  Cinemas, Opposite Royal Enfield 
Showroom, Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai-400104

 b) The Book Closure: The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Friday  
  23th September, 2016 to Friday, 30th September, 2016(both days inclusive). 

 Dividend

 The Board has not recommended dividend for the FY 2015-16.

 Financial Calendar for the year April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017:

 The Financial year 2015- 16. The financial results will be declared as per the following schedule. 

Particulars Tentative Schedule

June 30, 2016 On or before 14th August, 2016

September 30, 2016 On or before 14th   November, 2016

December 31, 2016 On or before 14th February, 2017

March 31, 2017 On or before May 2017

Annual Audited Results

Year ending 31 March, 2017     Within 60 days from 31 March, 2017

c) Listing on Stock Exchange

The Shares of the Company is Listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange  of India 
Ltd. (NSE).

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
P.  J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001

Stock Code: 532765

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, Bandra- Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Mumbai 400 051

Stock Code: USHERAGRO

ISIN for Depositories (NSDL and CDSL) INE235G01011

CIN No. L01100MH1996PLC100380

ISIN for NCD (Non Convertible Debentures) INE235G08016
           
The debentures are listed with BSE Limited 
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Listing fees

Listing fees paid to BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) for the financial year  
2015-16.

Payment of depository Fees

Annual Custody / Issuer fees for the year 2015-16 has been paid by the Company to Nation Securities Depository Ltd. 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Penalty for Non submission of Financial Results. 

The Company has paid ` 86250 to BSE limited and ` 460590 for NSE for Non submission of Results within the period of 
60 days from the end of the FY2015-16. 
                                                  
Electronic connectivity:

National Security Depository of Ltd. & Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

d) Registration with SEBI SCORE

As per SEBI Circular No. CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011 the Company got registered with SEBI for redressing of 
Complaints of Shareholders by SEBI Complaints redress System (SCORE).

e) Registered office & corporate office

422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi Industrial Estate,  New Link Road, Andheri (w), Mumbai - 400 053 IndiaTel. No.: +91 22 
39381100, Fax No.: +91 22 39381123; Email: usherinvestors@usheragro.com
Website: www.usheragro.com
 

f) Plant location:

Mathura: 239, Maholi, Krishna Nagar, 
Off Delhi- Agra highway, Mathura  
Dist- Mathura(U.P.)

Buxar: Plot no. 1898, Chaubeji ki 
Chhavani, Jalilpur Thana, rajpur, 
Dist Buxar (Bihar)

Chatta: 158, Gohari, Delhi- Agra 
Highway, Chatta, Dist Mathura(U.P.)

632-634, Duatana, Delhi Agra Highway, 
Chhatta, Dist: Mathura (Uttar Pradesh)

g) Market price Data and Performance.

Monthly High and Low quotations of Shares traded at The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Limited 
(BSE) Share price data Monthly basis  

 Month

BSE NSE

Months High Price Monthly Low Price Monthly High Price Monthly Low Price 

April, 2015 52.50 43.00 52.65 43.10

May, 2015 47.20 50.90 50.90 43.65

June, 2015 46.00 30.00 47.15 29.70

July, 2015 39.80 34.00 39.75 33.60

August, 2015 45.90 35.00 39.75 33.60

September, 2015 38.75 32.65 39.20 32.70

October, 2015 49.45 36.10 49.25 36.30

November, 2015 45.60 35.00 45.90 35.10

December, 2015 49.45 37.05 49.00 37.00

January, 2016 47.50 33.80 47.50 33.35

February, 2016 38.25 25.60 38.20 25.20

March, 2016 33.55 27.20 33.70 26.40
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h) Investors’ correspondence may be addressed to:

Usher Agro Limited
Mrs. Sarika S. Singh Company Secretary
422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi Industrial Estate,
New Link Raod, Andheri (w), 
Mumbai - 400 053 
Tel N:.+91 22 39381100
Fax No :+91 2239381123
usherinvestors@usheragro.com

Registrar & Transfer Agents: 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.
E2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka, 
Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 072.
Tel: + Tel: +91-022-28470632/53
Fax: +91-022-28475207
Email: shubhangi@bigshareonline.com

i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

The Company has appointed M/s Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. as its Registrar and Transfer Agent.

Name BIGSHARES SERVICES PVT. LTD. 

Contact Person Ms. Shubhangi

Address E2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka,
Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 072

Telephone No. Tel: + Tel: +91-022-28470632/53

Fax No. Fax: +91-022-28475207

E mail shubhangi@bigshareonline.com

j) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The Company has established connectivity with both the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) through the Registrar- Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. This has 
facilitated the shareholders to hold and trade their shares in ‘electronic form’. Almost the entire shareholding (99.98%) 
is held in dematerialized form with NSDL 24043738 Shares (63.17 %), CDSL 14015186 Shares (36.82.52%) and 115 
in physical form as on 31st March, 2016.

k) Share Transfer System

The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. as the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company w.e.f 1st 

February, 2012.

The work related to share transfer in terms of both physical and electronic mode is being dealt at single point with Bigshare 
services Pvt. Ltd. After the completion of preliminary formalities of transfer/transmission by the Share Transfer Agent, the 
approval of transfer of shares in the physical form is given by the share Transfer Committee.

The Share transfer committee, constituted specifically for this purpose, meets periodically as the need arise to approve the 
Share Transfer etc. 

The Company has complied with the provisions of the requisite guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities in respect of 
the transfer of shares and other related matters.

Bigshare services Pvt. Ltd has been appointed as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent for processing, transfer, sub-division, 
consolidation, splitting of shares and for rendering depository services such as dematerialization and re-materialization of 
the Company’s shares.

The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are processed and the share certificates returned within 15 days 
of lodgment, subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respect.

Shareholders/investors are requested to forward share transfer documents, dematerialization requests and other related 
correspondence directly to Investor Bigshare services Pvt. Ltd at the above address for speedy response.
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l) Unclaimed Shares lying in the Escrow Account 

In accordance with the provisions contained in clause 5A of the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges, as amended by 
SEBI vide circular dated 16 December 2010, the Company was required to send 3 reminders at the registered addresses 
of the shareholders whose shares were lying “Undelivered/Unclaimed” with the Company, requesting for the correct 
particulars to dispatch such share certificates. If no response was received, the shares were required to be transferred to 
an “Unclaimed Share Suspense Account”, which shall be maintained by the Company in an electronic form. As and when 
any shareholder approaches at a later date, the Company shall deliver the shares to him/her from the said account, after 
proper verification/identification. Further, voting rights on such shares are to remain frozen till the rightful owner claims 
the shares. Accordingly, during the previous year, the Company sent three reminders to these shareholders, followed by 
opening of the said suspense account with Axis Bank. After completing the necessary formalities, 2189 shares held by one 
shareholder were transferred to the said suspense account. The Company, acting as a trustee in respect of the unclaimed 
shares, follows the modalities for the operation of the said account in the manner set out in clause 5A of the listing 
agreement. The summary of this account for the year 2015-16 is as follows: 

Sr. No Particulars No. of shareholders Outstanding shares

1. Aggregate no. of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in 
the Unclaimed Suspense Account at the beginning of the year i.e.1st  
April, 2015

1 2189

2. No. of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of 
shares from the Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year

Nil Nil

3. No. of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the 
Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year

Nil Nil

4. Aggregate no. of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in 
the Unclaimed Suspense Account at the end of the year i.e. 31st 
March, 2016

1 2189

 Distribution of Holding as on 31st March, 2016

Sr. No Number of Shares Number % to Total Share Amount
(Rs.)

% to Total

1. 1            -          500 8540 71.9643 15461450 4.0625

2. 501        -       1,000 1458 12.2862 12428370 3.2656

3. 1,001     -       2,000 829 6.9858 13139630 3.4525

4. 2,001     -       3,000 294 2.4775 7583050 1.9924

5. 3,001     -       4,000 153 1.2893 5500040 1.4451

6. 4,001     -       5,000 150 1.2640 7123370 1.8716

7. 5,001     -     10,000 215 1.8117 16066180 4.2214

8. 10,001  &  above 228 1.9213 303288360 79.6889

Total 11867 100.00 380590390 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2016

Sr. No. Category of Shareholders No.of 
Shareholders

Total No. of 
Shareholders

% of total 
Shareholding

1. Promoters and Promoter Group 6 12262370 32.22

2. Government/ Other Public Financial 
Institutions and Insurance Companies

0

3. Foreign Institutional Investors 2 2844767 7.47

4. Non Resident Individuals

5. Bodies Corporate 229 7317980 19.23

6. Indian Public/ Other 11280 16058922 42.19

Total 11517 38059039 100.00
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Secretarial Audit

	 	 •	 Ms.	 Palak	 Desai,	 Practicing	 Company	 Secretary	 has	 conducted	 the	 Secretarial	 Audit	 of	 the	 Company	 for	 the		
Financial year 2015-16. Their Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges, Listing 
Regulations, applicable SEBI Regulations and other laws applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report 
forms part of the Board’s Report.

	 	 •	 Pursuant	to	Regulation	40	(9)	of	the	Listing	Regulations,	certificates	have	been	issued	on	a	half-yearly	basis,	by	a	
Company Secretary in practice, certifying due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

	 	 •	 A	Company	Secretary	in	practice	carries	out	a	quarterly	Reconciliation	of	Share	Capital	Audit,	to	reconcile	thetotal	
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)Ltd. 
(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement 
with the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized 
form (held with NSDL and CDSL).

Non- compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory 

authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years 

The Company has paid penalty under Reg. 33 (3) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for Non submission of the Financial 
Results for the Quarter & year ended 31.03.2016 the Company has paid ` 86,250 to BSE limited and ` 4, 60,590 for 
National stock Exchange of India Limited.  CFSIT Inc. has filed winding up petition for recovery of their outstanding 
dues of ` 6,548.14 Lakhs with the interest @120% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. PT Bank May 
bank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding dues of 
` 1,778.18 Lakhs with the interest @16.40% p.a. However, Members attention is drawn to the matter of emphasis and 
Statement on Contingent Liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial Statement.

Transfer to IEPF

Following amounts have been transferred to IEPF during the year.

Particulars Date of declaration/ 
payment

Due Date for transfer Date of Transfer Amount transferred 
in ` 

Final Dividend 31/12/2008 03/01/2016 03/01/2016 32217

Interim Dividend 05/12/2008 29/01/2016 29/01/2016 161098

Declaration

The Board members & senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the directors & senior 
management for the year ended 31st March, 2016

For and on Behalf of the Board

Vinodkumar Chaturvedi
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai                       
Date: 13th August, 2016
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AUDITORS REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Independent Auditor's Certificate 

To the Members of 

USHER AGRO LIMITED,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Usher Agro Limited (hereinafter referred “the 

Company”), for the year ended 31st March, 2016, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement('Listing Agreement') of the said 

company with stock exchanges for the period 1st April 2015 to 30th November 2015 and as per the relevant provisions of Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,2015 (Listing Regulation) as referred to 

the regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulation for the Period 1st December 2015 to 31stMarch 2016.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to 

procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in India, to 

the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered 

Accountants of India.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement/ Listing Regulation, 

as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regd. No.: 104184W/W100075

CA Viraj Savla
Designated Partner
M. No.: 153525

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th August, 2016
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CFO Certification

Mr. Vinodkumar  Chaturvedi, Managing Director & CFO has certified to the Board that: 

(A) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

 (i) These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might 
be misleading;

 (ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

 
(B) There is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company's code of conduct.

(C) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of the 
internal control systems of the Company and I have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design 
or operation of internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies.

(D) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee.

 a. Significant changes in internal control during the year, if any;

 b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statement; and

 c. Instance of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system.

Vinod kumar Chaturvedi
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai                                                                                       
Date: 13th August, 2016                                                                                     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To, 
The Members of 
USHER AGRO LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of USHER AGRO LIMITED, (“the Company”), which comprises 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also 
includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be 
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, except with 
regard to the matters set out below in Basis of Qualified Opinion, where we have not been able to perform audit in conformity with 
relevant  auditing standards in the absence of sufficient appropriate evidence. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, except with regard to the matters set out below in Basis of Qualified Opinion, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.



75

19th Annual Report 2014-2015

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. CFSIT Inc, USA has filed Winding-up Petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding Dues of ` 6,548.14 lakh 
($10 Million) with the interest @12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. An interest amount comes to 
` 336.08 lakh ($0.507 Million) approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements. 

 
 Had the company made such Interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been higher 

by ` 336.08 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

2. PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding 
Dues of ̀  1778.18 lakh with the interest @16.4% p.a. The proceeding is pending before Hon'ble Bombay High Court. An interest 
amount comes to ` 6.28 lakh approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements.

 Had the company made such Interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been higher 
by ` 6.28 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

3. Axis bank has imposed Penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 lakh. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in the 
statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank. 

 Had the company expensed out such Penal Charges in the statement of profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been 
higher by ` 70.45 lakh and accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount and short term borrowing would 
have been lower by an equivalent amount.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects, 
which are not quantifiable, of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2016  and its loss and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date:

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

a. All the lenders of the Consortium in Joint Lenders forum (JLF) meeting held on 13th of May, 2016, agreed for opting option of 
Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) scheme for better financial situation of the company. Referral date for SDR is decided 13th 
May, 2016. 

b. Reference is invited to Note No. 47 to the Standalone financial statements, which states that balances of Sundry Debtors, 
Creditors, Loans & Advances and other parties are subject to confirmation and consequent adjustments, if required. 

c. Reference is invited to noteno.48 to the Standalone Financial Statement, which state that substantial portion of the company 
networth is eroded in the March quarter. In the June quarter company has also incurred losses as a result of which company 
networth is fully eroded. 

 Considering the matters  set out  in the above notes, Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

b. except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper 
books of account, as required by law, have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Company has not appointed a person other than Companies auditor for audit of accounts of branch offices under 
Section 143(8); hence clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 143 is not applicable. 

d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

e. except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph,  in our opinion, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

f. the matters described under the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,  Emphasis of Matter paragraph read further with 
para vii b, and viii of our report in Annexure “A” , may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

g. on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

h. the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the Basis 
for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

i. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

j. with respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
&Auditor’s ) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to our best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. As detailed in Note No. 2 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its standalone financial position.

ii. The Company has made provisions as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for material 
foreseeable losses if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the company.

 
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP.

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 104184W/W100075

CA Viraj Savla
Designated Partner
M. No.: 153525

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th August 2016
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of USHER AGRO LIMITED (‘The Company’) on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016. We report that: 

i. In respect of its fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets. 

b. As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical manner, 
which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. We are informed that 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the examination of 
the records maintained by company and intimation received from IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited provided, we report 
that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name 
of theCompany as at the balance sheet date.

ii. In respect of inventories, 

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management during the year. However, we could not observe inventory verification in the 
absence of intimation from the management in this regard.

b. As per the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book records 
were noticed on physical verification. 

iii. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of these loans; 

a. In our opinion and as per information and explanation given to us, terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not 
prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

b. the terms of repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have not been stipulated and hence we are 
unable to comment as to whether receipt of the principal amount and the interest are regular and 

c. in the absence of stipulated terms and conditions, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any overdue amount for 
more than ninety days and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal amount 
and interest

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and 
security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public. Hence 
provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Report is not applicable to the company.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that maintenance of cost records has not been 
specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

a. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination on test check basis, the company 
was generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues to the appropriate authorities. 
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed amounts, which were outstanding as at March 31, 
2016 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable are as follows:

Nature Amount (INR in Lakhs) Due Date

Tax Deducted at source 10.32 Various due dates as these relate to old outstanding

Sales Tax – Entry Tax 4.26 25th July 2015

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, dues that have not been deposited by the Company on account 
of disputes are as follows:

Nature of Dues Amount (INR in Lakhs) Period to which the 

amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending

VAT & CST 29.17 A.Y. 2008-09 Appellate Tribunal, Agra 

VAT & CST 0.21 A.Y. 2009-10 Additional Commissioner (Commercial 
Tax) Grade – II(Appeal), Mathura 

VAT & CST 66.42 A.Y. 2010-11 Assessment Officer, Mathura 

TDS 29.92 From AY 2007-08 to AY 
2016-17 

TDS Authority of Income Tax 

 
viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has defaulted in repayment of 

following dues to the financial institutions and banks during the year:

Name of Bank/ FI Amount  (INR 

in Lakhs)

Due on Paid on

Rabo Bank International Ltd 450.63 30thJune 2015 Not paid

630.00 31st December 2015 183.00 Lakh paid on 4th January 2016, 
balance not paid

Axis Bank Ltd. 244.00 30th September 2015 17th October 2015

244.00 31st December 2015 31st December 2015 and 23rd February 
2016

244.00 31st March 2016 Not paid

Dena Bank 100.00 30th September 2015 1st December 2015

100.00 31st December 2015 Not paid

100.00 31st March 2016 Not paid

EXIM Bank 300.00 30thJune 2015 Various dates till September 2015

300.00 30th September 2015 Various dates till December 2015

300.00 31st December 2015 Not paid

300.00 31st March 2016 Not paid

IDBI 138.89 30th September 2015 Various dates in October 2015

138.89 31st December 2015 Various dates in January and February 2016

138.89 31st March 2016 Not paid

L & T Finance Ltd 173.89 30th September 2015 Various dates of October , November and 
December 2015

173.89 31st December 2015 28.50 Lakhs paid on various dates and 
balance not paid

173.89 31st March 2016 Not paid

ICICI Bank 539.95 30th September 2015 Various dates in November 2015

548.00 31st March 2016 Not paid

Further, company has issued debentures during the year.
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ix. During the year, the company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public office (including debt 
instrument).According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination on test check basis, we 
are of the opinion that the Company has used term loans for the purposes for which they were raised. 

x. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the company or on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act. 

xii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not the Nidhi Company. Therefore, provisions of clause 
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us, transactions entered into by the company with the related parties are 
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements 
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

xiv. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year under review.

xv. According to the information and explanation given to us,the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them during the year.

xvi. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP.

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 104184W/W100075

CA Viraj Savla
Designated Partner
M. No.: 153525

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th August 2016
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

[Referred to under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the 
members of USHER AGRO LIMITED on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHER AGRO Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2. Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

4. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2016:

6.  Opinion 

 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by “the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP.

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No.: 104184W/W100075

Viraj Savla
Designated Partner
M. No.: 153525

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13th August 2016
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2016

As per our Report of even date attached

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai

Particulars Note
As at 

31st March, 2016
 As at 

31st March, 2015
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholder's Funds
a Share Capital 3  3,805.90  3,805.90 
b Reserves and Surplus 4  7,517.15  37,430.91 

 11,323.05  41,236.81 
2 Non-Current Liabilities  
a Long-Term Borrowings 5  18,309.24  16,832.87 
b Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  2,500.86  2,574.25 
c Other Long Term Liabilities 7  1,338.08  1,494.65 

 22,148.18  20,901.77 
3 Current liabilities
a Short-Term Borrowings 8  78,184.16  69,556.55 
b Trade Payables 9  16,708.02  9,618.14 
c Other Current Liabilities 10  24,216.64  14,256.58 
d Short-Term Provisions 11  402.84  666.06 

 119,511.66  94,097.33 
Total  152,982.89  156,235.91 

II ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

1 Fixed Assets
a i.  Tangible Assets 12  31,270.33  33,965.38 

ii. Capital Work-In-Progress 28  4,090.49  3,620.05 
 35,360.82  37,585.43 

b Non-Current Investments 13  8,645.22  1,725.36 
c Long-Term Loans And Advances 14  3,068.65  3,482.90 

 11,713.87  5,208.26 
2 Current Assets
a Inventories 15  48,268.09  69,046.23 
b Trade Receivables 16  45,515.66  35,002.30 
c Cash and Cash Equivalents 17  220.77  1,575.62 
d Short-Term Loans And Advances 18  520.56  482.15 
e Other Current Assets 19  11,383.12  7,335.92 

 105,908.20  113,442.22 
Total 1-56  152,982.89  156,235.91 

Notes referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Financial Statements.

(` in Lakhs) 
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Notes referred to above and notes attached there to form an integral part of Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date attached

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai

StateMent OF PROFIt & lOSS
 for the year ending on 31st March 2016

Particulars Note
Year Ended 
31.03.2016

 Nine Months Ended 
31.03.2015

I Revenue from Operations 20  157,901.82  127,674.96 

II Other Income 21  195.20  91.16 

III Total Revenue (I + II)  158,097.02  127,766.12 

IV Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consumed 22  160,930.87  109,677.49 

Changes in Inventories(Increase)/Decrease of Finished Goods 23  4,355.04  (4,370.31)

Employee Benefits Expense 24  2,033.37  1,341.57 

Finance Costs 25  12,009.32  8,231.67 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 12  3,877.38  3,136.12 

Other Expenses 26  4,740.60  4,332.32 

Total expenses  187,946.58  122,348.86 

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)  (29,849.56)  5,417.26 

VI Exceptional items  -    -   

VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  (29,849.56)  5,417.26 

VIII Extraordinary Items - -

IX Profit before tax (VII- VIII)  (29,849.56)  5,417.26 

X Tax Expense :

(1) Current Tax  -    414.48 

(2) Deferred Tax  (73.41)  817.80 

    (3) Short /( Excess )Provision for Income Tax for Earlier Years  137.59  -   

XI Profit /(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX-X)  (29,913.76)  4,184.98 

XII Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations  -  - 

XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -  - 

XIV Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)  -  - 

XV Profit/ (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV)  (29,913.76)  4,184.98 

XVI Earnings per equity share: (In Rupees)

Basic 27  (78.60)  11.00 

Diluted 27  (78.60)  11.00 

Notes to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss 1-56

(` in Lakhs) 
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caSh FlOw StateMent
for the year ended 31st March 2016

Particulars
 Year Ended  

31.03.2016 

 Nine Month ended 

31.03.2015 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax  (29,849.56)  5,417.26 

Other Income  (195.20)  (91.16)

Proposed Dividend  -    (190.30)

Corporate Dividend Tax  -    (38.74)

Provision for leave encashment & gratuity  20.18  -   

Provision for MTM on Derivative Contract  (40.03)  -   

Interest cost  12,009.32  8,231.67 

Depreciation\Amortisation  3,877.38  3,136.12 

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes  14,177.91 16,464.85

Adjustments for movement in working capital:

Adjustment for Increase/ (Decrease) in operating Liabilities:

Trade Payables  7,089.88  509.47 

Short-Term Borrowings  8,627.61  16,587.21 

Other Current Liability  9,180.33  5,698.07 

Short term provision  (58.62)  219.44 

Adjustment for (Increase)/ Decrease in operating Assets:

Inventories  20,778.14  (12,358.59)

Trade Receivables  (10,513.36)  (8,511.32)
Short-term Loans & Advances  (38.41)  1,000.77 

Other Current Assets  (4,047.20)  (4,987.80)

Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities  16,840.45  14,622.08 

Other Income  54.01  13.91 

Income taxes (paid)/refund  (157.72)  (703.82)

Net Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities (A)  16,736.74  13,932.18 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

(Purchase)/Sale of Fixed Assets (Including CWIP)  (950.85)  (1,751.85)

Long Term Loan/Advances (include non current assets)  487.16  (1,220.57)

Interest Income  141.19  77.25 

Investment In Preference Share Capital  (6,374.50)  -   

Investment in Equity Share aplication money  (545.36)  -   

Cash from / (Used in) Investing Activities (B)  (7,242.34)  (2,895.17)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (net of Repayment)  746.60  (1,134.60)

Interest Cost  (11,332.66)  (8,106.61)

Dividend Paid  (190.30)  -   

Cash from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C )  (10,776.36)  (9,241.21)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C )  (1,281.95)  1,795.80 

Cash & Cash equivalent as at beginning of the year  1,568.15  355.82 

Other Bank Balance as at beginning of the year  1,631.99  1,048.51 

Cash & Cash equivalent as at end of the year  214.22  1,568.15 

Other Bank Balance as at end of the year  1,703.97  1,631.99 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (1,281.95)  1,795.80 

Additional information:  1) Figures in brackets represent outflows.  2) Previous years figures have been restated where necessary.

(` in Lakhs) 

As per our Report of even date
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-
CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak
Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director 
M.No. 153525

Date: 13th August, 2016 
Place : Mumbai
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SIgnIFIcant accOuntIng POlIcIeS 
& nOteS tO accOuntS
FOR the YeaR ended MaRch 31, 2016
1. Corporate Overview

Usher Agro Limited is engaged in the business of food processing, mainly basic food i.e. wheat,rice and pulses. The Company is 

having manufacturing facilities for rice, wheat & pulses  milling.  The company is also engaged in Bio Mass Power generation and 

Logistic, however the operations in these two segments are comparatively not significant and mainly for captive purpose only.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting Standards 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis The accounting policies 

have been consistently applied by the Company and except for the changes in accounting policy, if any, as discussed below 

in detail, are consistent with those used in the previous year.

(b) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 

of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statement and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 

reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management best knowledge of current events and actions. 

Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the 

periods in which the results are known/materialize.

(c) Current–non-current classification

 Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria, in the opinion of the management:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria, in the opinion of the management:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of 

equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(d) Operating cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets/materials for processing and their realization in Cash or 

cash equivalents. Where the normal operating cycle cannot be identified, it is assumed to have duration of twelve months
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(e) Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are stated at cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost (including pre-operative and trial & run expenses) 

of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 

Assets under installation or under construction as at the Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital work in progress.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the 

cost of such assets till the period , such assets are ready to be put to use, the qualifying assets is one that take substantial 

period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing cost not attributable to the acquisition of any 

capital assets are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. The cost of acquisition is further adjusted 

for exchange difference relating to non current foreign currency borrowing attributable to the acquisition of depreciable 

assets. 

(f) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 

for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 

information.

(g) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,  There is no 

change in method of depreciation during the period however by virtue of law the method of calculating rate of depreciation 

after estimating the balance useful life of the assets has been changed and is in accordance with schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on addition/deletion to the assets during the period is provided on pro-rata basis.

(h) Impairment 

i. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based 

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 

its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average 

cost of capital.

ii. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(i) Leases 

Finance Lease Transaction:

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership 

of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the 

inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges 

and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against 

income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized 

leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Lease Transaction :

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are 

classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term.

(j) Investments 

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 

All other investments are classified as non current investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair 

value determined on an individual investment basis. Non current investments are carried at cost. However, provision for 

diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. 
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(k) Inventories

Raw materials, components, 
stores and spares

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use 
in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products 
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is 
determined on FIFO basis.

Work-in-progress and 
finished goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(l) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 

can be reliably measured. 

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. 

Income from Services

Revenues from Job work & stock processing of material are recognised as and when services are rendered.

Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 

applicable. 

(m) Deferred Revenue Expenditure 

Any expense which is the nature of Preliminary expenses, has write off in the year which they have incurred from/against 

the Profit & Loss Account. 

Any expenses related to public issue/QIP/any other capital raising issue has write off entire expenses in the year which they 

have incurred from/against the security premium account.

(n) Foreign currency translation

(i)    Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii)    Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary 

items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are rerted using the exchange 

rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii)  Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company's monetary items at 

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial 

statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising 

in respect of fixed assets acquired from outside India are capitalized as a part of fixed asset.  

(o) Retirement and other employee benefits.

i. Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions are charged to 

the Profit and Loss Account of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other 

obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

ii. Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the 

end of each financial period.
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iii. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred.

iv. The company has started from this period to make the provision for leave encashment on the basis of actuarial at the 

end of the financial period.

(p) Income taxes 

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.  Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be 

paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.  Deferred income taxes reflects the impact 

of current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the period and reversal of timing 

differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 

date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company has unabsorbed depreciation 

or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 

evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits. 

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred 

tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.  

(q)   Expenditure on new projects and substantial expansion 

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction 

period is capitalised as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to 

construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction 

period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

Income earned during construction period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

All direct capital expenditure on expansion are capitalized. As regards indirect expenditure on expansion, only that portion 

is capitalized which represents the marginal increase in such expenditure involved as a result of capital expansion. Both 

direct and indirect expenditure are capitalized only if they increase the value of the asset beyond its original standard of 

performance.

(r) Segment Reporting Policies 

Primary segment is identified based on the nature of products and services. Secondary segment is identified based on 

geography in which major operating division of the company operate. 

For primary segment, the segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified 

to segment on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and 

liabilities which relate to the group as a whole and are not allocable to segment on reasonable basis, have been included 

under ‘Unallocated revenue/expenses/assets/liabilities”. 

(s) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period.  Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they 

were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a 

rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 

dilutive potential equity shares.  
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(t) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 

discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance 

sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Liabilities 

whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are treated as contingent and disclosed by way of 

Notes on Accounts. 

(u) Financial /Commodity  Derivatives Transaction 

In respect of derivative contracts, premium paid, gain / losses on settlement and provision for losses for cash flow hedges 

are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account except in case where they relate to the acquisition or construction of fixed 

assets, in which case, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

(v) Government Grants

Grants from the Government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant /subsidy will be received 

and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government Grants related to specific fixed assets has been deducted form the gross value of the assets concerned in 

arriving at their book value. 

Government Grants of the nature of the revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the profit and loss account over the 

periods necessary to match them with related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants either be shown 

under ‘other income’ or deducted in reporting the related expenses.
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3 SHARE CAPITAL
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015

Authorised Share Capital

5,00,00,000 (P.Y. 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  5,000.00  5,000.00 

Total  5,000.00  5,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital

3,80,59,039 (P.Y.3,80,59,039) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  3,805.90  3,805.90 

Total  3,805.90  3,805.90 

a) A reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the accounting year, is set out 
below:

Particulars  2015-16  2014-15 

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Equity Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  38,059,039  38,059,039 

Add: shares issued during the year  -  - 

Equity shares at the end of the year  38,059,039  38,059,039 

b) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10. The equity shares have rights, preferences and 
restrictions which are in accordance with the provisions of law, in particular the Companies Act, 2013.

c) There are nil number of shares (P.Y. Nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its 
ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiary or associates of the holding company or the ultimate 
holding company in aggregate.

d) Shares in the company held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares, as on 31.03.2016

Name of the Shareholder As on 31.03.2016  As on 30.06.2015 

No. of Shares Percentage (%) No. of Shares Percentage (%) 

Dr. Vinod Chaturvedi  4,567,470 12.00%  4,692,470 12.33%

Mr. Manoj Pathak  3,284,060 8.63%  3,284,060 8.63%

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt Limited  2,008,740 5.28%  2,008,740 5.28%

Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited  2,590,312 6.81%  2,590,312 6.81%

Abhi Ambi Financial Services Limited  4,426,893 11.63%  4,951,893 13.01%

e) There are nil number of shares (Previous year Nil) reserved for issue under option and contracts /commitment for the sale of 
shares/disinvetment including the terms and amounts. 

f) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the balance sheet is prepared

Particulars No. of Equity 
Shares

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without 
payment being received in cash

Nil

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares. Nil

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back Nil

g)
During the year there are no securities issued/converted which are convertible into equity/preference shares. However On 
15th December 2009 the company has issued 60,00,000 warrants on preferential basis to the promoters and others to raise  

` 2,460 Lakhs through preferential allotment. out of which, 10,00,000 warrants and 50,00,000 warrants have been converted 
in to equity share in financial year 2009-10 and 2010-11 respectively.

h) There are no calls unpaid (P.Y. Nil )including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on balance sheet date



91

20th Annual Report 2015-2016

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

General Reserve

Opening balance  2,252.00  2,252.00 

    (+) Current Year Transfer  -    -   

    (-) Written Back in Current Year  -    -   

    Closing Balance  2,252.00  2,252.00 

Securities Premium  11,546.21  11,546.21 

 11,546.21  11,546.21 

Debt Redemption Reserve

Opening balance  8,000.00  4,000.00 

Add:during the year  -    4,000.00 

Closing Balance  8,000.00  8,000.00 

Profit and Loss Account

    Opening balance  15,632.70  16,783.52 

    (+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year  (29,913.76)  4,184.98 

    (-) Debt Redemption Reserve  -    4,000.00 
    (-) Proposed Dividends -  190.30 
    (-) Corporate Dividend Tax -  38.74 

    (-) Deferred/(current) Tax for earlier years  -    1,106.76 

Closing Balance  (14,281.06)  15,632.70 

Total  7,517.15  37,430.91 

5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
30.06.2015 

11% Non-Convertible Debenture (4)  5,032.50  -   

Term Loans(Secured)

i)  From Banks & Others

 In Foreign Currency¹  5,474.93  7,755.92 

 In Rupees²  7,755.38  9,025.04 

ii) From Financial Institutions

In Rupees  46.43  51.91 

Total  18,309.24  16,832.87 

1.   Foreign Currency borrowings are secured by way of  first pari passu charge on the entire immovable and movable fixed assets of 

the company and second pari passu charge on the entire current assets of the company present and future created in favour of 

respective Banks/Trustees along with the personal guarantees of the Directors of the Company namely Dr.Vinod K. Chaturvedi 

and Mr. Manoj Pathak.

Repayment Schedule

Loan From Banks No. of Installments Frequency Commencing from

Rabo Bank International Ltd 9 Half yearly Dec, 2012

ICICI Bank Ltd. 11 Half yearly Sept, 2014

2.  Rupee Term Loan are secured by way of  first pari passu charge on the entire immovable and movable fixed assets of the company and 

second pari passu charge on the entire current assets of the company, both present and future created in favour of respective Banks/

Trustees along with the personal guarantees of the Directors of the company namely Dr. Vinod K. Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj Pathak. 
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Repayment Schedule

Loan From Banks No. of Installments Frequency Commencing from

Axis Bank Ltd 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

Dena Bank 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

EXIM Bank of India 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

ICICI Bank (Vehicle Loan)3 36 Monthly Feb, 2014

IDBI Corporate Loan 18 Quarterly March, 2015

L & T Finance Limited 13 Quarterly Dec, 2013

Bank Of Maharashtra 16 Quarterly Dec, 2016

IDBI Corporate Loan 18 Quarterly Sep, 2016

3  Equipment and Vehicle loans are secured against the respective equipment/vehicles financed through the said loans.

4. Non - Convertible Debentore secured against first and exclusive charge / pledge to be created by the company over the instrutements 

and personal guarantee under taken of directors. Payment will be due after four years on deemed date of allotment, interest due on 

half yearly basis.

6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES(NET)
(In respect of the timing differences)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

On account of Depreciation & Employee Benefits  2,500.86 2574.25

Total  2,500.86 2574.25

7 OTHER LONG TERM LIBILITIES 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

    Long term creditors for Capital Goods  1,143.50  1,259.31 

    Provision for Mark to Market (MTM) on Derivative Contract  139.03  194.14 

    Provision for Gratuity  33.71  -   

    Provision for Leave Encashment  21.84  41.20 

Total  1,338.08  1,494.65 

8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Secured Short Term Borrowings

Secured Short Term Borrowings*

Loans Repayable on Demand- From Banks

In Foreign Currency  4,311.64  9,508.65 

In Rupees  70,597.52  56,772.90 

 Unsecured Short Term Borrowings

Loans Repayable on Demand- From Banks  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Loans Repayable on Demand- From Other Parties  775.00  775.00 

Total  78,184.16  69,556.55 
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*  Cash credit /working capital credit facilities are secured by way of first pari passu charge over the entire current assets and 
second paripassu charge over the entire Immovable and moveable fixed assets of the company, both present and future created in 
favour of respective banks/trustees alongwith personal guarantees of the Directors of the company namely Dr. Vinod K. Chaturvedi 
and Mr. Manoj Pathak.

9 TRADE PAYABLES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

     Sundry Creditors- For Goods  15,585.39  8,779.32 

     Sundry Creditors- For Expenses  1,122.63  838.82 

Total  16,708.02  9,618.14 

The Company has not received any information from "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures relating to amount unpaid as at year end together with interest paid/

payable under the said Act have not been given.

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

    Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts  6,908.83  6,820.85 

    Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings  385.06  150.09 

    Unclaimed Dividends  6.56  7.48 

    Security Deposits Payables  4.47  6.62 

    Advance received from Customers  6,795.37  6,243.22 

    Creditors for Capital Expenditure  334.64  317.69 

    Other Liabilities including Statutory Liabilities  2,698.53  187.84 

    Provision for CSR Activities  156.22  220.63 

    Interest accrued and due on borrowings  743.85  302.16 

Bank overdraft  416.43  -   

    Corporate Dividend Tax  38.74  -   

    Provision for Mark to Market(MTM) on Derivative Contract  15.08 -

    Business advances from related parties

    Advance Received for supply of Husk  2,611.92 -

    Usher World wide FZE, UAE  3,100.94 

Total  24,216.64  14,256.58 

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Provision for employee benefits

    Provision for Gratuity  3.91  28.99 

    Leave Encashment Provision  13.49  3.22 

    Contribution to PF  5.43  4.65 

    ESIC  0.21  0.22 

Other Provisions

    Income Tax  379.80  399.93 

    Dividend  -    190.30 

    Corporate Dividend Tax  -    38.74 

Total  402.84  666.06 
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13 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 (` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 

31.03.2016 
As at 

31.03.2015 
   Trade Investments- Unquoted
   In Subsidiary Company " Usher Eco Power Limited."

       (1,69,13,731(P.Y. 1,69,13,731) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid )  1,691.37  1,691.37 

   In Subsidiary Company " Usher Eco Power Limited."

       (5,03,250 (P.Y. NIL) 12 % Preference Shares of ` 1,000 each fully paid )  5,032.50  -   

   In Subsidiary Company " Usher Eco Power Limited."

       (1,30,000 (P.Y. NIL) 0% Preference Shares of ` 1,000 each fully paid )  1,342.00  -   

   In Wholly owned Subsidiary Company 'Usher World Wide FZE,UAE'

(1 No. (PY 1 No.) Equity shares of AED 150000 each fully paid)  22.71 22.71

   In Other related party

      Usher Infra Logic Limited 

         (11,275 (PY 11,275) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up )  11.28  11.28 

  Share Application Money of Equity shares

   In Subsidiary Company " Usher Eco Power Limited."  545.36 -

Total 8,645.22 1,725.36

14 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

    Security Deposits 53.23  58.39 

    Loans and Advance to Subsidiary Company

    Usher Eco Power Ltd.  1,318.00  1,800.00 

    Fixed Deposits with Interest accrued* 1,697.42  1,624.51 

 (* Includes FDs held as margin money/guarantee given)

Total  3,068.65  3,482.90 

15 INVENTORIES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(As valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Materials & work in process  38,106.86  54,529.97 

Finished goods  10,161.23  14,516.26 

Total  48,268.09  69,046.23 

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

           (a) Trade receivables (outstanding for a period less than six months)  33,391.02  34,772.24 

           (b) Trade receivables (outstanding for a period exceeding six months)  12,150.20  255.62 

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts  25.56  25.56 

Total  45,515.66  35,002.30 
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17 CASH & BANK BALANCE

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand  71.18  82.46 

Balance with Bank

Balance with Scheduled Banks - In Current Accounts  143.04  1,485.69 

Earmarked Balance - In Dividend Accounts  6.55  7.48 

Total  220.77  1,575.62 

18 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

 Business advances to related parties

    Usher Eco Power Ltd.  -    57.55 

    Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt Ltd.  17.47  14.38 

    Vedika Finance Pvt Ltd  0.38  0.14 

    Usher Capitals Ltd  6.75  6.08 

    Usher Oils & Foods Ltd  87.79  (5.66)

    Usher World wide FZE,UAE  133.88  126.35 

    Usher Infra Logic Limited  190.72  72.68 

Other loans and advances

    Advance Recoverable in Cash or in kind  83.57  210.63 

Total  520.56  482.15 

19 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Advance to Suppliers*  10,199.19  6,073.02 

Staff Advance*  10.92  29.34 

Advances for Capital Goods*  26.02  42.93 

Pre Paid Expenses  579.20  670.90 

Balance with Revenue Authorities  567.79  519.73 

*(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Total  11,383.12  7,335.92 

20 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Sale of Products-Domestic  155,315.84  121,843.07 

Sale of Products-Exports  2,221.01  5,607.41 

Other Operting Income  364.97  224.48 

Total  157,901.82  127,674.96 
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21 OTHER INCOME
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Interest Income  141.19  77.25 

Other Non-operating Income  54.01  13.91 

Total  195.20  91.16 

22 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Raw Materials consumed  160,930.87  109,677.49 

Total  160,930.87  109,677.49 

23  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-
TRADE

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Opening Stock of Finished Goods  14,516.26  10,145.96 

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods  10,161.23  14,516.26 

 4,355.04  (4,370.31)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Salaries and incentives  1,913.34  1,232.26 

Contributions to -

- Provident fund  38.10  27.83 

- ESIC  1.71  1.61 

- Staff Insurance premium  1.90  1.41 

- Provision for Earned Leave  0.92  44.42 

Gratuity fund contributions  19.26  (12.46)

Staff welfare expenses  58.14  46.50 

Total  2,033.37  1,341.57 

25 FINANCE COSTS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

Bank Charges  469.90  334.64 

Bank Interest  10,970.49  7,456.61 

Other Interest  285.58  148.90 

Foreign Exchange Cost  283.35  291.53 

Total  12,009.32  8,231.67 
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26 OTHER EXPENSES
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended as on 
31.03.2016 

 Nine Months Ended 
as on 31.03.2015 

 Power & Fuel  1,739.39  1,251.39 

 Freight & Cartage  323.33  216.73 

 Export Freight including Expenses  130.66  934.42 

 Stores & Spares Consumed  65.65  40.86 

 Travelling & Conveyance  132.14  119.15 

 Printing & Stationery  20.41  16.38 

 Directors Remuneration  50.93  76.39 

 Managerial Commission  -    75.40 

 Provision for CSR Activity  -    128.40 

 Director's Sitting Fee  7.95  5.38 

 Postage ,Courier & Telephone  26.80  19.47 

 Insurance  48.75  22.36 

 Rent  22.00  13.97 

 Warehousing Charges  322.80  310.34 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Plant & Machinery  215.65  204.56 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Building  15.21  10.00 

 Running & Maintenance - Vehicle  48.01  39.76 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Others  3.45  8.66 

 Subscriptions & Membership  11.53  8.09 

 Legal & Professional Fees  429.99  386.60 

 Loss/(Gain) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation  526.63  (16.97)

 Office & Misc Expenses  120.97  94.42 

 Quality Control Expenses  14.51  26.79 

 Rebate & Discount  5.97  21.63 

 Filing fees /R.O.C fee  0.69  -   

 Provision for bad & doubt full debts  -    25.56 

 Brokerage & Commission  108.96  142.27 

 Advertisement & Business Promotion  51.72  25.57 

 Audit fees  8.05  7.87 

 Rates & Taxes  328.47  -   

 Provision for Mark to Market(MTM) on Derivative Contract  (40.03)  116.86 

       TOTAL  4,740.60  4,332.32 

27 EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)
(` In Lakhs except EPS face value and nos. of shares)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

i)   Net Profit after tax as per profit and loss account  (29,913.76)  4,184.98 

ii)  Net Profit attributable to equity share holders  (29,913.76)  4,184.98 

iii)  Net Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Taxes  (29,849.56)  5,417.26 
iv)  Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculation   
      of Basic EPS

 38,059,039  38,059,039 

v)  Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculation  
     of Diluted  EPS

 38,059,039  38,059,039 

vi)  Basic and Diluted EPS                                   - Basic  (78.60)  11.00 

                                                                           - Diluted              (78.60)  11.00 

vii)  Face Values per equity share  10  10 
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28 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGESS
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Civil work of Construction & Land Development  1,016.93  977.84 

Plant & Machinery under installation  2,226.31  2,219.48 

Preoperative Expenses related to assets under construction  847.25  422.73 
Total  4,090.49  3,620.05 

29 BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES :
As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Employee Benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard 

are given below :

(i) Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expenses for the year are as under :

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, ESIC and Group Insurance  41.71  30.85 

(ii) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Opening defined benefit obligation  36.61  48.83 
Interest cost  2.43  2.93 
Current service cost  13.00  8.49 

Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefits)  -    -   

Past Service Cost (Vested Benefits)  -    -   

Benefit paid  (10.63)  -   

Actuarial (gain)/losses on obligation  (3.79)  (23.63)

Closing defined benefit obligation  37.61  36.61 

(iii) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Opening fair value of plan assets  7.62  6.99 

Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Expected return  0.64  0.47 

Contributions by employer  10.63  -   

Benefits paid  (10.63)  -   

Actuarial gains / (losses)  -    0.16 

Closing fair value of plan assets  8.26  7.62 

(iv) Fair value of plan assets:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of period  7.62  6.99 

Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Actual Return of plan assets  0.64  0.63 

Contributions  10.63  -   

Benefits paid  (10.63)  -   

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period  8.26  7.62 

Funded status (including unrecognized past service cost)  (29.36)  (28.99)

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets  -    0.16 
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(v) Experience History

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

(Gain)/Loss on obligation due to change in Assumption  1.20  (25.93)

Experience (Gain)/ Loss on obligation  (5.00)  2.29 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets  -    0.16 

(vi) Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Actuarial  gain/(loss) for the period (Obligation)  3.79  23.63 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period – (Plan Assets)  -    0.16 

Total gain/(loss) for the period  3.79  23.79 

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized for the period  3.79  23.79 

Unrecognized Actuarial gain/(loss) at end of period  -    -   

(vii) Past Service cost recognised

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -  - 

Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -  - 

Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit  -  - 

Recognized Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -  - 

Recognized Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -  - 

Unrecognized Past Service Cost – non vested benefits  -  - 

(viii) The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  37.62  36.61 

Fair value of  plan assets at the end of the year  8.26  7.62 

Funded status  (29.36)  (28.99)

Excess of actual or estimated  -    -   

Unrecognized actuarial gains / (loss)  -    -   

Unrecognized Past Service cost - Non Vested Benefit  -    -   

Net assets/(liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (29.36)  (28.99)

(ix) Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss account

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Current service cost  13.00  8.49 

Interest cost on benefit obligation  2.43  2.93 

Expected return on plan assets  (0.64)  (0.47)

Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year  (3.79)  (23.79)

Past service cost- Non Vested Benefits  -    -   

Past Service cost -Vested Benefits  -    -   

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c  11.00  (12.84)

(x) Details of Provision for gratuity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Net liability at the beginning of the year  28.99  41.83 

Transfer in (**)  -    -   

Transfer out (*)  -    -   
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Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Expenses recognized during the year  11.00  (12.84)

Net Expenses recognized during the year  11.00  (12.84)

Contribution paid during the year  (10.63)  -   

Net liability at the end of the year  29.36  28.99 

(xi) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Mortality table IALM (2006-08) Ult. LIC (1994-96) Ult.

Interest/Discount rate 7.46% 7.77%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.35% 9.00%

Increase in Compensation cost 5.00% 5.00%

Employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%

Expected average remaining service  13.53 Yrs  13.68 Yrs 

30 PROVISION FOR LEAVE ENCASHMENT

(i) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Opening defined benefit obligation  44.42 

Interest cost  3.07 

Current service cost  30.49  15.26 

Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefits)  -   

Past Service Cost (Vested Benefits)  -   

Benefit paid  (9.82)

Actuarial (gain)/losses on obligation  (43.37)  29.15 

Closing defined benefit obligation  24.79  44.42 

(ii) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Opening fair value of plan assets  -   

Adjusted in opening balance  -   

Expected return  -   

Contributions by employer  9.82 

Benefits paid  (9.82)

Actuarial gains / (losses)  -   

Closing fair value of plan assets  -    -   

(iii) Fair value of plan assets:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of period  -   

Adjusted in opening balance  -   

Actual Return of plan assets  -   

Contributions  9.82 

Benefits paid  (9.82)

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period  -   

Funded status (including unrecognized past service cost)  (24.79)  (44.42)

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets  -  - 
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(iv) Experience History

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

(Gain)/Loss on obligation due to change in Assumption  (16.65)  -   

Experience (Gain)/ Loss on obligation  (26.72)  29.15 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets  -    -   

(v) Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Actuarial  gain/(loss) for the period (Obligation)  43.37  (29.15)

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period – (Plan Assets)  -    -   

Total gain/(loss) for the period  43.37  (29.15)

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized for the period  43.37  (29.15)

Unrecognized Actuarial gain/(loss) at end of period  -    -   

(vi) Past Service cost recognised

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -  - 

Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -  - 

Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit  -  - 

Recognized Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -  - 

Recognized Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -  - 

Unrecognized Past Service Cost – non vested benefits  -  - 

(vii) The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  24.79  44.42 

Fair value of  plan assets at the end of the year  -    -   

Funded status  (24.79)  (44.42)

Excess of actual or estimated  -    -   

Unrecognized actuarial gains / (loss)  -    -   

Unrecognized Past Service cost - Non Vested Benefit  -    -   
Net assets/(liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (24.79)  (44.42)

(viii) Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss account

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Current service cost  30.49  15.26 

Interest cost on benefit obligation  3.07  -   

Expected return on plan assets  -    -   

Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year  (43.37)  29.15 

Past service cost- Non Vested Benefits  -    -   

Past Service cost -Vested Benefits  -    -   

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c  (9.80)  44.42 

(ix) Details of Provision for gratuity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Net liability at the beginning of the year  44.42  -   

Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Expenses recognized during the year  (9.80)  44.42 
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Net Expenses recognized during the year  34.62  44.42 

Contribution paid during the year  (9.82)  -   

Net liability at the end of the year  24.79  44.42 

(x) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Mortality table IALM (2006-08) Ult. IALM (2006-08) Ult.

Interest/Discount rate 7.46% 7.77%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%

Increase in Compensation cost 5.00% 10.00%

Employee turnover 5.00% 5.00%

Expected average remaining service  13.53 Yrs  13.68 Yrs 

31 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business Segments :

The Company is operating in three different business segments i.e. food processing, Bio-mass power generation and logistic. However, 

considering their size, volume of operations the same are not qualified into the reporting criteria of Business segments as  described 

in the accounting Standard (AS) 17 as Segment Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Hence 

no disclosure is required to be made under AS-17 as Segment Reporting.

Geographical Segments :

The Company is carrying on its operational activities in the domestic market i.e. India as well as in overseas market i.e. an export 

hence  geographical segment i.e domestic and overseas has identified as secondary segment and the details of segment results as 

per AS 17 issued by ICAI are as under :-

Information about Secondary Segments

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31st March , 2016
For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

Revenue By Geographical Market

India  155,680.81  122,067.55 

Outside India  2,221.01  5,607.41 

Total  157,901.82  127,674.96 

Addition To Fixed Assets And Intangible Assets

(Include Capital work in progress)

India  1,652.77  1,782.56 

Outside India  -    -   

Total  1,652.77  1,782.56 

Carrying Amount Of Fixed Assets

India  35,360.82  37,585.43 

Outside India  -    -   
Total  35,360.82  37,585.43 

Notes:-
The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows :
• Sales within India includes Sales to Customers located within India.
• Sales Out side India includes Sales to customers located outside India including merchant exporters.

• The carrying amount of segment assets in India and Outside India is based on geographical location of the respective assets.
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32 AUDITORS REMUNERATION
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Statutory Audit Fees  5.00  5.00 

Tax Audit Fees  2.00  2.00 

for Other Service  1.45  0.53 

Service Tax  1.24  0.93 

Total  9.69  8.46 

33 EXPENDITURE/REVENUE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Expenditure in foreign currency (Cash/Accrual basis)

Finance Charges  650.00  620.01 

Travelling Expenses  47.79  13.25 
Professional Fees & Subscription Charges (Excluding Prepaid Exp. of  

` 42.30 Lakhs, PY: Nil)
 231.11  23.96 

Total  928.90  657.22 

Earnings in foreign currency (Cash/Accrual basis)

Export Sales on FOB Basis* ` 500.35 Lakhs
(P.Y. 3755.14 Lakhs)

* Export sales exclude sales to merchant exporter 

34 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
(` in Lakhs)

Contingent Liabilities not provided for 2015-16 2014-15
Letter of Credit issued by the Bankers of the Company for import of capital goods*.  

(Fixed deposits in the form of margin money including interest thereon of  ` Nil 

(P.Y. ` Nil) have been kept with respective bankers for the said letter of credit) 
* Converted on the foreign exchange conversion rate prevailing on the date of the 
balance sheet.

 1,222.52  1,387.78 

The bankers of the Company  has issued Bank Guarantees for EPCG License to 
President of India & for Performance Guarantee to Indian Army (Fixed deposits of 

`  35.25 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 25.25 Lakhs) have been kept with respective Banks for the 
said bank guarantees)

 71.74  125.06 

VAT & CST Liability in respect of A.Y. 2008-09 for which company has filed appeal 
with Appellate Tribunal, Agra in 2013 the appeal still pending for hearing at same 
level.

 29.17  29.17 

Entry Tax Liability in respect of A.Y. 2008-09 for which company had gone into 
appeal with the appropriate authority in the year 2011, the case has been decided 
in the favour of Departement however order is yet to receive, the company is 
planning to file appeal against the order.

 -    4.26 

VAT Liability in respect of A.Y. 2009-10 for which company has filed appeal 
with Additional Commissioner Grade -II (Appeal) Mathura in the year 2012 the 
matter is returned by the Additional Commissioner to Assessing authority for  
re-assessment.

 0.21  0.21 

VAT & CST Liability in respect of A.Y. 2010-11 for which company had gone into 
the appeal with the appropriate authority, now the appeal was decided partially in  

our favour and the Appelleat Authority has reduced the demand of ` 135.45 Lakhs 
in our favour, for pending amount we are planning to move in to higher authorities 
with in time frame.

 66.42  66.42 
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VAT Liability in respect of A.Y. 2012-13 for which company had gone into the 
appeal with the appropriate authority, now the demand order has been quashed by 
the authority and send back the case for regular assessment to Assessing Officer.

 -    2.15 

Traces site of TDS (Income Tax) showing outstanding TDS Liability on account of 
late filling of TDS returns/short TDS deduction. In the opinion of management, 
there is no such liability exists. The management is reconciling the differences as 
reported on traces site and same will be paid, if any liability arise.

29.92 -

Stamp Duty Liability persuant to letter by Stamp Authority, Mathura, dt 13.02.2012, 
dt 22.02.2012 & dt 09.12.2011 (The management has taken expert legal opinion 
on the said stamp duty matter and based on that opinion, the total liability in the 

subject matter may not exceed to ` 12.00 Lakhs and the matter has already been 
taken up with the appropriate authorities.)

 452.00  452.00 

Note: The Company has given Corporate Guarantee for Foreign Currency Loan (ECB) of USD 132.50 Lakhs (equaivalent to  

` 8789.11 Lakhs) (P.Y. USD 132.50 Lakhs (equaivalent to ` 5852.23 Lakhs)) taken by its Subsidiary Company i.e. Usher Eco 
Power Ltd from Axis Bank Limited.This guarantee was given for the intervening period till the stablisation of commercial power 
generation by the said subsidiary company and is due for withdrawal.    
The Company has given Corporate Guarantee for Foreign Currency Loan (ECB) of USD 280.00 Lakhs (equaivalent to  
` 18631.50 Lakhs) (P.Y. USD Nil Lakhs (equaivalent to ` Nil Lakhs)) taken by its Subsidiary Company i.e. Usher Eco Power Ltd 
from Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V (“FMO”) and DEG – Deutsche Investitions- und 
Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH  (“DEG”) in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited acting as the security trustee agent on 
behalf of FMO and DEG. 

The Company has given Corporate Guarantee for foreign currency advance of USD 60.00 Lakhs (Equivelent to ` 3979.97 Lakhs)  
(P. Y. Nil) taken by its wholly owned subsidiary company Usher World Wide FZE, Sharjah from Responsability Fair Trade Fund.

35 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
(All are in ` Lakhs except nos.)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Number of Non-resident shareholders 4 N.A.

Number of Equity Shares held by them 1595 N.A.

Amount of dividend paid (Gross), TDS ` Nil (P.Y.Nil)  797.50 NIL

Year to which dividend relates FY 2015 N.A.

36 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE 

Derivative Instruments:

The Company uses commodities / forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with fluctuation in prices of food grain / commodities/

currency. 

The company does not use forward contract for speculative purposes.

In the forward contract entered by the Company, where the counter party is a recognised commodities exchange. The hedging / 

forward contracts mature generally between one to six months. The company considers the risk of non-performance by the counter 

party as negligible.   

Outstanding short term commodities forward contracts entered into by the Company at the year end are ` Nil .(P.Y.Nil)

Particulars of Outstanding Interest rate swaps to hedge against fluctuations in interest rate change as at the Balance Sheet date:

As at No. of 
Contract

Amount 
(In USD)

Amount 
(` In Lakhs)

31 March 2016 3  18,587,212.43  12,329.44 

31 March 2015 4  19,287,212.43  12,072.02 

Pursuant  to the clarification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on March 29, 2008 on accounting of derivatives, 

the Company has for the year ended March 31, 2016 recognised unrealised loss/proffit  of ` (40.03) Lakhs  (March 31, 2015-  

` 116.86 Lakhs) towards mark to market of the interest rate swap and realised loss on settlement  of derivative of ` 153.93. Lakhs.

The provision for mark to market losses of the interest rate swap as on March 31, 2016 amounts  to  `  154.11 Lakhs  

(March 31, 2015-  `  194.14 Lakhs).
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Particulars of Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the Balance Sheet date:

Particulars Amount

Creditors  for Capital Goods        ` 1,143.50 Lakhs, (JPY 194,267,000)

{P.Y. ` 1,261.96 Lakhs, (JPY 194,267,000; GBP 270,000)}

Foreign Currency Loan ` 13,449.46 Lakhs, (USD 20,275,694.20) 

{P.Y. Rs. 12,024.16 Lakhs,  (USD 19,210,749.15)}

Foreign Debtors ` 58.74 Lakhs, (USD 88,550 )

{` 1,211.37 Lakhs, (USD 1,935,374.00)}

Interest Accrued but Not Due on Foreign currency Loan ` 40.05 Lakhs, (USD 60,370.56)

{` 178.39 Lakhs, (USD 2,85,002.28)}
Interest Accrued and due on Foreign currency Loan Rs. 208.60 Lakhs, (USD 314,470)

{` 183.10 Lakhs, (USD 2,92,529.82)}

Advance from Customers ` 6,548.15 Lakhs (USD 9,871,642.99)

{` 6,178.74 Lakhs (USD 9,871,642.99)}

Advance to Subsidiary ` 133.88 Lakhs, (AED 743,090)

{` 126.97 Lakhs, (AED 743,090)}

Advance From Subsidiary ` 3,100.94 (USD 4,674,814.72)

{` NIL, (USD NIL)}

Investment in Foreign Subsidiary Company ` 27.03 Lakhs, (AED 150,000)

{` 25.46 Lakhs, (AED 150,000)}

* Converted at the foreign exchange conversion rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet.

37 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

As on the Balance Sheet date the carrying amounts of the assets net of accumulated depreciation is not less than the recoverable 

amount of those assets. Hence, in the opinion of the management, there is no provision for impairment loss on the assets of the 

Company required to be made under Accounting Standard-28 (Impairment of Assets) issued by the ICAI.

38 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS                (` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for

 13.92  20.18 

Total  13.92  20.18 

39 DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

As per the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, the company has charged the depreciation in line with the estimated useful lives 

of the assets as mentioned in said Act, except in the cases where the actual life of the assets found by management based on the 

independent technical expert's opinion vary from the life mentioned in the said Schedule. On the basis of evaluation of useful life of the 

assets by the technical expert, the company has considered useful life of computers of 5 years whereas the said Schedule recommends 

the useful life of 3 years and depreciation has been charged in the current financial year accordingly.

40 LEASES

In case of assets taken on lease

Finance Lease :

There are no finance lease transactions in the reporting period hence no disclosure is required to be made under AS 19 – Accounting 

for Leases, issued by the ICAI

Operating Lease :

(i) Office premises, godowns and warehouses are obtained on operating lease basis during the financial year in relation of business. 

The lease terms are normally for 11 months and renewable at the option of the Company. There are no restrictions imposed in 

lease arrangements.
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Operating Lease  (` In Lakhs)
2015-16 2014-15

Lease payments for the year  344.80  324.31 

Minimum Lease Payments  :

Not later than one year  128.05  60.72 

Later than one year but not later than five years  10.15  25.92 

Later than five years  -    -   

(ii) The Company has given office premises on operating lease basis for a period of 3 years: 

 Operating Lease  (` In Lakhs)
2015-16 2014-15

Lease Income for the year  2.70  5.40 

Minimum Lease Payments  :

Not later than one year  -    7.74 

Later than one year but not later than five years  -    10.69 

Later than five years  -    -   

41 RELATED PARTIES

Names of related parties
Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of 
whether transactions have occurred or not

Usher Eco Power Limited. 
(Subsidiary Company)

Usher World Wide FZE 
(Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary Company from 4th July, 2012)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have 
taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel Mr. V. K. Chaturvedi (Managing Director)

Mr. Manoj Pathak (Whole Time Director)
Relatives of key management personnel Mrs. Samta Chaturvedi,  

(wife of Managing Director Mr. V. K. Chaturvedi)
Mrs. Shimla Pathak,  
(Wife of Whole Time Director Mr. Manoj Pathak)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key 
management personnel or their relatives

Usher Capitals Limited. 
Vedika Finance Pvt. Limited  
Usher Oils & Foods Limited. 
Usher Infra Logic Limited. 
Narayani Nivesh Nigam Private Limited

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Subsidiary Key Management 
Personnel (Managing 
Director, Whole time 
director, manager 
and other managerial 
personnel)

Relatives of Key 
Management Per-
sonnel (Spouse, son, 
daughter, brother, 
sister, father, mother 
who may influence 
or be influenced by 
such personnel in 
his dealings with the 
Company)

Enterprises owned 
or significantly influ-
enced  by key man-
agement personnel or 
their relatives

Total  

 Year 
ended on 
March-16 

 9 Months  
ended on 
March-15 

 Year 
ended on 
March-16 

 9 Months  
ended on 
March-15 

 Year 
ended on 
March-16 

 9 Months  
ended on 
March-15 

 Year 
ended on 
March-16 

 9 Months  
ended on 
March-15 

 Year 
ended on 
March-16 

 9 Months  
ended on 
March-15 

Employee Benefits for Key Management Personnel* 

Dr. V. K. Chaturvedi  38.79  58.19  38.79  58.19 

Mr. Manoj Pathak  12.18  18.20  12.18  18.20 

Loan/Business Advances Taken/repayment

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  5,889.09  1,013.72  5,889.09  1,013.72 

Usher World Wide FZE  3,089.89  -    3,089.89  -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  573.04  653.39  573.04  653.39 
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Loan/Business Advances Given/repaid 

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  374.86  463.62  374.86  463.62 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  0.06  747.83  0.06  747.83 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  46.00  -    46.00  -   

Usher World Wide FZE  -    116.52  -    116.52 

Rent Income (Truck/office/Godown)

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  8.80  29.23  8.80  29.23 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  101.39  99.63  101.39  99.63 

Proceeds of Rental Income

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  13.00  102.31  13.00  102.31 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  212.49  143.43  212.49  143.43 

Rent Expenses (Trucks/Office)

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  620.89  126.54  620.89  126.54 

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  1.80  1.35  1.80  1.35 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  4.80  3.60  4.80  3.60 

Payment of Rent (Trucks/office)

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  2.32  1.00  2.32  1.00 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  887.16  206.72  887.16  206.72 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  -    0.36  -    0.36 

Sale of goods

Usher World Wide FZE  84.51  -    84.51  -   

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  2,734.94  352.49  2,734.94  352.49 

Proceeds of sale of Goods

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  2,127.61  317.20  2,127.61  317.20 

Purchase  of Steam /Electricity 

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  844.75  711.76  844.75  711.76 

Reimbursement Incurred by related party on our Behalf

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  85.92  -    85.92  -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  0.96  2.33  0.96  2.33 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  6.10  9.01  6.10  9.01 

Repayment to related party of expenses reimbursement

Usher Eco Power Ltd.

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  -    9.01  -    9.01 

Incurred for related party  

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  116.75  -    116.75  -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  510.31  20.79  510.31  20.79 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  51.64  15.98  51.64  15.98 

Usher Capitals Ltd.  0.67  3.07  0.67  3.07 

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  0.24  -    0.24  -   

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  13.51  14.34  13.51  14.34 

Repaid by the related party

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  -    15.98  -    15.98 

Corporate Guarantee Given

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  8,631.51  1,250.00  -    1,250.00 

Outstanding amount of Corporate Guarantee 

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  4,483.74  5,852.23  -    5,852.23 

Advance against supply

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  2,165.19  1,075.74  2,165.19  1,075.74 

Balances Outstanding at the year end (Dr/(Cr))*

Mr. V. K. Chaturvedi  -21.44  -37.13  -21.44  -37.13 

Mr. Manoj Pathak  -4.76  -0.82  -4.76  -0.82 

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  0.31  0.21  0.31  0.21 
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Usher Eco Power Ltd.  -1,293.92  2,261.72  -1,293.92  2,261.72 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  190.67  73.13  190.67  73.13 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  17.47  14.38  17.47  14.38 

Usher Capitals Ltd.  6.75  6.08  6.75  6.08 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  87.79  -5.66  87.79  -5.66 

Usher World Wide FZE  -2,967.06  126.35  -2,967.06  126.35 

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  0.38  -    0.38  -   

Outstanding amount of Corporate Guarantee 

Usher Eco Power Ltd.  4,483.74  5,852.23  -    5,852.23 

Totals Balance outstanding.  -4,260.98  8,240.30  -26.20  -37.95  0.31  0.21  303.06  87.93  -3,983.81  8,290.49 

"All the transactions were held on Arms length Basis"

42 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED   (` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  122,058.47  88,722.14 

Wheat  12,314.59  10,050.72 

Packing Material  928.80  679.12 

Pulses-Raw  25,629.01  10,225.51 

Total  160,930.87  109,677.49 

43 PURCHASE OF RAW MATERIAl   (` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  103,113.62  96,323.11 

Wheat  15,735.88  9,399.84 

Packing Material  968.70  674.27 

Pulses-Raw  24,689.55  11,268.55 

Total  144,507.76  117,665.78 

44 SALE OF RAW MATERIAl  (` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  5,370.36  -   

Total  5,370.36  -   

45 VALUE OF SALES, CLOSING AND OPENING INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS & BY-PRODUCTS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Opening Stock 

Rice  7,161.49  8,837.36 

Wheat Products  2,410.42  347.92 

Pulses Finished  4,034.88  685.60 

Others (By-Products)  909.47  275.07 

Total  14,516.26  10,145.96 

Sales

Rice  97,662.82  103,475.98 

Wheat Products  16,335.13  10,039.70 

Pulses Finished  28,175.39  7,253.78 

Others (By-Products)  9,993.15  6,681.01 

Total  152,166.48  127,450.48 
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Closing Stocks

Finished Rice  4,576.41  7,161.49 

Wheat Product  1,415.23  2,410.42 

Pulses Finished  3,935.09  4,034.88 

Others (By-Products)  234.50  909.47 

Total  10,161.23  14,516.26 

46 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Provision for current tax has been made as per provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, after considering deduction/exemptions, 

if any, available to the Company under the said Act.

47 The Balances of Debtors, Creditors, Loans & Advances and other parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any. 

Some of the Debtors have raised various claims against the company on account of rate difference, delayed delivery and quality  

issues. The company is in the process of settlement of the said claims and that the necessary effect, if any, in respect of the same, 

shall be given in the books of account as and when the settlement is made. In some of these cases, the company has issued legal 

notices and in case of failure of the customers to settle/ pay the dues, the company will initiate appropriate legal proceedings 

against the debtors.

48 Inventories as at the end of year comprising stock of paddy and rice is inclusive of certain quantities of paddy wherein there had 
been substantial deteriorational in quality due to fungal development and other bacterial infection and high moisture content. 
Part of such inventory has been sold at substantial lower value during the subsequent quarter, as compared to the valuation (at 
cost) considered as on the  Balance Sheet date. However, the financial impact of the same has been considered during the ensuing 
quarter whan the same was actually sold. Had the financial impact of the same inventory loss of ` 11,719.32 Lakh would have 
been considered as on 31.03.2016, the accumulated losses of the company would have been higher by ` 11,719.32 Lakh and as 
a result the net worth of the company would have been eroded fully.

49 In the opinion of the Board, the Assets (other than fixed assets & non current investments) are approximately of the value stated 
if realized in the ordinary course of business and the provisions of all known liabilities are adequate.

50 FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION

The Company has opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of long term foreign currency monetary 
items in line with Companies (Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2009 relating to Accounting Standard 11(AS-11) 
notified by Government of India on 31st March, 2009. Accordingly the effect of exchange differences on foreign currency loans 
of the company is accounted by addition or deduction to the cost of the assets so far it relates to the depreciable capital assets. 
The total amount of foreign exchange fluctuation profit/ (loss) of ` (701.95 ) Lakhs P.Y. (265.57) Lakhs has been reduced/added 
from CWIP/pre operative expenses account/ fixed assets during the year.

51  All lenders of the company, in a meeting of Joint Lenders Forum (JLF) held on 13th May 2016, have agreed for a Strategic 
Debt Restructuring (SDR) Scheme for the better financial health of the company. In the said meeting the reference date to 
be considered was decided at 13th May 2016, in terms of the Reserve Bank of India guidelines. At present the Strategic Debt 
Restructuring (SDR) Scheme is still in the process of finalization

52  CFSITInc, USA has filed Wingding Up Petition (Petition No. 376 of 2016)under section  433,434 and 439 of the companies 
act 1956 (Equivalent of Section 272 & others of the companies act,2013) before Hon'ble Bombay High Court against the 
company for  outstandingdues of ` 6548.14 Lakhs ($10 Million)with the interest @12% as per the advance payment and supply 
contract. Company has received the intimation from their consultant Cyril AmarchandManagaldas Advocates and Solicitors and 
the proceeding of the petition is pending before Hon'ble Bombay High Court.

53  PT Bank Maybank Indonesia TbkMumbai has filed Winding up petition under section 433 and 434 of the companies act 1956 
(Equivalent of Section 272 & others of the companies act, 2013) before Hon'ble Bombay High Court against the company. 
Company has received the intimation from their consultant M/s Kanga and Co. and the proceeding of the petition is pending 
before Hon'ble Bombay High Court.
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54 Axis bank has imposed Penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 lakh. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in the 
statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank. As per management opinion, bank 
has debited without intimation to the company and matter is under discussion with bank and same will be reveres in future.

55 The management has initiated the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods and services to the company 
and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. The company has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further in the view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may 
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.

56  Previous Year figures has been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to correspond with the current period classification/ 
disclosure

As per our Report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016
Place : Mumbai
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IndePendent audItOR’S RePORt On 
cOnSOlIdated FInancIal StateMentS
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHER AGRO LIMITED

Report on theConsolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of USHER AGRO LIMITED (‘hereinafter referred to as the 
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) , which comprises 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter 
referred to as the consolidated financial statements).

Management’s responsibility for theConsolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters specified in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the consolidated audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Consolidated Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred 
to in sub-paragraphs of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. CFSIT Inc, USA has filed Winding-up Petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding Dues of `  6,548.14 lakh  
($10 Million) with the interest @12% p.a. as per the advance payment and supply contract. An interest amount comes to ` 336.08 
lakh ($0.507 Million) approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements. 

 Had the company made such Interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been higher by 
` 336.08 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.

2. PT Bank Maybank Indonesia Tbk, Mumbai has filed Winding up petition against the company for recovery of their outstanding 
dues of `  1778.18 lakh with the interest @16.4% p.a. The proceeding is pending before Hon'ble Bombay High Court. An interest 
amount comes to Rs.6.28 lakh approx. for which the company has not made any provision in the financial statements.

 Had the company made such Interest provision in the Statement of Profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been higher by 
` 6.28 lakh and the accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount.
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3. Axis bank has imposed Penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 lakh. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in the 
statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank. 

 Had the company expensed out such Penal Charges in the statement of profit and loss, the loss for the year would have been higher 
by  ̀  70.45 lakh and accumulated profit would have been lower by an equivalent amount and short term borrowing would have been 
lower by an equivalent amount.

4. One of the Subsidiary Company has incurred expenses aggregating ` 165.07 lakhs from the financial year 2008-09 till year ended 
March 31, 2014 in connection with its Initial Public Offering (IPO). As explained in Note No. 53 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Company has dropped the IPO. However, such expenditure has not been written off in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and has been included under ‘Other Current Assets’, for adjustment against the securities premium that will be received upon 
the issuance of shares in future. 

 Had the Company written off the Pre IPO Expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the loss for the year as 
well as the accumulated losses would have been higher by ` 165.07 lakhs and Other Current Assets would have been lower by an 
equivalent amount.

5. One of the Subsidiary Company had paid processing fees of ` 27.57 lakhs in earlier years for a term loan facility whose availment 
period has expired and its drawdown conditions have also not been fulfilled. The Company has not written off such fees for reasons 
explained in Note 54 and the amount has been included under ‘Other Non - Current Assets’.

 Had the Company written off the processing fees in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the loss for the year as well 
as the accumulated losses would have been higher by ` 27.57 lakhs  and ‘Other Non-Current Assets’ would have been lower by an 
equivalent amount.

6. As explained in Note No. 55, one of the Subsidiary Company had booked additional sales of ` 143.53 lakhs for the period from 
April 1, 2014 till January 19, 2015 in the financial year 2014-15. On the basis of an appeal filed by Cogeneration Association to 
the Appellate Tribunal of Electricity – New Delhi (ATE) for the change in effective date of increase in the rate of sale of electricity, 
such amount has been considered as recoverable from UPPCL. As the recoverability of such amount is dependent on the decision 
of the ATE, we are unable to determine whether such amount shall be fully recovered by the Company and its resultant impact on 
the loss for the year and on ‘Trade Receivables’ as on March 31, 2016.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters

We would like to draw attention to the following matters:

a) All the lenders of the Consortium in Joint Lenders forum (JLF) meeting held on 13th of May, 2016, agreed for opting option 
of Strategic Debt Restructuring (SDR) scheme for better financial situation of the company. Referral date for SDR is decided  
13th May,  2016.

b) Reference is invited to Note No.49 to the consolidated financial statements, which states that balances of Sundry Debtors, Creditors, 
Loans & Advances and other parties are subject to confirmation and consequent adjustments, if required.

c) Reference is invited to Note No. 56 to the consolidated financial statements, which states that Substantial portion of the Company’s 
Net Worth is eroded in the March Quarter. In the June Quarter Company has also incurred losses as a result of which Company’s 
Net worth is fully eroded.

d) in case of one of the Subsidiary Company’s’, as explained in Note no. 57 of the consolidated financial statements, with regard to 
manner in which closing value of Inventory of fuel has been determined.

e) in case of one of the Subsidiary Company’s’, as explained in Note No. 58 of the consolidated financial statements, with regard 
to remuneration of ` 52.79 Lakhs paid by the Company to the Managing Directors for the period June 25, 2013 to October 10, 
2014, prior approval of Central Government has not been obtained.The necessary application for waiver of excess remuneration so 
paid has been made to Central Government during the year 2015-16. Pending such approval, the amount paid has been shown as 
recoverable and included under ‘Short Term Loans and Advances’.

Considering the matters set out in above notes, financial statement is prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of these matters.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 2 subsidiaries whose financial statements / financial information 
reflect total assets of ` 30,994.34 Lakhs (P. Y. ` 14,835.52 Lakhs) as at March 31, 2016, total revenues of ` 7,042.61 Lakhs  
(P. Y. ` 4957.35 Lakhs) and net cash inflows amounting to `  8,371.37 Lakhs (P. Y.  ` (-)8.33 Lakhs) for the year ended on that date, 
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial 
statements and financial information certified by the Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 

(11) of section 143 of the Act, the said order specifically provides that it shall not apply to the auditor’s report on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

2.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that:
a. except for the possible effect of the matter described in of the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, we have sought and 

obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

b. except for the possible effect of the matter described in of the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above,In our opinion 
proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements;

d. except for the possible effect of the matter described in of the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2016, and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary 
companiesn one of the directors of the group companies are disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,  Emphasis of Matter paragraph read further with para vii 
b and viii of our report in Annexure “A” of standalone financial statements, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the 
functioning of the Group. 

g. the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion paragraph above; 

h. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls; refer to our Report in Annexure A, which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the Holding company’s and subsidiary companies incorporated in India internal financial controls over financial reporting; and

i. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Consolidated financial statements discloses the impact of pending litigation on the consolidated financial position of the group 
- Refer to Note 37 of notes to consolidated financial statements 

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for 
material foreseeable losses if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to transfer to the investor’s education and protection fund by Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies during the year.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 104184W/ W100075

CA Viraj Savla
Designated Partner

M. No. 153525

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13th August, 2016

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in Para 2 (h) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of 
the Holding Company on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016. 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016, we 
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHER AGRO LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, as of that date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, 
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are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Holding Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by “the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” 

Emphasis of Matter
We would draw attention to matters disclosed in Paragraphs 1 under ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’, and Emphasis of matters which could 
indicate possible lapses in internal financial controls system at various points in time. 
Our opinion under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such company 
incorporated in India.

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 104184W/ W100075

CA Viraj Savla
Designated Partner
M. No.153525

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13.08.2016
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cOnSOlIdated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2016

Particulars Note
As at 

31st March, 2016
 As at 

31st March, 2015
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholder's Funds
a Share Capital 3  3,805.90  3,805.90 
b Reserves and Surplus 4  8,214.88  36,674.20 

 12,020.78  40,480.10 
2 Share Application Money  
3 Minority Interest  181.53  198.21 
4 Non-Current Liabilities
a Long-Term Borrowings 5  29,730.71  22,910.34 
b Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  2,217.17  2,516.80 
c Other Long Term Liabilities 7  1,282.53  1,494.24 
d Long-Term Provisions 8  60.80  41.20 

 33,291.22  26,962.58 
5 Current Liabilities
a Short-Term Borrowings 9  82,375.49  70,656.67 
b Trade Payables 10  17,669.36  11,678.66 
c Other Current Liabilities 11  21,724.01  16,369.15 
d Short-Term Provisions 12  403.82  651.38 

 122,172.69  99,355.86 
Total  167,666.21  166,996.75 

II ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a Fixed assets 13

i.  Tangible Assets  43,160.62  44,827.86 
ii. Intangible Assets  76.05  99.54 
iii Goodwill  43.88  43.88 
ii. Capital Work-In-Progress 31  4,218.42  3,640.96 

 47,498.97  48,612.24 
b Non-Current Investments 14  11.28  11.28 
c Long-Term Loans And Advances 15  1,610.46  58.44 
d Other Non Current Assets 16  2,589.17  2,006.03 

 4,210.91  2,075.75 
2 Current assets
a Inventories 17  48,508.22  69,236.78 
b Trade Receivables 18  46,977.44  37,417.32 
c Cash and Cash Equivalents 19  8,297.79  1,659.88 
d Short-Term Loans And Advances 20  475.94  419.19 
e Other Current Assets 21  11,696.94  7,575.59 

 115,956.33  116,308.76 
Total  167,666.21  166,996.75 
Notes to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss 1-64

(` In Lakhs) 

As per our Report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai
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(` In Lakhs) 

cOnSOlIdated StateMent  
OF PROFIt & lOSS
for the year ending on 31st March 2016

Particulars Note
Year Ended 
31.03.2016

Nine Months Ended 
31.03.2015 

I Revenue from Operations 22  161,317.91  131,494.00 

II Other Income 23  382.82  148.88 

III Total Revenue (I + II)  161,700.73  131,642.88 

IV Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 24  162,977.04  112,947.31 

Changes in Inventories(Increase)/Decrease of Finished Goods 25  4,355.03  (4,370.30)

Employee Benefits Expense 26  2,180.84  1,453.45 

Finance Costs 27  12,959.12  9,005.19 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 28  4,527.65  3,771.02 

Other Expenses 29  4,652.03  4,068.52 

Total expenses  191,651.71  126,875.20 

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-IV)  (29,950.97)  4,767.68 

VI Exceptional items  -    -   

VII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  (29,950.97)  4,767.68 

VIII Extraordinary Items  -    -   

IX Profit before tax (VII- VIII)  (29,950.97)  4,767.68 

X Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax  -    414.48 

(2) Deferred Tax  (299.64)  494.84 

(3) Short /( Excess )Provision for Income Tax for Earlier Years  137.59 -

XI Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (IX-X)  (29,788.93)  3,858.36 

XII Minority Interest  (16.68)  (235.27)

XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -    -   

XIV Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)  -    -   
XV Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XIV)  -    -   
XVI Earnings per equity share:  (29,772.24)  4,093.63 

Basic  (78.23)  10.76 

Diluted  (78.23)  10.76 

Notes to Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss 1-64

As per our Report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai
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cOnSOlIdated caSh FlOw StateMent
for the year ended 31st March 2016

Particulars
For the year ended 

31.03.2016 

For the Nine  
Months Ended 

31.03.2015 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax  (29,950.97)  4,767.68 

Other Income  (235.60)  (148.88)

Proposed Dividends  -    (190.30)

Corporate Dividend Tax  -    (38.74)

Loss on sale of assets  -    2.07 

Provision for MTM on Derivative Contract  (65.46)  -   

Liabilities no longer payable written back  (81.76)  -   

Profit elimination  14.46  -   

Interest cost  12,959.12  9,005.19 

Depreciation\Amortisation  4,527.65  3,771.02 

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes  (12,832.57)  17,168.04 

Adjustments for movement in working capital:

Adjustment for Increase/( Decrease) in operating Liabilities

Trade Payables  5,990.70  2,324.48 

Short-Term Borrowings  11,718.81  16,586.77 

Other Current Liability  2,628.36  5,751.04 

Short term provision  (240.25)  221.02 

Long term provision  19.60  151.80 

Adjustment for (Increase)/ Decrease in operating Assets - -

Inventories  20,728.56  (11,724.21)

Trade receivables  (9,560.12)  (11,158.42)

Short-term Loans & Advances  (56.75)  (146.98)

Other Current Assets  (4,123.18)  (5,005.24)

Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities  14,273.15  14,168.30 

Add / (Less) : Direct Taxes - -

Other Income  54.01  61.97 

Tax Paid  (144.89)  (704.63)

Net Cash from / (Used in) Operating Activities (A)  14,182.26  13,525.64 

(` In Lakhs) 
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B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

(Purchase)/Sale of Fixed Assets (Including CWIP)  (1,057.98)  (2,054.97)

Long Term Loan/Advances (include non current assets)  (2,064.22)  299.19 

Interest Income  181.59  86.91 

Long term creditors for Capital Goods  (115.81)  (127.35)

Investment  -    7.74 

Cash from / (Used in) Investing Activities (B)  (3,056.40)  (1,788.49)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (net of Repayment)  6,883.88  (850.14)

Capital Receipts  -    99.58 

Finance Cost  (12,260.15)  (8,878.35)

Cash from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C )  (5,376.27)  (9,628.91)

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C )  5,749.59  2,108.24 

Cash & Cash equivalent as at beginning of the year  1,652.40  448.40 

Other Bank Balance as at beginning of the year  1,739.95  835.71 

Cash & Cash equivalent as at end of the year  8,291.24  1,652.40 

Other Bank Balance as at end of the year  850.70  1,739.95 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C )  5,749.59  2,108.24 

Additional information:

1)  Figures in brackets represent outflows.

2)  Previous years figures have been restated where necessary.

As per our Report of even date

For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Reg. No. : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-

CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak

Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director

M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai
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SIgnIFIcant accOuntIng POlIcIeS 
& nOteS tO accOuntS

1.      Corporate Overview

Usher Agro Limited is engaged in the business of food processing, mainly basic food i.e. wheat, rice, pulses  and power generation 

from biomass. The Group is having manufacturing facilities for wheat, rice, pulses milling and rick husk based 16 MW power 

plant. 

2. 1  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of preparation 

 The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting 

Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis The accounting 

policies have been consistently applied by the Company and except for the changes in accounting policy, if any, as discussed below 

in detail, are consistent with those used in the previous year.

(b) Current–non-current classification 

 Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria, in the opinion of the management:

i. it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months 

after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria, in the opinion of the management:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity 

instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(c) Fixed Assets  

Fixed assets are stated at cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 

if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost (including pre-operative and trial & run expenses) of bringing 

the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 
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Assets under installation or under construction as at the Balance Sheet date are shown as Capital work in progress.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost 

of such assets till the period , such assets are ready to be put to use, the qualifying assets is one that take substantial period 

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing cost not attributable to the acquisition of any capital assets 

are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. The cost of acquisition is further adjusted for exchange 

difference relating to long term foreign currency borrowing attributable to the acquisition of depreciable assets. 

(d) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per the rates prescribed under schedule II of the Companies Act, 

2013. Depreciation on addition/deletion to the assets during the year is provided on pro-rata basis. 

Depreciation on the Fixed Assets pertaining to Electricity business (UEPL) are provided on Straight Line Method, as per the 

rates and in the manners prescribed as per the Uttar Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (UPERC). 

(e) Impairment 

i. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based 

on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.  In assessing 

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

ii. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(f) Leases 

 Finance Lease Transaction:

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 

leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of 

the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of 

the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged directly against income. Lease management 

fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased 

assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Lease Transaction :

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified 

as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.

(g) Investments 

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 

All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 

determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in 

value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

(h) Inventories

Raw materials, compo-
nents, stores and spares

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the pro-
duction of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.
Cost of Inventory of Fuel at UEPL is determined on Weighted Average basis.

Work-in-progress and 
finished goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion 
of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(i) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 

be reliably measured. 

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. 

Income from Services

Revenues from Job work & stock processing of material are recognised as and when services are rendered.

Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

(j) Deferred Revenue Expenditure 

Any expense which is the nature of Preliminary expenses, has write off in the year which they have incurred from/against the 

Profit & Loss Account. 

Any expenses related to public issue/QIP/any other capital raising issue has write off entire expenses in the year which they have 

incurred from/against the security premium account.

(k) Foreign currency translation

(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary 

items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange 

rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii) Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting company's monetary items at rates 

different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, 

are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise. Exchange differences arising in respect of 

fixed assets acquired from outside India are capitalized as a part of fixed asset. In case of consolidation of financial 

figures of those subsidiaries companies, which have different accounting period, the books are consolidated on the 

basis of the figures as on the date of the account closing of that subsidiary company.

(l) Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions are charged to 

the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other 

obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

ii. Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligations and is provided for, on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the 

end of each financial year.

iii. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit and loss account and are not deferred.

(m) Income taxes 

 Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.  Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be 

paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.  Deferred income taxes reflects the impact 

of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing 

differences of earlier years. 
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 Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 

date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company has unabsorbed depreciation 

or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 

evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits. 

 At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets.  It recognizes unrecognized deferred 

tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

(n) Expenditure on new projects and substantial expansion 

 Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction 

period is capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to 

construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction 

period which is not related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

Income earned during construction period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

All direct capital expenditure on expansion are capitalized. As regards indirect expenditure on expansion, only that portion 

is capitalized which represents the marginal increase in such expenditure involved as a result of capital expansion. Both 

direct and indirect expenditure are capitalized only if they increase the value of the asset beyond its original standard of 

performance. 

(o) Segment Reporting Policies 

Primary segment is identified based on the nature of products and services. Secondary segment is identified based on 

geography in which major operating division of the company operate. 

For primary segment, the segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified 

to segment on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and 

liabilities which relate to the group as a whole and are not allocable to segment on reasonable basis, have been included 

under "Unallocated revenue/expenses/assets/liabilities". 

(p) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period.  Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they 

were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.  The weighted 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a 

rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

(q) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 

discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance 

sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Liabilities 

whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are treated as contingent and disclosed by way of 

Notes on Accounts.

(r) Financial Commodity  Derivatives Transaction 

In respect of derivative contracts, premium paid, gain / losses on settlement and provision for losses for cash flow hedges 

are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account except in case where they relate to the acquisition or construction of fixed 

assets, in which case, they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.
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(s) Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 

of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statement and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 

reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management best knowledge of current events and actions. 

Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the 

periods in which the results are known/materialize.

(t) Government Grants

Grants from the Government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant /subsidy will be received 

and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

Government Grants related to specific fixed assets has been deducted from the gross value of the assets concerned in 

arriving at their book value. 

Government Grants of the nature of the revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the profit and loss account over the 

periods necessary to match them with related costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants either be shown 

under ‘other income’ or deducted in reporting the related expenses.

(u) Principal of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial information incorporates the results of the parent and its subsidiary companies. The control is 

normally evidenced when the company is able to govern another company’s financial and operating policies so has to benefit 

from its activities or where the company owns, either directly or indirectly, the majority of another company’s equity voting 

rights unless in exceptional circumstances it can be demonstrated that ownership does not constitute control.

Particulars of subsidiary are given below:-

Name of the Com-
pany

Country of 
incorpora-
tion 

Date of becom-
ing subsidiary

% of voting pow-
er held on 31st 
March, 2016

% of voting pow-
er held on  31st 
March, 2015

Financial year 
ending on

Usher Eco Power Ltd. India 22nd August, 
2010

69.49% 69.49% 31st March

Usher Worldwide FZE UAE 4th July, 2012 100.00% 100.00% 31st March

(v) Goodwill

Goodwill arising out of consolidation of financial statements of Subsidiaries and joint Ventures is not amortised. However 

the same is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet Date.

2.2 Basis of preparation of consolidated Financial Statement

 The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statement of Usher Agro Limited (UAL) and its 

subsidiary companies Usher Eco power limited (UEPL) and Usher Worldwide FZE (UWW)

 Reference in theses notes to the ‘company’ shall mean to include UAL and its subsidiaries viz. UEPL and UWW 

consolidated in these financial statements unless otherwise stated.

i) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the mandatory 

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company

ii) The financial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been considered on a line by line basis 

by adding together the value like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group 

balances and intra-group  transactions resulting in unrealized profit or loss.    

iii) The consolidated financial statement have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 

other events in similar circumstances and are presented, to the extent  possible, in the same manner as the UAL and 

UEPL separate financial statements.
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iv) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary over the net assets at the time of acquisition of share 

in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as goodwill, which is not being amortized, or Capital 

reserve as the case may be.

v) Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated financial statements for the year is identified and adjusted the 

income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to share holder of the company.

vi) Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated 

balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders.

vii) In case of foreign subsidiaries being non integral operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rates 

prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any 

exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”.

 There has been no change in the holding Company’s interest in the subsidiary between the end of financial year of the 

subsidiary and the end of the holding company financial year.

 There has been no material changes which have occurred between the end of the financial year of subsidiary companies 

and that of the holding company’s financial year.

2.3 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between the Group’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition 

at each point of time of making the investment in the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Group’s share of net worth is 

determined on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for 

material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.
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3 SHARE CAPITAL
 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Authorised Share Capital

5,00,00,000 (Prev.Year 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  5,000.00  5,000.00 

Total  5,000.00  5,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital

3,80,59,039 (P.Y.3,80,59,039) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  3,805.90  3,805.90 

Total  3,805.90  3,805.90 

a) A reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the accounting year, is set out 
below:

Particulars  2015-16  2014-15 

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Equity Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  38,059,039  38,059,039 

Add: shares issued during the year  -    -   
Equity shares at the end of the year  38,059,039  38,059,039 

b) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10. The equity shares have rights, preferences and 
restrictions which are in accordance with the provisions of law, in particular the Companies Act,2013.

c) There are nil number of shares ( Previous year Nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company 
or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiary or associates of the holding company or the 
ultimate holding company in aggregate.

d) Shares in the company held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares, as on 31.03.2016

Name of the Shareholder As on 31.03.2016  As on 30.06.2015 

No. of Shares Percentage (%) No. of Shares Percentage (%) 

Mr. Vinod Chaturvedi  4,567,470 12.00%  4,692,470 12.33%

Mr. Manoj Pathak  3,284,060 8.63%  3,284,060 8.63%

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt Limited  2,008,740 5.28%  2,008,740 5.28%

Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited  2,590,312  6.81%  2,590,312 6.81%

Abhi Ambi Financial Services Limited  4,426,893 11.63%  4,951,893 13.01%

e) There are nil number of shares ( Previous year Nil) reserved for issue under option and contracts /commitment for the sale of 
shares/disinvetment including the terms and amounts.

f) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the balance sheet is prepared

Particulars No. of Equity 
Shares

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paidup pursuant to contract(s) without payment 
being received in cash   

Nil

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paidup by way of bonus shares. Nil

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back   Nil

g) During the year there are no securities issued/converted which are convertible into equity/preference shares. However On 
15th December 2009 the company has issued 60,00,000 warrants on preferential basis to the promoters and others to raise  
` 2,460 Lakhs through preferential allotment. out of which, 10,00,000 warrants and 50,00,000 warrants have been converted 
in to equity share in financial year 2009-10 and 2010-11 respectively.    

h) There are no calls unpaid ( Previous year No ) including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on balance sheet date
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4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Capital Reserve

Opening balance  99.58  -   

(+)Grant received From Government  -    99.58 

Closing Balance  99.58  99.58 

General Reserve

Opening balance  2,252.00  2,252.00 

(+) Current Year Transfer  -    -   

(-) Written Back in Current Year  -   

Closing Balance  2,252.00  2,252.00 

Securities Premium

Opening balance  11,546.21  11,546.21 

Add:Received during the year  -    -   

     Closing Balance  11,546.21  11,546.21 

Foreign Currency Transalation Reserve  7.76 7.76

Revaluation Reserve

    Opening balance - -

Add: during the year 1298.46   -

Closing Balance  1,298.46  -   

Debt Redemption Reserve

    Opening balance  8,000.00  4,000.00 

Add: during the year  -    4,000.00 

Closing Balance  8,000.00  8,000.00 

Profit and Loss Account

    Opening balance  14,768.65  16,010.82 

    (+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year  (29,772.24)  4,093.63 

    (-) Debt Redemption Reserve  -    4,000.00 

    (-) Profit elimination  (14.46)  -   

    (-) Proposed Dividends  -    190.30 

    (-) Corporate Dividend Tax  -    38.74 

    (-) Deferred/(current) Tax for earlier year  -    1,106.76 

    Closing Balance  (14,989.14)  14,768.65 

     TOTAL  8,214.88  36,674.20 

5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
 ` In Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

11% Non-Convertible Debenture 4  5,032.50 

Term Loans(Secured)

i)  From Banks & Others

 In Foreign Currency (1,5 & 6)  12,075.05  12,043.39 

 In Rupees (2&7)  8,885.38  10,095.04 

ii) From Financial Institutions    

In Rupees (3 & 8)  755.18  771.91 
iii)  Term Loans(Un-Secured)
    i) From Banks & Others
        In Foreign Currency 9  2,982.60  -   

Total  29,730.71  22,910.34 
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1.   Foreign Currency borrowings are secured by way of  first pari passu charge on the entire immovable and movable fixed assets of the 
company and second pari passu charge on the entire current assets of the company present and future created in favour of respective 

Banks/Trustees along with the personal guarantees of the Directors of the Company namely Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj 

Pathak.    

Repayment Schedule

Loan From Banks No. of Installments  Frequency  Commencing from 

Rabo Bank International Ltd 9  Half yearly  Dec, 2012 

ICICI Bank Ltd. 11  Half yearly  Sept, 2014 

2.   Rupee Term Loan are secured by way of  first pari passu charge on the entire immovable and movable assets of the company and second 

pari passu charge on the entire current assets of the company, both present and future created in favour of respective Banks/Trustees 

along with the personal guarantees of the Directors of the company namely Dr. Vinod K. Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj Pathak.

Repayment Schedule

Loan From Banks No. of Installments  Frequency  Commencing from 

Axis Bank Ltd 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

Dena Bank 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

EXIM Bank of India 20 Quarterly Sept, 2014

ICICI Bank (Vehicle Loan)3 36 Monthly Feb, 2014

IDBI Corporate Loan 18 Quarterly March, 2015

L & T Finance Limited 13 Quarterly Dec, 2013

Bank Of Maharashtra 16 Quarterly Dec, 2016

IDBI Corporate Loan 18 Quarterly Sep, 2016

3.   Equipment and Vehicle loans are secured against the respective equipment / vehicles financed through the said loans.

4.  4 11 % Non-convertible debenture secured against first and exclusive charge/pledge to be created by the company over the insturments 

and personal guarantee and undertaking of directors, Payment due after 4 years on deemed date of allotment, interest due on Half 

yearly basis.    

For Subsidiaries UEPL

5.  The ECB facility from Axis Bank is secured by first charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company and exclusive charge on Debt 

service reserve account (DSRA), Corporate guarantee by Usher Agro Ltd. and personal guarantee of Mr. V.K. Chaturvedi & Mr. Manoj 

Chaturvedi (Directors of the Company). The ECB facility is repayable in 24 unequal quarterly instalments, commencing from the first 

quarter of the financial year 2012-13.  The rate of interest is Six months LIBOR+5%.    

6.  The ECB facility from Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. and Deutsche Investitions- Und 

Entwicklungsgesellschaftmbh (FMO & DEG) is secured by first ranking mortgage on the entire immovable properties of the Company 

located at Chhata and a first ranking charge over all the movable and tangible assets of project, rights, title, interest, benefits, claims 

and demand in respect of the prepayment account opened as per the agreement executed, technology transfer agreement, PPA with 

Dakshinanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Pvt Ltd, all insurance policies in relation  to the project and an assignment of the borrowers right 

under the agreement with Goodyear Tyre & Rubber Company Limited and Corporate guarantee by Usher Agro Ltd. and personal 

guarantee of Mr. V.K. Chaturvedi & Mr. Manoj Chaturvedi (Directors of the Company). The ECB facility is repayable in 25 equal quarterly 

installments, commencing from the 15th October 2018.  The rate of interest is LIBOR+4.60%.    

7.  Term loan from banks is secured by first charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company,  second charge on the current assets of the 

Company, exclusive charge on Debt Service Reserve account (DSRA) and personal guarantee of Mr V.K. Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj 

Chaturvedi (Directors of the company ). The term loan is repayable in 20 unequal quarterly installments starting from June 30, 2015.

The rate of interest is Base Rate +2.75% per annum.     

8.  It is secured by First Exclusive charge on the Debt Service Reserve Account to be created  by borrower in favour of Reliance Capital 

Limited (RCL), First exclusive charge on Escrow Account where all the cash flows from the sale of the steam shall be deposited, Second 
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Pari Passu charge on entire immovable and movable fixed assets of the Company (Present and Future) and personal guarantee of  

Mr. V.K. Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj Chaturvedi (Directors of the Company). The term loan shall be repayable in 32 structured quarterly 

installments starting from 1st July 2014 and ending on 1st April 2022. The rate of interest is RCL Prime Lending Rate minus 3.5% per 

annum.    

For Subsidiaries UWW

9.  The company has given corporate guarantee of USD 60 Lakhs ( USD 50 lakh for CG for loan and rest for interest/cost etc, equivalent 

to ` 3721.13 lakh in favor of Responsibility Fair Trade fund for taking business loan/advances  in the wholly owned subsidiary company 

UWW, FZE sharjah ,UAE as per document executed during the year. 

6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES(NET)
(In respect of the timing differences)

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Deferred Tax Liability 

On account of Unabsorbed Depreciation  3,070.53  3,256.16 

On Account of Employee Benefit Expenses  -    -   

Deferred Tax Assets

On account of Depreciation  643.33  536.08 

On account of Business Loss  207.17  202.30 

On Account of Employee Benefit Expenses  2.85  0.97 

Total  2,217.17  2,516.80 

7 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

 Long term Creditors for Capital Goods  1,143.50  1,259.31 

 Provision for Mark to Market (MTM) on derivative Contract  139.03  234.93 

 Total  1,282.53  1,494.24 

8 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Leave Encashment  27.09  41.20 

    Provision for Gratuity  33.71  -   

Total  60.80  41.20 

9 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
 (Loans Repayable on Demand)

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Secured Borrowings from Banks*

In Foreign Currency  4,311.64  9,508.65 

In Rupees  73,688.72  56,772.90 

Secured Borrowings From other's

From Financial Institutions  1,100.00  1,100.00 

Unsecured Borrowings from others

Loans Repayable on Demand- From Banks  2,500.00  2,500.12 

Loans Repayable on Demand- From Other Parties  775.12  775.00 

Total  82,375.49  70,656.67 
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*  Cash credit /working capital credit facilities are secured by way of first pari passu charge over the entire current assets and 
second paripassu charge over the entire Immovable and moveable assets of the company, both present and future created in favour 
of respective banks/trustees alongwith personal guarantees of the Directors of the company namely Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi 
and Mr. Manoj Pathak.

For Subsidiaries UEPL    

As on March 31, 2016, there was no security existing for the facility and on 04 April 2016, Fixed Deposit Receipts of ` 3,226.54 

lakh was lien marked as security against the facility.

 Working Capital Loan is secured by first charge on current assets of the Company including but not limited to book debts, operating 

cash flows, receivables, revenue, any other current assets of whatever nature present and future and intangibles, goodwill and 

uncalled capital present and future, first exclusive charge on Escrow Account where all the cash flows from the sale of the steam 

shall be deposited and personal guarantee of Dr. Vinod Kumar Chaturvedi and Mr. Manoj Chaturvedi (Directors of the Company).

10 TRADE PAYABLES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

    For Goods  16,424.27  10,839.84 

    For Others  1,245.10  838.82 

Total  17,669.36  11,678.66 

11 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

    Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts  9,582.06  8,460.62 

    Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings  394.87  169.21 

    Unclaimed Dividends  6.56  7.48 

    Deposits Payables  4.47  6.62 

    Advance from Customers  6,439.58  6,243.21 

    Creditors for Capital Expenditure  575.15  664.56 

    Other Liabilities including Statutory Liabilities  2,687.16  218.78 

    Provision for CSR Activities  156.22  220.63 

    Intt Accrued and due on borrowings  840.50  367.19 

    Book Overdraft  968.26  10.84 

Corporate Dividend Tax  38.74  -   

Provision for Mark to Market(MTM) on Derivative Contract  30.44  -   

Total  21,724.01  16,369.15 

12 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Provision for employee benefits

Contribution to PF  5.43  4.65 

Provision for gratuity  7.63  29.96 

Provision for Leave Encashment  14.69  4.34 

ESIC  0.21  0.22 

Other Provisions

Income Tax(Net of Advance tax & TDS)  375.86  383.16 

Dividend  -    190.30 

Corporate Dividend Tax  -    38.74 

Total  403.82  651.38 
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14 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
 (` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Trade Investments

In  related Party

Usher Infra Logic Limited  11.28  11.28 

(11,275 (PY 11275) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up )

Total  11.28  11.28 

15 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security Deposits  84.21  58.44 

Advance against Purchase of land to UOFL  1,468.86  -   

Advance Given for Civil work to UILL  48.00  -   

 Cenvat Credit Receivable  9.39  -   

Total  1,610.46  58.44 

16 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Upfront Fee(Unamortised)  769.43  271.26 

Accrued Interest on FDR  7.33  3.29 

Fixed Deposits*

* (includes held as margin money/guarantee given)
 1,812.41  1,731.48 

Total  2,589.17  2,006.03 

17 INVENTORIES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

      (As valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Materials & work in process  38,106.86  54,529.97 

Fuel  188.00  95.56 

Stores, spares and consumables  51.76  94.83 

REC Unit Stock  0.37  0.16 

Finished goods  10,161.23  14,516.26 

Total  48,508.22  69,236.78 

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

(a) Trade receivables (outstanding for a period less than six months)  46,833.91  37,187.26 

(b) Trade receivables (outstanding for a period exceeding six months)  169.09  255.62 

Less : Provision for bad & doubtful debts @ 10% on (b) above  25.56  25.56 

Total  46,977.44  37,417.32 
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19 CASH & BANK BALANCE
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand  82.13  93.97 

Balance with Bank

Balance with Scheduled Banks - In Current Accounts *  7,722.75  1,558.43 

    Cheques in Hand (As certified by management)  486.36  -   

Other Bank Balance

Eamarked Balance - In Dividend Accounts  6.55  7.48 

Total  8,297.79  1,659.88 

*Out of this ` 4,26,526.24 thousands is charged on an exclusive basis for the benefit of the FMO & DEG ('lenders') for availing the 

ECB facility and shall be operated in accordance with the terms of the Deed of Hypothecation entered with lenders.

20 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

 Business advances to related parties

    Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt Ltd.  17.47  14.38 

    Vedika Finance Pvt Ltd  0.38  0.14 

    Usher Capitals Ltd  6.75  6.08 

    Usher Oils & Foods Ltd  87.79  (5.66)

    Usher Infra Logic Limited  190.72  72.68 

Other loans and advances

    Unutilised Banked Power  19.08  34.37 

    Advance Recoverable in Cash  83.57  211.73 

    Adance for Expenses  0.67  -   

    Advance to Staff  10.92  29.34 

    Advance to vendors  5.80  3.34 

   Advance to Related Party  52.79  52.79 

Total  475.94  419.19 

21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31.03.2016 

As at 
31.03.2015 

Accrued Interest on FDR  -    3.21 

Pre Paid Expenses  615.27  675.51 

Balance with Revenue Authorities  515.75  519.73 

Pre IPO Expenses  165.06  170.53 

Upfront Fees (Unamortised)  160.95  76.04 

Capital Advances  26.02  42.93 

Advance to Suppliers  10,199.19  6,073.02 

Others advances  14.70  14.61 

Total  11,696.94  7,575.59 
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22 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

 Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Sale of Products-Domestic  156,394.16  123,284.80 

Sale of Products-Exports  4,218.39  7,982.13 

Other Operting Income  705.36  227.06 

Total  161,317.19  131,494.00 

23 OTHER INCOME
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Interest Income  181.59  86.91 

Other Non-operating Income  54.01  22.86 

Gain on Mark to Mark(MTM) on Derivative  Contract  65.46  -   

Reversal of Director's Remuneration of Previous Year  -    39.11 

Liabilities no longer payable written back  81.76  -   

Total  382.82  148.88 

24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

 Raw Materials consumed  162,918.93  112,786.22 

 Cost of Electricity Purchased  58.11  161.10 

Total  162,977.04  112,947.31 

25  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Opening Stock of Finished Goods  14,516.26  10,145.96 

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods  10,161.23  14,516.26 

 4,355.03  (4,370.30)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Salaries and incentives  2,048.38  1,337.02 

Contributions to -

   - Provident fund  42.82  31.68 

   - Gratuity fund contributions  22.01  (11.92)

   - Provision for Earned Leave  0.92  44.42 

Contrbution to Staff Insurance premium  1.90  1.41 

ESIC  1.71  1.61 

Staff welfare expenses  63.10  49.22 

Total  2,180.84  1,453.45 
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27 FINANCE COSTS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Bank Charges  469.90  334.64 

Bank Interest  11,832.73  7,804.06 

Other Interest  373.14  574.96 

Foreign Exchange Cost  283.35  291.53 

Total  12,959.12  9,005.19 

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

Depreciation-UAL  3,877.38  3,136.12 

Depreciation-UEPL  650.27  634.90 

Total  4,527.65  3,771.02 

29 OTHER EXPENSES
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  
31.03.2016 

Nine Month Ended 
31.03.2015 

 Power & Fuel  865.54  539.63 

 Freight & Cartage  323.33  216.73 

 Export Freight including Expenses  130.66  934.42 

 Stores & Spares Consumed  234.20  108.71 

 Travelling & Conveyance  137.58  123.60 

 Printing & Stationery  20.41  16.38 

 Directors Remuneration and Managerial Commission  50.93  151.79 

 Provision for CSR Activity  -    128.40 

 Director's Sitting Fee  7.95  5.38 

 Postage ,Courier & Telephone  26.80  19.47 

 Insurance  63.16  27.62 

 Rent  33.30  22.41 

 Warehousing Charges  322.80  310.34 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Plant & Machinery  237.34  255.88 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Building  15.21  10.00 

 Running & Maintenance - Vehicle  50.84  40.75 

 Repairs & Maintenance - Others  3.45  8.66 

 Subscriptions & Membership  11.53  8.09 

 Legal & Professional Fees  504.79  420.50 

 Loss/(Gain) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation  522.38  (13.53)

 Office & Misc Expenses  307.93  163.77 

 Quality Control Expenses  14.51  26.79 

 Rebate & Discount  5.97  21.63 

 Loss on Assets  -    2.07 

 Provision for bad & doubt full debts  -    25.56 

 Brokerage & Commission  108.96  142.27 

 Advertisement & Business Promotion  51.72  25.57 

 Audit fees  17.59  14.53 

 Provision for Mark to Market(MTM) on Derivative Contract  -    111.81 

 Rates & Taxes  328.47 -
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 Loading & Unloading charges  60.23  41.05 

 Fees for increase in Authorised share Capital  60.80 -

  Plant Operation and Maintenance Charges  65.05  77.33 

  Loss on Derivative Instrument  45.04  60.79 

  Equipment Hire Charges  23.56  20.13 

   Total  4,652.03  4,068.52 

30 EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)
(` In Lakhs except EPS face value and nos. of shares)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
I)   Net Profit after tax as per profit and loss account  (29,772.24)  4,093.63 
ii)  Net Profit attributable to equity share holders  (29,772.24)  4,093.63 
iii)  Net Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Taxes  (29,950.97)  4,767.68 
iv)  Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculation  
of Basic EPS

 38,059,039  38,059,039 

v)  Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculation 
of Diluted  EPS

 38,059,039  38,059,039 

vi)  Basic and Diluted EPS        
     - Basic                                                                          (78.23)  10.76 
    - Diluted  (78.23)  10.76 
vii) Face Values per equity share 10.00 10.00

31 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGESS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Civil work of Construction & Land Development  1,047.67  977.84 
Plant & Machinery under Installation  2,226.31  2,219.48 
Preoperative Expenses related to assets under construction  944.44  443.64 
Total  4,218.42  3,640.96 

32 BENEFITS TO EMPLOYEES :
As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Employee benefits as defined in the Accounting Standard are 

given below :    

The Company has classified various Employees benefits as under:-

(i) Defined Contribution Plan:

  - Provident fund

  - State Defined Contribution Plans

    Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the 

schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the 

benefits. These funds are recognized by the Income tax authorities.

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized as expenses for the year are as under :
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, ESIC and Group Insurance  46.43  34.70 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

 (A) Gratuity

The present value of the obligation is determined based on an actuary valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit  Method. Actuarial 

gain and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.   
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(i) Changes in the present value of the deferred benefit obligation are as follows: 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Opening defined benefit obligation  40.15  51.62 
Interest cost  2.71  3.19 
Current service cost  16.05  10.68 
Past Service cost(Non Vested Benefits)  -    -   
Past Service cost (Vested Benefits)  -    -   
Benefit paid  (10.63)  -   
Actuarial (gain)/losses on obligation  (4.16)  (25.32)
Closing defined benefit obligation  44.11  40.16 

(ii) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Opening fair value of plan assets  10.19  9.34 

Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Expected return  0.85  0.68 

Contributions by employer  10.63  -   

Benefits paid  (10.63)  -   

Actuarial gains / (losses)  -    0.16 

Closing fair value of plan assets  11.04  10.19 

(iii) Fair value of plan assets:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of period  10.19  9.34 

Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   

Actual Return of plan assets  0.85  0.84 

Contributions  10.63  -   

Benefits paid  (10.63)  -   

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period  11.04  10.19 

Funded status (including unrecognized past service cost)  (33.08)  (29.96)

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets  -    0.16 

(iv) Experience History
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

(Gain)/Loss on obligation due to change in Assumption  1.00  (25.21)

Experience (Gain)/ Loss on obligation  (5.16)  (0.11)

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets  -    0.16 

(v) Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Actuarial  gain/(loss) for the period – obligation  4.16  25.32 

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the period – plan assets  (0.00)  0.16 

Total gain/(loss) for the period  4.15  25.48 

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized for the period  4.15  25.48 

Unrecognized Actuarial gain/(loss) at end of period  -    -   
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(vi) Past Service cost recognised
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -    -   

Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -    -   

Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit  -    -   

Recognized Past service Cost – (non vested benefits)  -    -   

Recognized Past Service Cost – (vested benefits)  -    -   

Unrecognized Past Service Cost – non vested benefits  -    -   

(vii) The amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Present value of obligation at the end of the year  44.12  40.16 
Fair value of  plan assets at the end of the year  5.48  10.19 
Funded status  (33.08)  (29.96)
Excess of actual or estimated  -    -   
Unrecognized actuarial gains / (loss)  -    -   
Unrecognized Past Service cost Non Vested Benefit  -    -   
Net assets/(liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (33.08)  (29.96)

(viii) Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss account
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Current service cost  16.05  10.68 
Interest cost on benefit obligation  2.71  3.19 
Expected return on plan assets  (0.85)  (0.68)
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year  (4.16)  (25.48)
Past service cost- Non Vested Benefits  -    -   
Past Service cost -Vested Benefits  -    -   
Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c  13.75  (12.30)

Balance sheet

(ix) Details of Provision for gratuity
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Net liability at the beginning of the year  29.96  42.26 
Adjusted in opening balance  -    -   
Expenses recognized during the year  13.75  (12.30)
Net Expenses recognized during the year  43.71  29.96 
Contribution paid during the year  (10.63)  -   
Net liability at the end of the year  33.08  29.96 

(B) leave encashment

(i) Changes in present value of obligation 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Opening Balance of Present Value of Obligation  45.52  1.28 
Liability on transfer in / (out) of Employees (Net)  -    -   
Interest Cost  3.15  0.12 
Current Service Cost  35.22  17.68 
Benefits Paid  (9.96)  -   
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (43.62)  26.45 
Closing Balance of Present Value of Obligation  30.30  45.52 
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(ii) Changes in fair value of plan assets
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Opening Balance of Present Value of Plan Assets  -    -   
Expected return on Plan assets  -    -   
Contributions  9.96  -   
Benefits Paid  (9.96)  -   
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan assets  -    -   
Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   
Plan assets transfer / pending transfer  -    -   
Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets net of pending transfer  -    -   

(iii) Fair value of plan assets:

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of period  -   
Adjusted in opening balance  -   
Actual Return of plan assets  -   
Contributions  9.96  -   
Benefits paid  (9.96)  -   
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of period  -   
Funded status (including unrecognized past service cost)  -   
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets  -    -   

(iv) Percentage of each category of Plan assets to total fair value of Plan assets
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India  N.A  N.A 

(v) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Present Obligations and the Fair Value of Assets
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Closing Balance of Present Value of Obligation  (19.28)  45.52 

Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets net of pending transfers  -    -   

Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (19.28)  45.52 

(vi) Amounts recognised in the Balance Shee
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Closing Balance of Present Value of Obligation  (19.28)  45.52 

Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets net of pending transfers  -    -   

Net Assets/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (19.28)  45.52 

(vii) Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Current Service Cost  241.11  17.68 

Interest Cost  11.74  0.12 

Expected Return on Plan Assets  -    -   

Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (270.02)  26.45 

Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss  (17.17)  44.25 
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(viii)  Details of Provision for gratuity
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Net liability at the beginning of the year  45.53  1.28 

Adjusted in opening balance  -   

Expenses recognized during the year  (5.26)  44.25 

Net Expenses recognized during the year  40.27  45.52 

Contribution paid during the year  (9.96)  -   

Net liability at the end of the year  30.31  45.52 

Actuarial Assumptions
(` In Lakhs)

Gratuity Leave Encashment
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15

Discount Rate (Per annum) 7.46 7.77  7.46  7.77 

Increase in compensation cost 5 10  5.00  10.00 

Rate of return on Plan Assets 8.35 9  -    -   

33 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business Segments :

The Company is operating in three different business segments i.e. food processing, bio-mass power generation and logistic. However, 

considering the size and volume of operations, there are only two reporting segments, i.e. Food Processing (including logistic 

operations) and Bio Mass Power Generation (except the captive power plant in the parent company) as Business Segments as  

described in the Accounting Standard (AS) 17 as Segment Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). The Required Disclosures are as follows:

Information about Primary Segments
(` In Lakhs)

Food Processing Power Generation Food Processing Power Generation

Particulars For the Year  
ended 31st 

March, 2016

For the Year  
ended 31st 

March, 2016

For the period 
ended 31st 

March, 2015

For the year 
ended 31st March 

2015
External revenue from Operations  156,933.39  3,679.16  127,322.54  1,813.15 

Inter segment revenue  2,600.84  873.84  352.42  711.76 

Other income  364.97  340.39  91.16  57.72 

Segment revenue  159,899.20  4,893.39  127,766.12  2,582.62 

Segment results after tax- Gross  (29,913.73)  (54.68)  4,205.25  (771.14)

Segment Assets- Gross  152,982.89  26,720.15  156,138.05  12,426.61 

Segment Liablities- Gross  141,659.82  17,807.43  114,881.01  11,677.53 

Capital Expenditure- Gross  470.44  107.02  618.18  -   

Segment Depreciation 3877.38  650.27 3136.12  634.90 

Geographical Segments :

The Company is carrying on its operational activities in the domestic market i.e. India as well as in overseas market i.e. an export 
hence  geographical segment i.e domestic and overseas has identified as secondary segment and the details of segment results as per 
AS 17 issued by ICAI are as under :-

Information about Secondary Segments
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2016

For the period 
ended 31st March, 

2015

Revenue By Geographical Market

India  157,099.51  123,511.86 

Outside India  4,218.39  7,982.13 

Total  161,317.90  131,493.99 
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Addition To Fixed Assets And Intangible Assets

(Include Capital work in progress)

India  2,008.89  1,438.32 

Outside India  -    -   

Total  2,008.89  1,438.32 

Carrying Amount Of Fixed Assets

India  47,498.97  48,612.24 

Outside India  -    -   

Total  47,498.97  48,612.24 

Notes:-

The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows :

Sales within India includes Sales to Customers located within India

Sales out side India includes Sales to customers located outside India including merchant exporters.

The carrying amount of segment fixed assets in India and outside India is based on geographical location of the respective assets.

34 AUDITORS REMUNERATION IS AS UNDER: 
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Audit Fees  10.73  9.00 

For Other Services  1.85  0.78 

Tax Audit Fees  3.72  3.00 

Service Tax  1.24  1.58 

Reimbursement of Expenses  0.06  0.17 

Total  17.59  14.53 

35 EXPENDITURE/REVENUE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Earnings in foreign currency (Cash/Accrual basis)

Export Sales on FOB Basis* ` 500.35 lac

(P.Y. ` 3755.14 lac )

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Expenditure in foreign currency (Cash/Accrual basis)

Loan Processing fees and consultancy charges  944.93  90.89 

Travelling Expenses  47.79  13.25 

Finance Cost  547.90  967.46 
Total  1,540.62  1,071.60 

* Export sales exclude sales to merchant exporter 

Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

Capital goods `. Nil

(P.Y. ` Nil )

36 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
(All are in ` In Lakhs except nos.)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Number of Non-resident shareholders 4 N.A.

Number of Equity Shares held by them 1595 N.A.

Amount of dividend paid (Gross), TDS Rs. Nil (P.Y.Nil)  797.50 NIL

Year to which dividend relates FY 2015 N.A.
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37 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
(` In Lakhs)

Contingent Liabilities not provided for 2015-16 2014-15

Letter of Credit issued by the Bankers of the Company for import of capital goods*.  
(Fixed deposits in the form of margin money including interest thereon of  ` Nil 
(P.Y. ` Nil) have been kept with respective bankers for the said letter of credit) 
* Converted on the foreign exchange conversion rate prevailing on the date of 
Balance Sheet.

 1,222.52  1,387.78 

The bankers of the Company  has issued Bank Guarantees for EPCG License to 
President of India & for Performance Guarantee to Indian Army (Fixed deposits of 
`  35.25 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 25.25 Lakhs have been kept with respective Banks for the 
said bank guarantees)

 71.74  125.06 

VAT & CST Liability in respect of A.Y. 2008-09 for which company has filed appeal 
with Appellate Tribunal, Agra in 2013 the appeal still pending for hearing at same 
level.

 29.17  29.17 

Entry Tax Liability in respect of A.Y. 2008-09 for which company had gone into 
appeal with the appropriate authority in the year 2011, the case has been decided 
in the favour of Departement however order is yet to receive, the company is 
planning to file appeal against the order.

 -    4.26 

VAT Liability in respect of A.Y. 2009-10 for which company has filed appeal 
with Additional Commissioner Grade -II (Appeal) Mathura in the year 2012 the 
matter is returned by the Additional Commissioner to Assessing authority for re-
assessment.

 0.21  0.21 

VAT & CST Liability in respect of A.Y. 2010-11 for which company had gone into 
the appeal with the appropriate authority, now the appeal was decided partially in 
our favour and the Appelleat Authority has reduced the demand of ` 135.45 Lakhs 
in our favour, for pending amount we are planning to move in to higher authorities 
with in time frame.

 66.42  66.42 

VAT Liability in respect of A.Y. 2012-13 for which company had gone into the 
appeal with the appropriate authority, now the demand order has been quashed by 
the authority and send back the case for regular assessment to Assessing Officer.

 -    2.15 

Traces site of TDS (Income Tax) showing outstanding TDS Liability on account of 
late filling of TDS returns/short TDS deduction. In the opinion of management, 
there is no such liability exists. The management is reconciling the differences as 
reported on traces site and same will be paid, if any liability arise.

29.92 -

Stamp Duty Liability persuant to letter by Stamp Authority, Mathura, dt 13.02.2012,  
dt  22.02.2012 & dt 09.12.2011 (The management has taken expert legal opinion 
on the said stamp duty matter and based on that opinion, the total liability in the 
subject matter may not exceed to ` 12.00 Lakhs and the matter has already been 
taken up with the appropriate authorities.)

 452.00  452.00 

Note: The Company has given Corporate Guarantee for Foreign Currency Loan (ECB) of USD 280.00 Lakhs (equaivalent to  

` 18631.50 Lakhs) (P.Y. USD Nil Lakh (equaivalent to  ` Nil Lakh)) taken by its Subsidiary Company i.e. Usher Eco Power 

Ltd from Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V (“FMO”) and DEG – Deutsche Investitions- und 

Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH  (“DEG”) in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited acting as the security trustee agent on behalf 

of FMO and DEG.

38 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE 

Derivative Instruments:

The Company uses commodities / forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with fluctuation in prices of food grain / commodities/

currency.  

The company does not use forward contract for speculative purposes.

In the forward contract entered by the Company, where the counter party is a recognised commodities exchange. The hedging / 

forward contracts mature generally between one to six months. The company considers the risk of non-performance by the counter 

party as negligible. 
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Outstanding short term commodities forward contracts entered into by the Company at the year end are ` Nil .(P.Y.Nil) 

Particulars of Outstanding Interest rate swaps to hedge against fluctuations in interest rate change as at the Balance Sheet 

date:

As at No. of 
Contract

Amount 
(In USD)

Amount 
(` In Lakhs)"

31/03/2016 4  25,437,212.43  16,873.24 

31/03/2015 5  28,137,212.43  17,611.31 

Pursuant to the clarification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on March 29, 2008 on accounting of derivatives, 

the Company has for the year ended March 31, 2016 recognised unrealised loss/ profit of ` (65.46) Lakhs (March 31, 2015   

` 116.86 Lakhs) towards mark to market of the interest rate swap and realised loss on settlement  of derivative of ̀  153.93 Lakhs. (P.Y. Nil) 

The provision for mark to market losses of the interest rate swap as on March 31, 2016 amounts to ` 154.11 Lakhs (March 31, 2015 

` 194.14 Lakhs)

Particulars of Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the Balance Sheet date

Particulars Amount

Creditors  for Capital Goods ` 1,143.50 Lakhs, (JPY 194,267,000)

{P.Y. ` 1,261.96 Lakhs, (JPY 194,267,000; GBP 270,000)}

Foreign Currency Loan ` 18756.09 Lakhs, (USD 28,275,694.20) 

{P.Y. ` 17,876.40 Lakhs,  (USD 2,85,60,749.15)} 

Foreign Debtors ` 58.74 Lakhs, (USD 88,550 )

{` 1,211.37 Lakhs, (USD 1,935,374.00)}

Interest Accrued but Not Due on Foreign currency Loan ` 40.05 Lakhs, (USD 60370.56)

{` 178.39 Lakhs, (USD 285002.28)}
Interest Accrued and due on Foreign currency Loan ` 282.48 Lakhs, (USD 425,845.70)

{` 235.71 Lakhs, (USD 376590.29)}

Advance from Customers ` 6,548.15 Lakhs, (USD9,871,642.99)

{` 6,178.74 Lakhs (USD 9,871,642.99)}

* Converted at the foreign exchange conversion rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet.

39 LEASES

In case of assets taken on lease

Finance Lease :

There are no finance lease transactions in the reporting period hence no disclosure is required to be made under AS 19 – Accounting 

for Leases, issued by the ICAI

Operating Lease :

(i)  Office premises, godowns and warehouses are obtained on operating lease basis during the financial year in relation of business. 

The lease terms are normally for 11 months and renewable at the option of the Company. There are no restrictions imposed in 

lease arrangements. There are no subleases.

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Debited to Statement of Profit & Loss Account  356.10  332.75 

Minimum Lease Payments  :

Not later than one year  128.05  60.72 

Later than one year but not later than five years  10.15  25.92 

Later than five years  -    -   
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(ii) The Company has given office premises on operating lease basis for a period of less  than one year. 

(` In Lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Lease payments for the year  2.70  5.40 

Minimum Lease Payments  :

Not later than one year  -    7.74 

Later than one year but not later than five years  -   10.60   

Later than five years  -    -   

40 RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  122,058.47  87,620.64 

Wheats  12,314.59  10,037.51 

Packing Material  928.80  950.73 

Pulses-Raw  25,629.01  10,211.24 

Bagasse  58.11  161.10 

Fuel  200.68  1,116.65 

Other  1,787.37  2,849.45 

Total  162,977.03  112,947.31 

41 PURCHASE OF RAW MATERIAL
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  103,113.62  98,055.77 

Wheats  15,735.88  9,399.92 

Pulses-Raw  24,689.55  11,290.05 

Fuel  3,022.69  764.64 

Packing Material  968.70  945.88 

Total  147,530.44  120,456.26 

42 SALE OF RAW MATERIAL
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Paddy & Dehusked Raw Rice  5,370.36  -   

Total        5,370.36  -   

43 VALUE OF SALES, CLOSING AND OPENING INVENTORY
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Opening Stock of Finished Goods and By Products

Rice  7,160.99  8,837.36 

Wheat Products  2,404.49  347.92 

Husk  284.38  15.00 

Bran  531.02  219.09 

Barley  4,051.69  685.60 

Pulses Finished  113.81  40.98 

Chuni  111.97  888.43 

 14,658.35  11,034.38 
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Sales

Rice  97,662.82  105,463.41 

Wheat Product  16,335.13  10,116.34 

Bran  4,897.86  4,438.03 

Husk  4.93  934.70 

Others  1,997.38  -   

Pulses Finished  28,175.39  7,799.78 

Chuni  2,489.53  775.87 

Electricity  3,679.15  1,813.15 

Total  155,242.18  131,341.28 

Closing Stocks

Finished Rice  4,576.41  7,160.99 

Wheat Product  1,415.23  2,404.49 

Husk  25.86  284.38 

Bran  191.36  531.02 

Pulses Finished  3,935.09  4,051.69 

Chuni  17.28  113.81 

Fuel  188.00  111.97 

Total  10,349.23  14,658.35 

44 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 
not provided for.  

 310.91  49.38 

Total  310.91 49.38

45 DISCLOSURE OF REC AS AT 31ST MARCH 2016 (ONE OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY UEPL)

Particulars

a) No. of RECs held as inventory 9202 (P.Y. - 4054)

b) No. of REC under certification 288  (P.Y. - Nil)

46 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

As on the Balance Sheet date the carrying amounts of the assets net of accumulated depreciation is not less than the recoverable 

amount of those assets. Hence, in the opinion of the management, there is no provision for impairment loss on the assets of the 

Company required to be made under Accounting Standard-28 (Impairment of Assets) issued by the ICAI.

47 DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

  As per the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, the company has charged the depreciation in line with the estimated useful 

lives of the assets as mentioned in said Act, except in the cases where the actual life of the assets found by management based 

on the independent technical expert's opinion vary from the life mentioned in the said Schedule. On the basis of evaluation 

of useful life of the assets by the technical expert, the company has considered useful life of computers of 5 years whereas 

the said Schedule recommends the useful life of 3 years and depreciation has been charged in the current financial year 

accordingly. 

48 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Provision for current tax has been made as per provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, after considering deduction/exemptions, 

if any, available to the Company under the said Act.



146

Usher Agro Limited

49 The Balances of Debtors, Creditors, Loans & Advances and other parties are subject to confirmation and reconciliation, if any. 

Some of the Debtors have raised various claims against the company on account of rate difference, delayed delivery and quality  

issues. The company is in the process of settlement of the said claims and that the necessary effect, if any, in respect of the same, 

shall be given in the books of account as and when the settlement is made. In some of these cases, the company has issued legal 

notices and in case of failure of the customers to settle/ pay the dues, the company will initiate appropriate legal proceedings 

against the debtors.

50 In the opinion of the Board the Assets (other than fixed assets & non current investments) are approximately of the value stated 

if realized in the ordinary course of business and the provisions of all known liabilities are adequate.

51 FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION

The Company has opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of long term foreign currency monetary 

items in line with Companies (Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2009 relating to Accounting Standard 11(AS-11) 

notified by Government of India on 31st March, 2009. Accordingly the effect of exchange differences on foreign currency loans 

of the company is accounted by addition or deduction to the cost of the assets so far it relates to the depreciable capital assets. 

The total amount of foreign exchange fluctuation profit/ (loss) of `  (701.95) Lakhs P.Y. (265.57) Lakhs has been reduced/added 

from CWIP/pre operative expenses account/ fixed assets during the year.    

52 LIST OF RELATED PARTIES

Names of related parties

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have 
taken place during the year

1) Key Management Personnel Dr. V. K. Chaturvedi (Managing Director)

Mr. Manoj Pathak (Whole Time Director)
2) Relatives of key management personnel Mrs. Samta Chaturvedi,  

(wife of Managing Director Dr. V. K. Chaturvedi)
Mrs. Shimla pathak,  
(Wife of Whole Time Director Mr. Manoj Pathak)

Shreyash Chaturvedi 
(Son of Managing Director Dr. V. K. Chaturvedi)

3)  Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key 
management personnel or their relatives(With whom 
transactions have taken plance during the year)

Usher Capitals Limited. 
Vedika Finance Pvt. Limited  
Usher Oils & Foods Limited. 
Usher Infra Logic Limited. 
Narayani Nivesh Nigam Private Limited
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Key Management 
Personnel (Manag-
ing Director, Whole 
time director, 
manager and other 
managerial person-
nel)

Relatives of 
Key Manage-
ment Personnel 
(Spouse, son, 
daughter, brother, 
sister, father, 
mother who may 
influence or be 
influenced by 
such personnel in 
his dealings with 
the Company)

Enterprises owned 
or significantly 
influenced  by 
key management 
personnel or their 
relatives 

Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Employee Benefits for Key Management Personnel 

Mr. V. K. Chaturvedi  38.79  58.19  38.79  58.19 

Mr. Manoj Pathak  12.18  18.20  12.18  18.20 

Loan/Business Advances Taken /repaid by

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  -    -    -    -   

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  -    -    -    -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  573.04  653.39  573.04  653.39 

Loan/Business Advances Given/repaid to

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  -    -    -    -   

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  46.00  -    46.00  -   

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  -    -    -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  0.06  747.83  0.06  747.83 

Capital Advances Given to

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  48.00  48.00  -   

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  1,468.86  1,468.86  -   

Rent Income (Truck/office)

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  101.39  99.63  101.39  99.63 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  8.80  29.23  8.80  29.23 

Proceeds of Rental Income

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  13.00  102.31  13.00  102.31 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  212.49  143.43  212.49  143.43 

Rent Expenses (Trucks/Office)

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  621.51  144.54  621.51  144.54 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  7.79  3.60  7.79  3.60 

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  1.80  1.35  1.80  1.35 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  4.80  4.80  4.80  4.80 

Payment of Rent (Truck/Office)

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  887.16  206.72  887.16  206.72 

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  2.32  1.00  2.32  1.00 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  -    0.36  -    0.36 

Consumables Purchased

Usher infra Logic Limited  20.19  33.62  20.19  33.62 

Expenses incurred to Land & Development

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  8.31  8.31  -   

Equipment hire Charges

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  21.60  21.60  -   

Expenses Incurred by related  party on our Behalf  

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  0.96  2.33  0.96  2.33 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  6.10  9.01  6.10  9.01 
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Expenses Incurred for related party  

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  510.31  20.79  510.31  20.79 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  51.64  15.98  51.64  15.98 

Usher Capitals Ltd.  0.67  3.07  0.67  3.07 

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  0.24  -    0.24  -   

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  13.51  14.34  13.51  14.34 

Reimburse by the related party

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  -    15.98  -    15.98 

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  -    -    -    -   

Personal Guarantee Taken

Dr. V. K. Chaturvedi & Mr. Manoj Pathak  92,545  86,710  92,545  86,710 

Balances Outstanding at the year  
end, Debit/(credit)* 

Mr. V. K. Chaturvedi  18.52  (77.09)  18.52  (77.09)

Mr. Manoj Pathak  8.07  (13.66)  8.07  (13.66)

Mrs. Shimla Pathak  0.31  0.21  0.31  0.21 

Vedika Finance Private Ltd.  0.38  -    0.38  -   

Usher Infra Logic Ltd.  238.92  76.37  238.92  76.37 

Narayani Nivesh Nigam Pvt. Ltd.  17.47  14.38  17.47  14.38 

Usher Capitals Ltd.  6.75  6.08  6.75  6.08 

Usher Oils & Foods Ltd.  1,557.16  (5.66)  1,557.16  (5.66)

 *Excluding investment in shares and application money

53 One of the Subsidiary Company proposed to raise finance through an Initial Public Offering (IPO) to fund its proposed 18MW 

husk based co-generation power plant. However, due to the prevailing capital market conditions, the Company had not gone 

ahead with the IPO.

 The Company had incurred expenses aggregating ` 165.06 Lakhs from the financial year 2008-09 till year ended  

March 31, 2014 in connection with the IPO. The Company is now evaluating other options of raising capital and it intends to 

adjust such Pre IPO expenses with the Securities Premium amount expected to be received on such capital. Hence, till such time, 

the amount of Pre IPO Expenses is shown as Other Current Assets.

54 One of the Subsidiary Company had received sanction of Term Loan (facility) from  Axis Bank ("the Bank") of  ` 30 Cr on 

December 7,  2011.  The loan was available for draw down upto 6 months from April 1, 2013 and on the completion of IPO 

process as referred in Note 53 The Company had paid ` 27.57 lakhs as processing fees for the said facility. Though the Company 

has not been able to come with IPO, it intends to negotiate with the Bank for amendment of its terms and then drawdown funds 

under the facility. Hence, till such time, the processing fees is not amortised and included under Other Non Current Assets.

55 In case of One of the Subsidiary, Pursuant to the UPERC(Captive and Renewable Energy Generating Plants Regulations), 2014 

and UPERC order dated April 15, 2015, the revised tariff for sale of power to UPPCL for the year 2014-15 shall be considered 

to be effective from January 20, 2015. An appeal has been filed by Cogeneration Association to the Appellate Tribunal of 

Electricity(ATE) for change in effective date of increase in rate of the sale of power from January 20, 2015 to April 01, 2014. 

The Company had accounted additional sales of ` 143.53 Lakhs for the period from April 01, 2014 till January 19, 2015 in the 

financial year 2014-15 as recoverable from UPPCL under "Trade Receivables", as the management is confident of receiving a 

favourable order in respect of the matter in appeal.

56 Inventories as at the end of year comprising stock of paddy and rice is inclusive of certain quantities of paddy wherein there had 

been substantial deteriorational in quality due to fungal development and other bacterial infection and high moisture content. 

Part of such inventory has been sold at substantial lower value during the subsequent quarter, as compared to the valuation 

(at cost) considered as on the  Balance Sheet date. However, the financial impact of the same has been considered during the 

ensuing quarter whan the same was actually sold. Had the financial impact of the same inventory loss of ` 11,719.32 Lakhs 

would have been considered as on 31.03.2016, the accumulated losses of the company would have been higher by ` 11,719.32 

Lakhs and as a result the net worth of the company would have been eroded fully. 
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57 In case of one of the Subsidiary,  the quantity of fuel consumed is determined on the basis of meters installed at conveyor belts. 

The value of closing inventory of fuel is determined based on purchases accounted and fuel consumed as it is not possible to 

determine the exact quantity by physical verification. Further, the cost of fuel consumed is net of unutilized banked power of  

` 19.08 Lakhs (` 34.36 Lakhs). 

58 One of the Subsidiary has paid  remuneration  to the Managing Director and Joint Managing Director for the period June 25, 

2013 to March 31, 2014 and for the year 2014-15 aggregating ` 39.11 Lakhs and ` 13.67 Lakhs respectively conforms with 

the minimum remuneration prescribed in Schedule XIII of the Companies Act 1956. However, as the Company had defaulted 

in repayment of certain debts for a period exceeding 30 days during the period of one year prior to the appointment of such 

directors, the remuneration paid required prior approval of the Central Government. The necessary application for waiver 

of excess remuneration so paid has been made to Central Government during the year 2015-16. Further, the directors have 

confirmed that in the event such approval is not given by the Central Government, the total amount of remuneration paid during 

above periods amounting to ` 52.79 Lakhs shall be refunded to the Company and hence till such time it is shown under Short 

Term Loans and Advances.

59 In case of holding company, the management has initiated the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods and 

services to the company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The company has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their 

status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further in the view of the management, the impact 

of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.

 In case of one of the Subsidiary, Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been  determined based on the information available with the Company and relied upon 

the Auditors

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act,2006  (3.01)  2.36 

Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount, and unpaid  -    1.50 
Payment made to suppliers( other than Section 16) beyond the appointed day/due date 

during the year
 -    4.19 

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act(Section No.16)  -    -   
Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act for payments already 
made.

 -    0.29 

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 
MSMED Act

 3.81  1.80 

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years  0.22  0.34 

60 In case of one of the Subsidiary, during the year, the Company has based on revaluation made by the approved valuer, revalued 

its land located at Chhata, Mathura District by ` 1,298.46 Lakhs as per prevaling market rate in the same locality & the 

incremental value on revaluation has been added to the gross block of Land and credited to the Revaluation Reserve.

61 VALUE OF COMPONENTS, STORES AND SPARE PARTS CONSUMED:

Particulars
2015-16 2014-15

Value % to Total Value % to Total

in Lakh Consumption in Lakh Consumption

Imported items  -   NIL  -   NIL

Indigenous items  234.20 100.00%  108.71 100.00%

Total  234.20 100.00%  108.71 100.00%

62 Axis bank has imposed Penal charges amounting to ` 70.45 Lakhs. However such expenditure has not been expensed out in the 

statement of profit and loss and the same is adjusted against short term borrowing from bank. As per management opinion, bank 

has debited without intimation to the company and matter is under discussion with bank and same will be reveres in future.
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63 Pursuant to the provision of Companies Act, 2013 the definition of financial year u/s 2(41) states that every company mandatorily 

has to change its financial year to be ended on 31st March w.e.f. 31.03.2016. The parent company was having financial year 

ending on 30th June and from now onwards the company has changed its financial year to be ended on 31st March to ensure 

compliance with the above requirement of Companies Act, 2013 on earlier basis. Hence, the figures of PY financial statement 

are prepared for nine months and are not strictly comparable with the previous year figures 

64 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to 

those for the current year. Figures in bracket indicate previous year's figures.

As per our Report of even date
For Jayesh Sanghrajka & Co. LLP    For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants Usher Agro Limited 

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 104184W/W100075

Sd /-  Sd /-  Sd /- Sd /-
CA Viraj Savla  Sarika S. Singh V.K.Chaturvedi Manoj Pathak
Designated Partner Company Secretary  Managing Director & CFO Wholetime Director
M.No. 153525 

Date: 13th August, 2016

Place : Mumbai
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PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN    : L01100MH1996PLC100380
Name of the Company : Usher Agro Limited 
Registered office :  422, Laxmi Plaza, Laxmi Industrial Estate, New Link 

Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai- 400 053
Name of the member (s) : ________________________________________________
Registered address : ________________________________________________
E-mail ID  : ________________________________________________
Folio No/ Client ID/DP ID : ________________________________________________

I/We, being the member(s) of _______________________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

(1) Name : _______________________________________ Address : ________________________________________
E-mail Id : _______________________________________ Signature : _______________________________________ or failing him

(2) Name : _______________________________________ Address : ________________________________________
E-mail Id : _______________________________________ Signature : _______________________________________ or failing him

(3) Name : _______________________________________ Address : ________________________________________
E-mail Id : _______________________________________ Signature : _______________________________________

Ordinary Business

Resolution No. Resolution

Ordinary Business

1. • Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial year ended   31st March, 2016, togeth-
er with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon

• the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2016 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon

2. To appoint  Statutory Auditor and to fix their remuneration and in this connection, to pass, with or without 
modification(s),

Special Business

3. To create, offer and issue new equity shares on preferential basis to the lenders of the Company pursuant 
to invocation of SDR Scheme.

4. Increase In Authorised Capital Of The Company And Alteration Of Capital Clause In the Memorandum Of 
Association Of The Company.

5. Alteration In Capital Clause Of Articles Of Association Of The Company.

Signed this________ day of September 2016

Note:

1.   This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2.   notwithstanding the above, Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the meeting by the shareholders present.

Affix 
Revenue 
stamp of 

Re. 1

&
& uSheR agRO lIMIted
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BALLOT FORM

1. Name :

 Registered Address of the sole/first named Shareholder :

2. Name (s) of the Joint Shareholder (s) if any :

3. Registered Folio/DPID & Client ID No. :

4. No. of Shares held :

 (As on 2nd September, 2016 being the cut-off date for

 Dispatch of Notice of AGM)

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution(s) to be passed for the business stated in the Notice of Annual  General 

meeting of the Company scheduled on Friday, 30th Septemebr, 2016, by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution(s) by 

placing the tick (P) mark at the appropriate box below

Item 
No.

Description Type of 
Resolution

No. of 
equity 
shares

I/We assent to 
the resolution 

(For)

I/We dissent to 
the resolution 

(Against)

Abstain

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. • the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial year ended   
31st March, 2016, together with the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon

• the Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2016 
together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon

Ordinary

2. To appoint  Statutory Auditor and to fix their 
remuneration and in this connection, to pass, 
with or without modification(s),

Ordinary

Special Business

3. To create, offer and issue new equity shares 
on preferential basis to the lenders of the 
Company pursuant to invocation of SDR 
Scheme.

Special

4. Increase In Authorised Capital of The 
Company And Alteration of Capital Clause 
In the Memorandum of Association of The 
Company

Ordinary 
Resolution

5. Alteration In Capital Clause of Articles of 

Association of The Company:

Special

Date:

Place: Signature of Shareholder 

Note: Kindly read the instructions printed overleaf before filling the form. Valid Ballot Forms received by  the Scrutiniser by 5.00 p.m. 

on 29th September, 2016 shall only be considered.

&
&
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INSTRUCTIONS

1.  Members may fill up the Ballot Form printed overleaf and submit the same in a sealed envelope to the Scrutiniser, Mrs. Palak Desai, 

Practising Company Secretary, Usher Agro Limited   C/o. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.  E2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road, 

Sakinaka, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 072.Tel: +91-22-28470632/53 Fax: +91-22-28475207 or to her email id: bkc.roc@

gmail.com, so as to reach by 5.00 p.m. on or before 29th September, 2016. Ballot Form received thereafter will strictly be treated 

as if not received.

2. The Company will not be responsible if the envelope containing the Ballot Form is lost in transit.

3.  Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision of the Scrutiniser on the validity of the 

forms will be final.

4.  In the event member casts his votes through both the processes i.e. E-voting and Ballot Form, the votes in the electronic system 

would be considered and the Ballot Form would be ignored.

5. The right of voting by Ballot Form shall not be exercised by a proxy.

6.  To avoid fraudulent transactions, the identity/signature of the members holding shares in electronic/demat form is verified with the 

specimen signatures furnished by NSDL/CDSL and that of members holding shares in physical form is verified as per the records of 

the share transfer agent of the Company (i.e. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd). Members are requested to keep the same updated.

7.  The voting rights shall be reckoned on the basis of number of equity shares held by the members as on 21st September [cut-off date 

for the purpose as per rule 20 (4) (vii) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended].

8. There will be only one Ballot Form for every Folio/DP ID Client ID irrespective of the number of joint members.

9.  In case of joint holders, the Ballot Form should be signed by the first named shareholder and in his/her absence by the next named 

shareholders. Ballot form signed by a joint holder shall be treated valid if signed as per records available with the Company and the 

Company shall not entertain any objection on such Ballot Form signed by other joint holders.

10.  Where the Ballot Form has been signed by an authorised representative of the body corporate/Trust/Society, etc. a certified copy of 

the relevant authorisation/Board resolution to vote should accompany the Ballot Form.

11.  Instructions for e-voting procedure are available in the Notice of annual general meeting and are also placed on the website of the 

Company.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
20th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2016 at 11.30 A.M

At Anmol Banquets Hall, 2nd Floor, Harmony Mall At Carnival Cinemas, Opposite Royal Enfield Showroom, 

Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai-400104

Registered Folio /
DP ID and Client ID

Name and Address of the 
Shareholder(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

20th   ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, 30th SEPTEMBER, 2016 at 11.30  A.M at  Anmol Banquets Hall, 2nd Floor, 

Harmony Mall At Carnival Cinemas, Opposite Royal Enfield Showroom, Link Road, Goregaon (West), Mumbai-400104

________________________________    ___________________________________      ___________________________

Member’s Folio/ DP ID-Client ID No.      Member’s/ Proxy’s name in Block Letters      Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature

NOTES 

1. Only Member/ Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.

2.   Please complete the Folio/ DP ID-Client ID No. and name of the Member/ Proxy, sign this Attendance Slip and hand it over,  

duly signed, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

3.  Shareholder/ Proxy holder desiring to attend the Meeting should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the 

Meeting.

&
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GREEN INITIATIVE

Dear Members,

As you are aware that the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India has taken a 'Green Initiative in Corporate Governance' 

vide circulars Ref. nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21, 2011 and April 29, 2011 respectively allowing serving of documents by 

a company to its members in electronic mode through e-mails. Further, in line with recent circular (vide circular ref. no. CIR/CFD/

DIL/7/2011 dated October 5, 2011) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and consequent changes in Clause 

32 of the Equity Listing Agreement, Companies can send full Annual Reports in electronic mode to its members who have registered 

their e-mail addresses for the purpose. 

With a view to lending strong support to this environment friendly initiative of the Government of India, we invite all the members 

of the Company to join us and register their e-mail address with us by filling up the form to receive all the communications from the 

Company in electronic mode.

We are sure, that as a responsible citizen you too would like to support this excellent initiative of the Government of India and will 

co-operate with the Company in implementing the same.

Regards,

Sarika S Singh

Company Secretary

E-mail Registration Form

Folio No : DP – ID : Client Id :

Name of the Registered Holder (1st) :

Name of the joint holder(s) :

Registered Address :

Mobile Nos. (to be registered) :

E-mail Id (to be registered) :

I/ We, the members of Usher Agro Limited (the “Company”) do hereby agree and authorize the Company to send me/ us all the 

communications in electronic mode at the e-mail address mentioned above. Please register the above e-mail address / mobile number for 

sending communication through e-mail/ mobile.
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